
Page 1 of 2 John Day City Council Agenda December 9, 2025  

           
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Tuesday December 9, 2025 

REGULAR MEETING: 6:30 pm 
John Day Fire Station 

316 S Canyon Blvd, John Day, OR   97845 
(541)575-0028    www.cityofjohnday.com 

 
This meeting is open to the public. This agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting. However, the agenda does not limit the ability of the Council to consider 
additional subjects. Meetings may be canceled without notice. Zoom Meeting participants should use the 
“raise your hand” feature during these times to alert the moderator that they would like to speak. 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

City of John Day is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
https://zoom.us/j/95867942253?pwd=dHE5c3djSEx4OFBuZndPQU5HMGN3QT09 

Meeting ID: 958 6794 2253 
Passcode: 776959 

 
 
Call to Order:  Regular John Day Council Meeting 6:30 pm. 
1.Call John Day City Council Meeting to Order  
2.Pledge of Allegiance 
3.Roll Call  
4.Amend or Accept Regular Agenda  
 
5.Public Comments (Please Limit to 3 Minutes) 
Public Comments are an opportunity to present information or speak on an issue that is not on the  
agenda. Comments are limited to 3 minutes for each person. Visitors may state their comments and 
should not expect the council to engage in back and forth dialogue regarding the comment, council may 
either choose to add it to a follow up meeting or direct City Manager to follow up with the speaker.  
 
6.Consent Agenda 
All matters listed within the Consent Agenda have been distributed to every member of the City Council 
for reading and study, are considered routine, and will be enacted by one motion of the Council. If 
separate discussion is desired, that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the 
Regular Agenda by request.   
 

a. AP through 12-3-25 
b. Minutes of CC Mtg 11-18-25 

 
7. Public Hearing:  PAPA25-01:  Grant County Fairgrounds is requesting Site Design Review for 

an expansion of the existing RV park on Fairgrounds property. The proposal would add 25 
new spaces on a vacant parcel off the extension of NW 3rd Street, adjacent to existing 
County Fairgrounds properties. In addition, the applicant is requesting a zoning change for a 
portion of the parcel from Residential Limited to Parks Reserve. Because the application 
includes a zone change, it is subject to a Type IV review, and the Site Design Review will  

http://www.cityofjohnday.com/
https://zoom.us/j/95867942253?pwd=dHE5c3djSEx4OFBuZndPQU5HMGN3QT09


Page 2 of 2 John Day City Council Agenda December 9, 2025  

 
12-9-25 CC Agenda Cont. 

 
 
 
 
occur concurrently. The property lies within the regulated floodplain; a floodplain 
development permit will be required but is not part of the current review before the Planning 
Commission and City Council.  Planning Commission recommends approval with conditions. 
 

a. Staff report 
b. Applicant Presentation 
c. Open the hearing 
d. Public Testimony 
e. Applicant rebuttal 
f. Close Public Hearing 
g. Deliberation 

 
 
Other Business: 
 
8.  Mayor and Council Comments: 

 
9. Adjournment: Next Regular Meeting: January 13, 2026 

    





















 

 
CITY OF JOHN DAY 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES November 18, 2025 
 
 
COUCILORS PRESENT: COUNCILORS ABSENT
Sherrie Rininger, Mayor 
Chris Labhart, Councilor 
Bradley Hale, Councilor 
Ron Phillips, Councilor 
Vern Pifer, Councilor 
Heather Swank, Councilor  
Meloni Cochran, Councilor 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Melissa Bethel, City Manager 

 

Don Gabbard, Fire Chief 
Jim Pex, Engineer 
Nick Ducote, Project & Grant Writer 
Rob Gaslin, Contract Finance 
 
Agenda Item No. 1—Call Meeting to Order 
The City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm. 
 
Agenda Item No. 2—Pledge of Allegiance 
The City Council stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Agenda Item No. 3—Roll Call and Attendance 
All councilors were present. 
 
Agenda Item No. 4—Amend or Accept Regular Agenda 
Ordinance No 25-06; An Ordinance adding a new Section 3 to the Title 10 Chapter 2 pertaining to Minors 
and Curfew should be removed from the agenda because it will not be discussed tonight. 
 
Councilor Cochran made a motion to approve the agenda as amended. The motion was seconded by 
Councilor Swank and passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item No. 5—Public Comments 
Genevieve Paddock- She spoke about the monument she and her husband built, explaining the delays 
were due to her husband’s medical issues and changed in City leadership. The monument was 
completed before the October 31st deadline, but afterward the City informed them the remaining 
balance could not be paid. She thanked the Council for their time and hopes for a proper resolution. 
Mayor Rininger stated they will take this into consideration and be in touch. 
 
Tyler Sheedy- He appreciates the city’s work and supports the need to upgrade water and sewer 
systems, including necessary rate increases. Sheedy owns a downtown building with multiple rental 
units served by a single water meter and has concerns with the new ordinance that was passed. He is 
requesting to be put on the next agenda to have the Council consider amending the ordinance to allow a 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

transition period between tenants and the ability to temporarily discontinue water service, creating a 
fair and consistent system for all landlords while still supporting city infrastructure. Mayor Rininger 
stated they will take this into advisement and have discussion regarding this at the January 13th meeting. 
 
Agenda Item No. 6—Consent Agenda  

a. Accounts Payable through 11-3-25 
b. Minutes of City Council Meeting 10-28-25 

 
The minutes of 10-28-25 will be pulled off of the consent agenda for discussion. 
 
Councilor Phillips made a motion to accept the consent agenda with just the Accounts Payable 
through 11-3-25. The motion was seconded by Councilor Swank and passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item No. 7—Discussion of City Council Meeting 10-28-2025 
Council noted that the recorded vote for Agenda Item No. 7 from the October 28 meeting was incorrect. 
The motion passed 5 to 2 with Councilors Labhart and Swank opposed. 
 
Councilor Labhart made a motion to approve the minutes as presented, with the noted correction. The 
motion was seconded by Councilor Hale and passed unanimously. 
 
NOTE:  Staff later verified that the minutes were accurate, and no amendment was made. 
 
Agenda Item No. 8—Timber Truckers Light Parade Community Grant Application; Request for $1,500 
The Timbers Truckers Light Parade previously received $100 through the community grant program but 
this year had a $150 application fee. Council members expressed support for the event, with Mayor 
Rininger suggesting a $500 grant and Councilor Hale proposing $650 to cover the fee plus an additional 
$500. 
 
Councilor Cochran made a motion to grant the Timbers Truckers Light Parade $650 from the TRT fund. 
The motion was seconded by Councilor Pifer and passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item No. 10—Wastewater Treatment Plant Update; Keller & Associates – Jim Pex 

a. Approve Notice to Award contract in the amount of $1,544,160 to Aqua-Aerobic Systems, Inc for 
the pre-purchase of the Sequencing Batch Reactor Equipment and scope of work described in 
the bid date October 15, 2025 

 
Pex reviewed the pre-purchase item for approval. There was a single bidder whose original price was 
higher than desired. With Bethel’s approval they were able to negotiate a reduction of about $220,000. 
Overall, the project is progressing smoothly and there are no major issues or schedule delays at this 
time. 
 
Agenda Item No. 11—Project and grant update; Nick Ducote; Ducote Consulting 

a. Approval of RC0024 Loan Agreement WWTP; $546,926 
 
Ducote provided a summary of key points on the Wastewater Treatment Plant improvements. The 
monitoring plans have been approved by DEQ, allowing the remaining monitoring wells to be drilled. 
Yellow Jacket is scheduled to drill these wells on December 20. 
 
Councilor Cochran made a motion to approve the award contract in the amount of $1,544,160 to Aqua 
Aerobic Systems for the pre-purchase of the sequencing batch reactor equipment and scope of work 
described in the bid dated October 15th of 2025. The motion was seconded by Councilor Phillips and 
passed unanimously. 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Councilor Swank made a motion to approve RC0024 loan agreement for the Wastewater project in the 
amount of $546,926. The motion was seconded by Councilor Cochran and passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item No. 12—Resolution 25-11; A Resolution of the City of John Day adopting water and 
sewer service fee increases effective January 2026 first billing 
Councilor Cochran made a motion to adopt Resolution 25-11; A Resolution of the City of John Day 
adopting water and sewer service fee increases effective January 2026 first billing. The motion was 
seconded by Councilor Hale and passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item No. 13—Finance Update; Rob Gaslin CPA, Gaslin Accounting LLC 
Gaslin presented a budget to actual report to Council. 
 
Other Business: 
 
Agenda Item No. 14—City Manager Comments 
Bethel noted that she will be absent at the next meeting on December 9th. 
With the winter season approaching, the city plans to begin decorating and putting up holiday lights, 
and hopes to see the City fully lit up. 
She reminded resident to support local businesses by shopping locally during the holiday season. 
 
Agenda Item No. 15—Mayor and Council Comments 
Mayor Rininger added that she hopes to see the City brightly lit and the community embracing the 
holiday spirit. 
There is a City Council Workshop on December 3rd.  
Councilors Labhart and Swank and the others that are on the Main Street Committee will have a project 
update to the City Council before 6 months. They believe it is going very well.  
 
Adjourn:  
There being no further business before council the meeting was adjourned.  
 
__________ 
Melissa Bethel, CM 



1 
 

 

1 

 
 

STAFF REPORT  
Zone Change and Site Design Review  
Grant County Fairgrounds Expansion  

PAPA 25-01  

Date Submitted: December 3, 2025  

Agenda Date Requested: December 9, 2025  

To: John Day City Council  

From: Henry Hearley, Associate 
Planner, Lane Council of 
Governments & Trish Rice, 
Dyer Partnership, Contract 
City Engineer  

Subject: Staff report for PAPA 25-01  

Location: Tax Lot 01300 on Map 13S-31E-23 

Published Notice: October 1 & October 8, 2025  

Type of Action Requested 
 

[ ] Resolution [ X ] Ordinance 
## 25-06 

[ X ] Formal Action  [ ] Report 
Only 

 
1. BACKGROUND.  
Applicant: Mindy Winegar, Grant County Fairgrounds Manager  
Request: To change the zoning of a portion of the property to increase the amount of property 
zoned Park Reserve and reduce the amount zoned Residential Limited. And Site Design 
Review to expand the Grant County RV Park by adding 25 new short-term RV spaces on the 
subject property. The two applications are being processed concurrently and because the 
application involves a zone change, the application type has been elevated to Type IV review 
by the Planning Commission and City Council.  
 
 
 



2 
 

 

 
 

 
2. PROPOSAL. As introduced above, the applicant is seeking to reduce the amount of land 
zoned Residential Limited and increase the amount of land zoned Parks Reserve. A zoning 
designation of Parks Reserve better fits the Fairgrounds needs, and the property is owned and 
operate by the Fairgrounds. A zoning designation of Parks Reserve will permit for the 
development of a RV park. The amount of land zoned Residential Limited will be reduced and 
will primarily be along the southwestern proportion of the property where there are existing 
homes. The second part of the proposal is for site design review. Site design review will look at 
the development of 25 new RV spaces for short-term use and act as an extension to the 
Fairground’s current RV park. Site improvements include power, water, and sanitary sewer to 
each new RV pad, and a common bathroom and laundry facility for guests use. The property 
also lies in the regulated floodplain, so the floodplain development code will be triggered by this 
development, and the development must comply with floodplain development regulations. 
Review of the floodplain development application will occur post land use review and approval. 
Note 3rd Avenue and 3rd Street are used interchangeably.  
 

 
Figure 1. Zone change map. 



3 
 

 

 
Figure 2. Proposed site plan. 

 
3. PLANNING COMMISSION’S RECOMMENDATIONS.  
 
What Planning Commission has recommended for approval at the past two meetings. 
 
On the matter of the Zone Change:  

• Planning Commission passed a motion to recommend approval of the zone change at its 
October 22nd meeting. Furthermore, the Planning Commission found the zone change 
to be of the public interest.  

o City Council should accept or reject, or revise the recommendation.  
On the matter of Fencing:  

• Planning Commission passed a motion to recommend approval for the site to be entirely 
surrounded by 6’ high fencing. Planning Commission found such a fence does not pose 
a hazard to public health or safety.  

o City Council should accept or reject or revise the recommendation.  
On the matter of Off-Street Parking:  

• Planning Commission passed a motion to recommend approval of off-street parking plan 
which is three off-street parking space, with one being ADA.  

o City Council should accept or reject or revise the recommendation.  
 



4 
 

 

On the matter of Bicycle Parking:  
• Planning Commission passed a motion to recommend approval of three bicycle parking 

spaces and found that bicycle parking standards do apply to the proposed development.  
o City Council should accept or reject or revise the recommendation.  

On the matter of Underground Utilities:   
• Planning Commission passed a motion to recommend granting an exception to 

underground utilities and found the applicant’s proposal to be acceptable. Applicant’s 
proposal for utilities is to use an existing overhead pole for power, run power to the 
property, and once power reaches the property, it will be placed underground and 
through the site.  

o City Council should accept or reject or revise the recommendation.  
On the matter of Fencing Around Swale ‘A’:  

• Planning Commission passed a motion to only require fencing around Swale ‘A’ if the 
final design of Swale ‘A’ displays a depth of greater than 3.0 feet.  

o City Council should accept or reject or revise the recommendation.  
On the matter of Landscape Plan:  

• Planning Commission passed a motion to accept the applicant’s landscape plan as 
proposed. Applicant’s landscape plan features a variety of trees between 4-6’, shrubs, 
and groundcovers. Each individual RV space will be landscaped as seen on the 
landscape plan. Plants are proposed to be hand-watered when necessary. 

o City Council should accept or reject or revise the recommendation.  
On the matter of a Public Work Designee:  

• Planning Commission passed a motion to approve the Contract City Engineer, Dyer 
Partnership, as the duly appointed designee of the Public Works Director.  

o City Council should accept or reject or revise the recommendation.  
On the matter of Deferred Frontage Improvements:  

• Planning Commission passed a motion to recommend acceptance of revised Condition 
of Approval #4 which reads: “Prior to issuance of a building permit, connection to City 
water or sewer service, or creation of a new access to 3rd Street, whichever occurs first, 
the Applicant shall sign and record a Waiver of Remonstrance as a guarantee for future 
frontage improvements along 3rd Street for the length of the proposed development 
frontage, approximately 535 feet. Future frontage improvements shall be constructed 
consistent with the adopted Collector Street standards (Option D), including half-street 
improvements consisting of sidewalk, curb, and gutter. The rough proportionality of the 
required improvements corresponds to the length of the development frontage, 
approximately 535 feet along 3rd Street.”  

o Revised Condition of Approval #4 permits the applicant to defer frontage 
improvements associated with site development, specifically, the frontage 
improvements as specified in ROW standards for a Collector Street, Option D.  
 City Council should accept or reject or revise the recommendation.  
 Applicants are now seeking Option B for 3rd Avenue. This matter will 

be discussed later in the staff report and City Council’s determination 
on this matter will likely result in a revision to Condition of Approval 
#4.   



5 
 

 

 
4. OUTSTANDING MATTERS for CITY COUNCIL ACTION.  

 
Outstanding matters for City Council adjudication.   
 
ROW Responsibility and Width for 3rd Street:  

• At the November 12th Planning Committee meeting, staff presented a revision of Issue 
#1 which relates to the ROW discrepancy for 3rd Street. 3rd Street was never formally 
deeded or conveyed to the City for ultimate jurisdiction. The functional legal description 
for 3rd Street does not identify ROW width. There is an opportunity to fix this issue finally.  

 

 
 

• City contends the discrepancy is for the applicant to resolve because in the 1996 
agreement between Grant County and City of John Day, County agreed to the terms 
above, but notably it does not appear term #6 was ever completed, thus leaving this 
issue unresolved and unknown until now.  

 
• On December 2, 2025, applicant submitted three items of note for City Council review 

(included in this staff report as Exhibit D).  
 

o A written response to conditions imposed by the Planning Commission, 
specifically a rebuttal to Revised Condition of Approval #1, and Revised Condition 
of Approval #12.  

o A proposed new legal description for 3rd Street ROW.  
o A map showing the new ROW of 3rd Street based on the new legal description.  

 
• Applicant contends that Option B is more suitable for 3rd Street than Option D.  



6 
 

 

 

 
• As the applicant calls out in their response to Revised Condition of Approval #1, the Local 

Street Network Plan (LSNP), identifies 3rd Avenue  as lacking sidewalk and/or bikeway system 
and needs sidewalks and bike lanes (plural). This is the only area where plural sidewalks are 
called for along 3rd Avenue. All other references to 3rd Avenue reference a singular sidewalk on 
the south side and west side.  

 

 
 

• As applicant addresses in their response, Project #23 of the LSNP calls for a new 6’ sidewalk 
(singular) for the south and west side of the roadway.  

 

• In place of Option D, the applicant is requesting that the City Council approve Option B. The 
Grant County Fairgrounds is proposing a 40-foot ROW that would connect the existing 40-foot 
ROW for 3rd Street to the west. Moving east, the ROW width would increase to incorporate the 
existing fill slopes. 

On the west end, the proposed 40-foot ROW is located within an already developed area, and 
requiring a wider dedication there would create encroachment issues with existing 
development. The existing road footprint consists of 34 feet of pavement and a 2–3-foot gravel 
shoulder on each side. Under Option B of the City’s Collector Street standards, the required 
improvements could be constructed within the existing road prism. 



7 
 

 

 

Furthermore, applicant suggests the City Council take into consideration the following when  
debating the type of Collector for 3rd Street:  

 

 

• City Council should evaluate the applicant’s request to develop 3rd Avenue under Option B 
rather than Option D. Under Option B, the applicant may utilize the existing 34-foot pavement 
width without any roadway widening. Frontage improvements would be limited to the south side 
of 3rd Avenue and would include installation of a 6-foot sidewalk, curb and gutter, and 
restriping of the 5-foot bike lane for an appropriate distance along both ends of the 
development. The applicant does make a valid claim regarding the impact on the floodplain 
with additional fill and impervious surface.  

• In contrast, Option D envisions full buildout of pedestrian and bicycle amenities on both sides of 
3rd Avenue—sidewalk, on-street parking, and a bike lane on the north side in the long term, as 
well as the same improvements on the south side along the project frontage. While the 
applicant would not be responsible for constructing improvements on the north side, Option D 
would require additional pavement width and associated frontage improvements on the south 
(development) side to support the future corridor design. This option aligns with 3rd Avenue’s 
potential long-term function as a primary throughfare and alternate route from Highway 26 into 



8 
 

 

John Day and provides a continuous connection to the existing trail system along the John Day 
River. 

• The key distinction between the two options is that Option B does not develop the north side of 
3rd Avenue, which means pedestrian circulation and access to the trail network would remain 
incomplete. For this reason, if Council elects to allow development under Option B, staff 
recommend requiring a formal trail easement across the Fairgrounds property as part of 
Condition of Approval #1. This easement would maintain continuous north-side pedestrian 
access consistent with the LSNP. Staff note that the existing trail segment on the Fairgrounds 
property is not currently supported by a formal recorded easement and remains under the 
Grant County control.  

• If Council prefers Option D, the City would continue to express interest in securing a future trail 
easement; however, under Option D the trail easement would be desired rather than required 
and may be pursued later as a matter between the City and Grant County. This application 
need not resolve that issue today; staff raise it only because the applicant’s request for Option 
B makes trail access a necessary component of maintaining pedestrian circulation. 

• An Option B + Trail selection would result in the following revision to Condition of Approval #1.  
o The trail easement should be included as a development requirement in this Condition of 

Approval. Text with revised Condition of Approval #1 that is stricken is proposed for 
deletion. Underlined text is proposed for addition.  
 Revised Condition of Approval #1: Prior to issuance of a building permit, 

connecting to City water or sewer service, or creating a new access to 3rd Street, 
whichever occurs first, Applicant must take action(s) satisfactory to City to 
establish or correct the delineation of the 3rd Street right-of-way through the 
subject property such that it is 40 62 feet in width and none of applicant’s 
improvements (other than permitted utility connections) are located within the 
right-of-way.  Action may include dedicating right-of-way and/or filing petitions for 
vacation of right-of-way and/or street legalization process first brought up by the 
applicant’s surveyor. A 40 62’ ROW corresponds with Option B D for a Collector 
Street as adopted in Table 5-3.4.101F, Minimum Street, Sidewalk and Bikeway 
Standards. Condition of Approval #1 is tied to Chapter 5-3.4.101(A)(1) & (3), 
Adequate Public Facilities and Street Improvements. With the choice of Option B 
for the ROW for 3rd Street comes the need to obtain a formal trail easement to 
comply with the Local Street Network Plan for pedestrian travel on the north side 
of 3rd Street. To that end, as a condition development, Grant County Fairgrounds 
shall provide the City of John Day an access easement covering the existing trail 
network that generally begins near the southwestern corner of Map and Tax Lot 
13S-31E-23-01300 and continues northward through said parcel to the 
northwestern corners and terminates at two points on Bridge Street, as outlined in 
graphical form in Figure 4.2, Existing trails and open spaces, of the John Day 
Innovation Gateway Plan. See Figure 4.2 included in this revised Condition of 
Approval #1 on December 3, 2025. Terms of access easement can be iterated on 
between Grant County Fairgrounds and John Day City Council, but shall be 
executed and recorded prior to the same terms as listed at the outset of this 
condition.  

 

 



9 
 

 

 

Figure 3. Existing trail segment through Fairgrounds. 

 

 

Figure 4. Need to obtain easements to formally complete trail network is called out in the LSNP. 



10 
 

 

• Council is asked to discuss both alternatives and provide direction to staff on which standard to 
apply. 

 
 
4.  STAFF REPORT SECTION (substantially the same as previous two staff reports 
and revised in places to reflect changes)  
 
Public Process: 
Notice of the public hearing was duly published in the newspaper on 10/1/25 and 10/8/25 . In 
addition, Grant County Fairgrounds held the required neighborhood meeting on 3/17/25. 

 
5.  REVIEW OF ZONE CHANGE CRITERIA. The criteria for a zone change are contained 
in John Day Development Chapter 5-4.7, Land Use District Map and Text Amendments. The 
criteria for a zone change are as follows: 
 

B. Criteria for Quasi-Judicial Amendments. A recommendation or a decision to approve, 
approve with conditions or to deny an application for a quasi-judicial amendment shall be 
based on all of the following criteria:  

1. Approval of the request is consistent with the Statewide Planning Goals;  

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Approval of the request is consistent with the Oregon 
Statewide Planning Goals. The proposal seeks to rezone County-owned property to decrease the 
area zoned Residential Limited and increase the area zoned Parks Reserve to support the 
development of a public RV park. The rezone and proposed use align with the applicable Statewide 
Planning Goals as follows: 

Approval of the request is consistent with the Oregon Statewide Planning Goals. The proposal seeks 
to rezone County-owned property to decrease the area zoned Residential Limited and increase the 
area zoned Parks Reserve to support the development of a public RV park adjacent to the Grant 
County Fairgrounds. The rezone and proposed use align with the following applicable Statewide 
Planning Goals: 

•  Goal 1 – Citizen Involvement: The City provides notice and opportunities for public 
comment consistent with its acknowledged citizen involvement program. Review of this 
request includes mailed and published notice, a public hearing before the Planning 
Commission, and the opportunity for written and oral testimony. 

• Goal 2 – Land Use Planning: The amendment is supported by an adequate factual 
base and is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The rezone maintains 
internal consistency between the zoning map and the Comprehensive Plan’s Parks and 
Open Space designations and implements the City’s policy direction to expand 
recreational opportunities and tourism-based economic development. 

• Goal 5 – Open Spaces, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Natural Resources: The 
proposed RV park enhances public access and recreational opportunities near the John 
Day River and Fairgrounds area while maintaining floodplain functionality and avoiding 
adverse impacts to significant natural features. 



11 
 

 

• Goal 8 – Recreational Needs: The project directly supports Goal 8 by increasing and 
diversifying recreation and tourism amenities. The Parks Reserve designation allows the 
development of an RV park that will serve visitors attending events at the Fairgrounds 
and other community venues, supporting local tourism and outdoor recreation consistent 
with the City’s long-term recreation strategy. 

• Goal 9 – Economic Development: The proposal supports Goal 9 by promoting visitor-
serving uses that contribute to the local economy, expand tourism infrastructure, and 
strengthen John Day’s position as a regional recreation hub. The RV park will generate 
sustained economic benefits through visitor spending and extended stays. 

• Goal 10 – Housing: Goal 10 requires cities to maintain an adequate supply of 
residential land to meet future housing needs. The John Day Housing and Community 
Development Analysis (Econorthwest, 2019) concludes that the City has sufficient 
residential land within the Urban Growth Boundary to accommodate projected housing 
needs through the 2040 planning horizon. The proposed rezone affects County-owned 
land adjacent to the Fairgrounds that is not currently developed or likely to develop for 
housing due to its location and ownership. No existing housing units are displaced, and 
the City retains a surplus of residentially zoned land. The rezone therefore does not 
diminish residential capacity and remains consistent with Goal 10. 

• Goal 11 – Public Facilities and Services: The proposed RV park will utilize existing 
City utilities and transportation facilities, consistent with the goal of providing orderly and 
efficient service delivery within the Urban Growth Boundary. 

• Goal 12 – Transportation: The rezone will not significantly affect the City’s 
transportation system. The site is located on a local street network with direct access to 
U.S. Highway 26, consistent with the City’s Transportation System Plan. See Staff 
Response under criterion specific to Transportation Planning Rule (TPR).  

• Goal 14 – Urbanization: The rezone promotes efficient urban land use within the 
existing Urban Growth Boundary by converting underutilized public land to a recreational 
and economic use that supports community needs. The change does not require 
expansion of the UGB and aligns with Goal 14’s emphasis on compact and efficient 
urban development. 

Conclusion: The proposed rezone to Parks Reserve is consistent with the applicable Oregon 
Statewide Planning Goals by promoting recreational and economic development opportunities, 
efficiently using existing infrastructure, maintaining adequate housing capacity, and providing orderly 
growth within the City’s Urban Growth Boundary. 

2. Approval of the request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: To address criterion #2 to determine whether the 
request is consistent with the John Day Comprehensive Plan, staff turn to a review and discussion of 
relevant Comprehensive Plan goals and policies.  

General Goals and Principles (pp. iii) 

• To retain and enhance the character and quality of the John Day Urban Area as 
growth and development occurs. 



12 
 

 

• To provide a sound basis for orderly and efficient urbanization by establishing 
proper relationships between residential, commercial, industrial, public and open 
land uses, and transportation uses. 

• To provide for a close correlation between the provision of urban services and 
urban development in order to bring about a more orderly and efficient 
development pattern. 

• To encourage and foster economic development in the community and to 
consider such a vital factor in the long-term overall development of the 
community. 

These goals support a balanced land use pattern and encourage economic development, which aligns 
with the concept of converting a portion of residential land to a recreational, revenue-generating public 
use (RV park). 

Economic Development Goals and Policies (pp. 47–49) 

Goals: 

• Improve existing City infrastructure to adequately meet present and future needs. 
• Maintain and create new job opportunities. 
• Capitalize on the increasing Visitor and Tourism industry in the coming years. 
• Encourage steady managed growth. 

Policies: 

• To diversify, stabilize, and improve the economy of the area. 
• To require that development plans are based on the best economic information 

available and take into account areas suitable for economic development, 
available resources, and livability. 

• To encourage and support industrial development and diversification. 
• To expand job opportunities and reduce unemployment, reduce out-migration of 

youth, and accommodate the growth of the county labor force. 
• To cluster commercial uses intended to meet the business needs of the area and 

highway travelers only in designated areas to prevent undesirable effects of spot 
zoning. 

These goals and policies directly support recreational, and visitor-serving uses such as RV parks, 
particularly since the project would enhance tourism and economic activity in Grant County. 

Public Facility and Parks Policies (pp. 39–40) 

Policies:  

• Planning and implementation of public facilities and service programs necessary 
for the public health, safety, and welfare shall guide and support urban 
development. 

• Public facilities and services provided shall take into consideration capacity of the 
air, land, and water resources of the urban area. 



13 
 

 

• Capital improvements programming and budgeting should be utilized to achieve 
desired types and levels of public facilities and services in the urban area. 

These emphasize coordination between new developments and existing infrastructure—relevant to 
siting an RV park with appropriate utilities and access. 

Land Use and Urbanization Policies (pp. 80–83) 

• Urban development shall be encouraged in areas where public services can be 
provided most efficiently and in a manner which will minimize costs related to 
necessary urban services such as schools, parks, streets, police, garbage 
disposal, fire protection, libraries, and other facilities and services. 

• Undeveloped areas in close proximity to urban services should be developed first 
as far as possible to facilitate the orderly and economic provision of public 
facilities. 

• Commercial development shall be concentrated in existing and designated areas 
to strengthen commercial activities. 

• It is vitally important that improvements within all developments be at a level 
commensurate with applicable City specifications, both inside and outside the City 
Limits. 

These support development of recreation or park facilities on land already served or easily serviceable 
by existing infrastructure, consistent with the proposed Parks Reserve zoning. 

Conclusion: As discussed above, the proposed rezone to Parks Reserve is consistent with the 
applicable Comprehensive Plan goals and policies, particularly, Economic Development, Public 
Facilities and Parks, and Land use and Urbanization. 

3. The property and affected area is presently provided with adequate public facilities, 
services and transportation networks to support the use, or such facilities, services and 
transportation networks are planned to be provided in the planning period; and  

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: The proposed RV site will utilize an extension of NW 
3rd Avenue for access. The existing site access will be removed and relocated westward, as shown 
on the site plan, with a new paved driveway approach. The development will include a 40-foot-wide 
paved driveway equipped with a gate keypad for guest entry, as well as a separate pedestrian access 
gate leading to a new crosswalk across 3rd Street. This crosswalk will connect the RV site to the 
existing gravel trail system adjacent to the John Day River, which is part of the City’s pedestrian trail 
network. 

A new utility pole will be installed near the driveway entrance. Utility improvements include a new 2-
inch water line and a 6-inch sewer line, which will connect to an existing stub within 3rd Street right-of-
way. 

Frontage improvements were recommended to be deferred by the Planning Commission under 
Revised Condition of Approval #4. It should be noted that if the City Council elects Option B for 3rd 
Street, Condition of Approval #4 shall be updated to reflect the change.  



14 
 

 

A more detailed analysis of transportation impacts and consistency with Statewide Planning Goal 12 
and the Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) will be provided in Staff’s review. 

4. The change is in the public interest with regard to neighborhood or community 
conditions, or corrects a mistake or inconsistency in the comprehensive plan map or 
zoning map regarding the property which is the subject of the application; and 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: The change in this case is the proposed zone change 
to reduce the portion of land on County property zoned residential and increase the amount of land 
zoned Parks Reserve, a zoning designation more consistent with a County and government use. There 
is no evidence on the record to suggest that the change is not in the public interest. The applicant held 
the required neighborhood meeting and answered any questions or concerns the public had. The 
Planning Commission found the zone change to be in the public interest during the October 22nd 
hearing.  

5. The amendment conforms to the Transportation Planning Rule provisions under 
Section 5-4.7.060. 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: The applicant submitted a Transportation Planning 
Rule (TPR) Study, prepared by DKS Associates (dated May 2, 2025), to evaluate potential 
transportation impacts associated with the proposed zone change of approximately 5.75 acres from 
Residential Limited (RL) to Park Reserve (PR) at the Grant County Fairgrounds site. The study 
analyzed trip generation under both the existing and proposed zoning designations based on the 
reasonable worst-case development scenarios. 

Under the current RL zoning, development could reasonably yield up to 40 single-family dwelling 
units, generating approximately 378 average weekday trips, 28 AM peak hour trips, and 38 PM peak 
hour trips. In contrast, under the proposed PR zoning, the study evaluated an RV park/campground 
scenario with 25 campsites (as depicted in Figure 1 – Site Plan for the Proposed RV Park), which 
would generate approximately 68 average weekday trips, 5 AM peak hour trips, and 7 PM peak hour 
trips. This represents a net decrease of 310 daily trips, 23 AM peak hour trips, and 31 PM peak hour 
trips. 

Because the proposed zoning will substantially reduce vehicle trip generation relative to what is 
permitted under existing zoning, the amendment will not alter the functional classification or 
performance of adjacent transportation facilities, nor will it result in levels of traffic inconsistent with the 
City’s Transportation System Plan. The proposed amendment therefore does not have a significant 
effect under OAR 660-012-0060 and is found to be in compliance with the Transportation Planning 
Rule (Goal 12). 

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.7.060_Transportation_Planning_Rule_Compliance


15 
 

 

 

Figure 5. Trip generation from traffic memo. 

Conclusion: As presented in this staff report, staff find that the criteria for a zone change are met. 
The Planning Commission found the zone change to be in the public interest. City Council should 
affirm this or reject this.  

 
Staff now turn to a review and discussion of the Site Design Review criteria.   



16 
 

 

6.   REVIEW OF SITE DESIGN REIVEW CRITIERIA.  
 
 5-4.2.060 Site Design Review – Approval Criteria.  

A. An application for Site Design Review shall be approved if the proposal meets all of 
the following criteria. The City decision making body may, in approving the application 
may impose reasonable conditions of approval, consistent with the applicable criteria: 
 

1. The application is complete, as determined in accordance with Chapter 5-4.1 – 
Types of Applications and Section 5-4.2.050, above.  
 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: The application was deemed complete for processing 
on September 11, 2025.  

 
2. The application complies with all of the applicable provisions of the underlying Land 
Use District (Article 5-2), including: building and yard setbacks, lot area and dimensions, 
density and floor area, lot coverage, building height, building orientation, architecture, 
and other applicable standards; 
 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Following successful rezone to a larger portion of the 
subject property Parks Reserve, the proposed use of an RV Park is a permitted commercial 
recreational use in the PR zone.  
 

3. The applicant shall be required to upgrade any existing development that does not 
comply with the applicable land use district standards, in conformance with Chapter 5-
5.2, Non-Conforming Uses and Development; 

 
Staff Response and Recommended Finding: There is no existing development on the subject 
property. The subject property is vacant and consists of bare ground. There are no non-conforming 
uses located on the subject property.  

 
4. The proposal complies with all of the Design Standards in Article 5-3: 

 
Staff Response and Recommended Finding: For a review and discussion of (4), Staff will provide a 
response for each Chapter described in (4)  to address compliance with Article 5-3.  

Chapter 5-3.1 - Access and Circulation; 

C. Access Permit Required. Access to a public street (e.g., a new curb cut or driveway 
approach) requires an Access Permit. An access permit may be in the form of a letter to the 
applicant, or it may be attached to a land use decision notice as a condition of approval. In 
either case, approval of an access permit shall follow the procedures and requirements of the 
applicable roadway authority, as determined through the review procedures in Article 5-4.  

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: A new driveway approach is proposed off 3rd Street, 
therefore, an access permit will be required (called a “right-of-way” permit). The applicant shall submit 
for and obtain a right-of-way permit before the City signs off on the building permit application form. 
Traffic access and control plans may be required as part of the permit review. This shall be a condition 
of approval.  

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=ARTICLE_5-2_LAND_USE_DISTRICTS
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-5.2_Non-Conforming_Uses_And_Developments
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-5.2_Non-Conforming_Uses_And_Developments
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=ARTICLE_5-3_COMMUNITY_DESIGN_STANDARDS
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=ARTICLE_5-4_ADMINISTRATION_OF_LAND_USE_AND_DEVELOPMENT


17 
 

 

 
Condition of Approval #3: A right-of-way permit shall be required for any work to be performed in 
City right-of-way. A traffic control plan may be required. A right-of-way permit application may be 
submitted to the City either prior to or concurrent with building permit submittal. 

 
D. Traffic Study Requirements. The City may require a traffic study prepared by a 
qualified professional to determine access, circulation, and other transportation 
requirements in conformance with Section 5-4.1.090, Traffic Impact Study.  
 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: City did not require a full traffic study, rather City 
required TPR Significant Effects Analysis to be conducted. A TRP Significant Effects Analysis is 
required by virtue of the proposed zone change. A Significant Effects Analysis ensures that the future 
land use and traffic growth from the new land use is consistent with the transportation system. As 
alluded to earlier, the zone change actually results in a net decrease in overall trips. 
 

E. Conditions of Approval. The City or other roadway authority, as applicable, may require 
the closing or consolidation of existing curb cuts or other vehicle access points, recording of 
reciprocal access easements (i.e., for shared driveways), development of a frontage street, 
installation of traffic control devices, and/or other mitigation as a condition of granting an 
access permit, to ensure the safe and efficient operation of the street and highway system. 
 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Chapter 5-3.1.020(E) authorizes the City to impose 
conditions of approval requiring the upgrading of transportation facilities impacted by development and 
having frontage on City rights-of-way. The subject property fronts the planned extension of 3rd Street, 
which currently lacks half-street improvements including curb, gutter, and sidewalk. These 
improvements are necessary to ensure safe pedestrian circulation and to support an interconnected 
street network consistent with City standards.  
 
Additionally, pursuant to Chapter 5-3.010(A)(1) and (3), the City may require dedication of ROW 
where needed to ensure adequate public facilities consistent with adopted street standards. Because 
no ROW width is recorded for this segment of 3rd Street, the existing legal ROW width is functionally 
zero feet. As discussed at the outset of this staff report, this presents an opportunity to correct the 
ROW record and establish the appropriate street width. The lingering question for City Council to 
determine is whose responsibility it is to correct the discrepancy.  
 
The Planning Commission recommended that the extension of 3rd Street be Option D for a Collector 
Street. However, since the Planning Commission’s determination on this matter on November 12, 
2025, the applicant has submitted new testimony debating that a better path forward for 3rd Avenue is 
Option B.  
 
There is no debating that the City has the authority to impose conditions of approval for upgrading 
transportation facilities as is cited in Chapter 5-3.1.020(E), however, Staff and applicant require City 
Council direction and determination on the matter of whether 3rd Avenue should reflect Option B or 
Option D. Depending on City Council’s selection, this will modify revised Condition of Approval #1. 
The Planning Commission has already recommended that frontage improvements (of whichever 
Option) be deferred.  
 
  

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.1.090_Traffic_Impact_Analysis


18 
 

 

A signed and recorded waiver of remonstrance may be triggered at any time by the City when a Local 
Improvement District (LID) is formed. A waiver of remonstrance does not prohibit a property owner 
from testifying in favor or opposition to the formation of a LID, but they do waive their right to object to 
the formation of a LID. Revised Condition of Approval #4 is written reflecting City Council’s selection of 
Option B. This may change upon City Council action during the hearing and shall be updated 
accordingly.  
 
Revised (12.3.25) Condition of Approval #4: Prior to issuance of a building permit, connection to 
City water or sewer service, or creation of a new access to 3rd Street—whichever occurs first—the 
Applicant shall sign and record a Waiver of Remonstrance as a guarantee for future frontage 
improvements along 3rd Avenue to address pedestrian safety and circulation. The City is imposing a 
condition of approval requiring construction of half-street improvements, including sidewalk, curb, and 
gutter, built to City standards and specifications as referenced in Table 5-3.4.010.F (Option B for a 
Collector Street). 
 
The rough proportionality of the required improvements corresponds to the length of the development 
frontage, approximately 535 feet along 3rd Street. Accordingly, half-street improvements consisting of 
sidewalk, curb, gutter, and bike-lane striping for the full ~535-foot frontage shall be required as a 
condition of approval. 
 
Chapter 5-3.2 - Landscaping, Significant Vegetation, Street Trees, Fences and Walls; 

5-3.2.020 Landscape Conservation.  

E. Construction; Erosion and Sediment Control. An erosion and sediment control plan is 
required for all new construction. All significant vegetation on a site that is not otherwise 
designated and approved by the City for removal shall be protected prior to, during, and after 
construction in accordance with a limit-of-clearing and grading plan approved by the City. The 
City may limit grading activities and operation of vehicles and heavy equipment in and around 
significant vegetation areas, streams and other water bodies to prevent erosion, pollution, or 
landslide hazards. 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: An erosion and control plan will be reviewed as part of 
the construction level review of the plans. Condition of Approval #5 is proposed for deletion. Applicants 
are hereby made aware an erosion and control plan shall accompany the final construction plans. 
Applicants are hereby made aware that providing a copy of their 1200-C or 1200-CA erosion control 
permit to the City will be required during construction plan review. 

Condition of Approval #5: A final erosion and sediment control plan will be required to be submitted 
before the City signs off on the City portion of the building permit application. 

5-3.2.030 Landscaping And Screening 

A. Applicability. This Section shall apply to all new developments requiring Site Design 
Review. The landscape standards may be modified in accordance with the Adjustment 
procedure in Section 5-4.2.060.B. The Planning Official may approve an adjustment to 
any standard in this section by up to 20%; the Planning Commission reviews larger 
adjustments.  

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.2.020_Landscape_Conservation
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.2.030_Landscaping_And_Screening
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.2.060_Site_Design_Review_-_Approval_Criteria;_Adjustments


19 
 

 

B. Landscaping Plan Required. A landscape plan is required. All landscape plans shall 
conform to the requirements in subsection 5-4.2.050B.5 (Landscape Plans).  

C. Landscape Area Standards. The minimum percentage of site area required to be in 
landscaping varies by zone. See the development standards in Article 5-2.  

D. Landscape Materials. Permitted landscape materials include trees, shrubs, ground cover 
plants, non-plant ground covers, and outdoor hardscape features, as described below. 
“Coverage” is based on the projected canopy cover of all plants upon maturity, i.e., 
typically three (3) or more years after planting.  

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Planning Commission accepted the proposed 
landscaping plan as is during the November 12, 2025, deliberations. This matter is resolved unless City 
Council rejects the Planning Commission’s recommendation.  

Condition of Approval #6: Final Landscape plan shall clearly show ground cover, tree size with a 
minimum diameter or caliper 4 feet above grade and shrubs shall be planted from a 5-gallon container 
or larger. Non-plant ground cover may be bark dust, chips, or similar mulch and shall cover all landscape 
surfaces not otherwise planted or covered.  

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.2.050_Site_Design_Review_-_Application_Submission_Requirements
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=ARTICLE_5-2_LAND_USE_DISTRICTS


20 
 

 

5-3.2.50 Fences And Walls 

A. General Requirements. All fences and walls placed within a required setback yard shall 
comply with the standards of this Section.  

1. The City may require installation of walls and/or fences as a condition of land use 
or development approval. (See also, Section 5-3.2.030 for screening 
requirements.)  

2. Except as provided under subsection 5-3.2.050(B), below, fences and walls placed 
within a required setback yard shall not exceed the following height above grade, 
where grade is measured from the base of the subject fence or wall: 

a.  Within front and street-facing yard setbacks, four (4) feet 
b. Within side and rear yard setbacks, six (6) feet  

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Regarding the requirement for fencing around 
proposed Swale “A,” the City cites Chapter 5-3.2.050 as the regulatory authority for imposing a 
condition to ensure public safety, particularly that of small children who may enter the swale area. In 
addition, staff reference the Oregon Department of Transportation Hydraulics Manual (April 2014), 
Safety Features for Treatment and Detention Facilities, which recommends fencing for detention or 
treatment areas where specific safety risks exist—such as proximity to residential areas, schools, or 
playgrounds—and where side slopes are steeper than 1V:3H or water depths exceed three feet for 
more than 24 hours. 

The applicant explains that Swale “A” is preliminary and that the final stormwater design, including the 
ultimate depth, is not yet determined. The three-foot depth currently shown on the plans is an 
estimate. The applicant also references several examples of unfenced infiltration areas in and around 
John Day, such as those at CCS, the Bank of Eastern Oregon, the Dollar General, and the John Day 
Fire Hall, and notes that fencing could interfere with snow-removal operations. 

Staff acknowledge these examples but note that those facilities are not located in areas where small 
children are typically present. In contrast, the proposed RV Park expansion is within a residential 
neighborhood and adjacent to the County Fairgrounds—locations where young children are expected 
to be present. Accordingly, staff maintain that fencing around Swale “A” is appropriate and consistent 
with both City code and state safety guidance. 

The Planning Commission discussed this matter and recommended requiring fencing only if the final 
stormwater design results in a depth greater than three feet. If the final design indicates a depth of 
three feet or less, fencing would not be required.  

 

 

 

 

 

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.2.050_Fences_And_Walls
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.2.030_Landscaping_And_Screeninghttps://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.2.030_Landscaping_And_Screening


21 
 

 

Table 5-3.3.030F – Parking Area Layout  

 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Judging by the parking detail seen on Sheet 3, the curb 
length is short 6”. The plan shows curb length at 8’. Applicant advised to revise and resubmit with 
building permit application plans for review and approval by the City Manager or their designee. The 
open record period submittals do not appear to address Condition of Approval #7, so it stays as is. Staff 
note, this should be an easy fix for the applicant to make on their plans and can be reviewed as part of 
construction review.  

Condition of Approval #7: Revise parking detail to show 8’ and 6” curb length rather than the 8’ 
currently shown on Sheet 3.  

Chapter 5-3.4 - Public Facilities 

5-3.4.10 Transportation Standards 

A. Development Standards and Criteria. Projects shall be required to meet the current standards 
in effect at the time an application is filed.  

1. Adequate Public Facilities. No development shall be approved unless adequate 
transportation facilities are available or improvements will be constructed and operational, 
as required by this Code, the John Day Transportation System Plan and the John Day 
Local Street Network Plan. If existing improvements leading to or serving the site are 
inadequate to handle anticipated loads, improvements are to be constructed and 
operational prior to the issuance of building permits or in conjunction with construction of 
the approved lots or parcels pursuant to financial assurance for the improvements or a 
written agreement with the City prior to final plat approval. Development resulting in 
increased traffic on a state highway shall meet the traffic operations standards per the 
current Oregon Highway Plan.  

3. Street Improvements. Streets within and adjacent to a development shall be improved in 
accordance with the City of John Day Transportation System Plan and the provisions of this 
Chapter. Development of new streets, including sidewalks, curbs, gutters, bicycle lanes, 
vehicle travel lanes, traffic control devices, and park strips, and additional right-of-way or 
street width or improvements planned as a portion of an existing street, shall be improved in 

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.010_Transportation_Standards


22 
 

 

accordance with this Chapter; and all public streets shall be dedicated to the applicable road 
authority upon the Public Works Director’s acceptance of said improvements; 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: The findings here will be influenced on the final outcome 
of City Council’s decision with respect to Condition of Approval #1 and #4. Staff will update this finding 
following City Council resolution on this matter.  

4. Access Improvements. All new streets, and driveways connecting to streets, shall be 
paved; driveways and driveway aprons shall be improved as required under Section 5-3.4.030 
and subject to approval by the Public Works Director. 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: The proposal does not involve the creation of new 
streets. However, the proposal does include a new driveway connection to 3rd Street and driveway 
apron. The access improvements can be reviewed as part of the right-of-way permit review. If the 
Planning Commission requires construction of frontage improvements concurrent with site 
development, Staff would recommend a condition of approval requiring the frontage improvements to 
be duly inspected before acceptance by the Public Works Director. If during the hearing Planning 
Commission does require construction of the frontage improvements, Staff will craft a condition of 
approval to that effect. For now, Condition of Approval #8 is proposed for deletion.  

Condition of Approval #8: New public improvements shall be duly inspected and accepted in writing 
by the City Manager or their designee. City will not accept public improvements until they have passed 
inspection.  

B. Guarantee. The City may accept a future improvement guarantee (e.g., cash, bond, and/or 
owner agreement not to object to the formation of a local improvement district in the future) in 
lieu of street improvements if one or more of the following conditions exist:  

1. A partial improvement would create a potential safety hazard to motorists or pedestrians;  
2. Due to the developed condition of adjacent properties it is unlikely that street 

improvements would be extended in the foreseeable future and the standard improvement 
associated with the project under review would not, by itself, provide increased street 
safety or capacity, or improved pedestrian circulation;  

3. The improvement would be in conflict with an adopted capital improvement plan; or  
4. The improvement is associated with an approved land partition and the proposed land 

partition does not create any new streets or result in increased transportation demand. 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Chapter 5-3.2.020(B) allows the City to accept a future 
improvement guarantee—such as cash, a bond, or an agreement not to object to the formation of a 
Local Improvement District (LID), in lieu of constructing required street improvements when certain 
conditions are met. A LID is a financing mechanism through which benefited property owners share in 
the cost of public improvements, such as street or sidewalk construction, through a special assessment. 
Property owners who sign a Waiver of Remonstrance agree not to oppose the formation of an LID in 
the future if such improvements are initiated by the City. 

This standard permit acceptance of a future improvement guarantee when the required conditions are 
found to be present. These conditions are listed above in the criteria. Staff reasonably believes that 
conditions (1) and (2) can be found to exist on the site: (1) construction of a partial improvement would 

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.030_Sanitary_Sewer_And_Water_Service_Improvements


23 
 

 

create a potential safety hazard to motorists or pedestrians; and (2) due to the developed condition of 
adjacent properties, it is unlikely that street improvements will be extended in the foreseeable future, 
and the improvements associated with the proposed development would not, by themselves, provide 
increased street safety, capacity, or pedestrian circulation. 

In their written narrative, the applicant explains that constructing sidewalk improvements concurrent with 
development would result in a disjointed pedestrian network because adjacent properties to the north 
and south lack sidewalks. As such, constructing sidewalks at this time would not improve pedestrian 
circulation or safety and could create inconsistent or isolated infrastructure. The applicant does not 
object to providing a future improvement guarantee in the form of a Waiver of Remonstrance. 

Based on discussions with the applicant and review of the applicable criteria, Staff finds that conditions 
#1 and #2 above are satisfied. Planning Commission recommended deferred improvements. City 
Council may modify this decision, but staff support a deferment of frontage improvements, only with 
agreement for the applicant to supply  a future improvement guarantee. Staff recognize the final 
outcome on this matter may result in modification to conditions of approval and shall be updated 
accordingly.  

K. Sidewalks, Planter Strips, Bicycle Lanes. Development shall be required to extend and 
improve sidewalks, planter strips, and bicycle lanes, as applicable, in conformance with the 
standards in Table 5-3.4.010, and pursuant to the City of John Day Transportation System Plan, 
John Day Local Street Network Plan, and/or the requirements of any other applicable roadway 
authority. The decision body may approve deferral of such improvements only as provided by 
Chapter 5-4.2 Site Design Review or Chapter 5-4.3 Land Divisions, as applicable. Maintenance of 
sidewalks and planter strips in the right-of-way is the continuing obligation of the adjacent property 
owner. 
 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Subsection (K) is another provision that requires 
development to provide sidewalks, planter strips, and bike lanes, as necessary. In this application, the 
City is requiring that the extension of 3rd Street, when frontage improvements are triggered, conform 
to the Collector Street standards, Option D OR B, as identified in Table 5-3.4.010F. This finding will 
need to be updated to reflect City Council’s decision.  
 

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.2_Land_Use_Review_And_Site_Design_Review
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.2_Land_Use_Review_And_Site_Design_Review


24 
 

 

 
Figure 6. Street standards. 

 
5-3.4.30 Sanitary Sewer And Water Service Improvements 

A. Sewers and Water Mains Required. Sanitary sewers and water mains shall be installed to 
serve each new development and to connect developments to existing mains in accordance 
with the City’s Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, Water System Master Plan, and applicable 
engineering requirements. When streets are required to be stubbed to the edge of the 
subdivision, sewer and water system improvements shall also be stubbed with the streets, 
except as may be waived by the Public Works Director when alternate alignment(s) are 
provided.  

B. Sewer and Water Plan Approval. Development permits for sewer and water improvements 
shall not be issued until the Public Works Director has approved all sanitary sewer and water 
plans in conformance with City standards.  

C. Over-Sizing. The City may require as a condition of development approval that sewer, water, 
and/or storm drainage systems serving new development be sized to accommodate future 
development within the area as projected by the applicable Water, Sewer, and/or Storm 
Drainage Master Plan, provided that the City may grant the developer credit toward any 
required system development charge for the same, or the City may authorize other cost-
recovery or cost-sharing methods, in conformance with Section 5-3.4.010D.  

D. Inadequate Facilities. Development permits may be restricted or rationed by the City where 
a deficiency exists in the existing water or sewer system that cannot be rectified by the 
development and which if not rectified will result in a threat to public health or safety, 
surcharging of existing mains, or violations of state or federal standards pertaining to 
operation of domestic water and sewerage treatment systems. The City may require water 
booster pumps or sanitary sewer lift stations be installed with backup power.  

E. Water Pressure. Above a certain elevation, where the City has limited ability to serve new 
development, a developer may be required to install a water storage reservoir and related 
infrastructure for required water flow pressure, consistent with adopted City master plans. 

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.030_Sanitary_Sewer_And_Water_Service_Improvements
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.010_Purpose_And_Applicability


25 
 

 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: The applicant’s final water and sewer plans will be 
required to show service connection details for construction permit review. Final water and sewer plans 
may be reviewed in detail during the construction review and permitting phase of the project at time of 
building permit plans submittal. 

Revised Condition of Approval #9: Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant’s final water 
and sewer plans will be required to show service connection details for construction permit review. Final 
water and sewer plans shall be reviewed in detail during the construction review process.  

Condition of Approval #9: Final water and sewer improvements plans shall be duly reviewed and 
approved by the City Manager or their designee before the City will sign off on the City portion of the 
building permit application form.  

5-3.4.040 Storm Drainage Improvements 

1. General Provisions. A development permit may be granted only when adequate provisions for 
storm water and flood water runoff have been assured (i.e., through plans and assurances 
approved by the City). See also, Section 5-3.4.090.  

2. Accommodation of Upstream Drainage. Culverts and other drainage facilities shall be large 
enough to accommodate existing and potential future runoff from the entire upstream drainage 
area, whether inside or outside the development. Such facilities shall be subject to review and 
approval by the Public Works Director.  

3. Effect on Downstream Drainage. The rate of stormwater runoff leaving a development site 
during and after development (post-development) shall not exceed the rate of stormwater runoff 
leaving the site before development (pre-development).  

4. Storm Drainage Analysis and Mitigation Required. The Public Works Director may require an 
applicant for development to provide a storm drainage analysis prepared by a qualified 
professional engineer registered in the State of Oregon to examine pre- and post-development 
stormwater runoff conditions and any required mitigation consistent with the City of John Day 
Stormwater Master Plan. Such analysis, at a minimum, shall quantify pre- and post-development 
runoff volumes and rates and propose mitigation based on stormwater management best 
practices, as specified by the Public Works Director. Such mitigation shall ensure that post-
development runoff rates do not exceed pre-development rates and necessary facilities are 
provided to protect public health, safety, and welfare. If upon reviewing the applicant’s storm 
drainage analysis, the Public Works Director determines that the stormwater runoff resulting from 
the development will overload any existing and/or proposed drainage facility, the City shall 
withhold approval of the development until provisions have been made for improvement of the 
potential adverse impacts.  

5. Over-Sizing. The City may require as a condition of development approval that any public storm 
drainage system serving new development be sized to accommodate future development 
upstream, provided that the City may grant the developer credit toward any required system 
development charge for the same, or the City may authorize other cost-recovery or cost-sharing 
methods, in conformance with Section 5-3.4.010D.  

6. Existing Watercourse. Where a watercourse, drainage way, channel, or stream traverses a 
proposed development there shall be provided a storm water easement or drainage right-of-way 
conforming substantially with the lines of such watercourse and such further width as will be 
adequate for conveyance and maintenance to protect the public health and safety. See also, 
Chapter 5-2.9 Flood Plain Overlay Zone.  

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.040_Storm_Drainage_Improvements
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.090_Performance_Guarantee_And_Warranty_Bond
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.010_Transportation_Standards
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-2.9_Flood_Plain_(FP)_Overlay


26 
 

 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: The applicant is proposing a series of infiltration swales 
to manage stormwater. The plans submitted indicate stormwater detention is proposed to manage runoff 
on site. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall receive approval of final storm drainage 
system design. Final review shall occur during the construction review process. 

Condition of Approval #10: Final stormwater plans shall receive approval from the Public Works 
Director, or their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit 
application form.  

5-3.4.050 Utilities 

1. Underground Utilities.  
1. Generally. All new utility lines including, but not limited to, those required for electric, 

communication, lighting, and cable television services and related facilities shall be placed 
underground, except for surface mounted transformers, surface mounted connection 
boxes and meter cabinets which may be placed above ground, temporary utility service 
facilities during construction, and high capacity electric lines operating at 50,000 volts or 
above. The City may require screening and buffering of above ground facilities to protect 
the public health, safety or welfare through Site Development Review.  

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Unless City Council rejects the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation on this matter, the applicant has received an exception to NOT place utilities 
underground and instead follow their proposal as is outlined at the outset of this staff report. This matter 
has been resolved.  

Condition of Approval #11: Final utility plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City Manager or 
their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit application form. 
Consistent with the code requirements, new utilities shall be placed underground.  

5-3.4.060 Easements 

1. Provision. The developer or applicant shall make arrangements with the City, the applicable 
district, and each utility franchise for the provision and dedication of utility easements necessary 
to provide full services to the development. The City's standard width for public main line utility 
easements shall be determined by the Public Works Director.  

2. Recordation. As determined by the Public Works Director, all easements for sewers, storm 
drainage and water quality facilities, water mains, electric lines, or other public utilities shall be 
recorded with the final plat. See Chapter 5-4.2, Site Design Review, and Chapter 5-4.3, Land 
Divisions. 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: The Planning Commission recommended Dyer 
Partnership be the duly appointed designee of the Public Works Director. Furthermore, as evidenced 
by the applicant’s December 2, 2025 submittal, the applicant does not object to providing a 20’ sewer 
easement as was requested by the City at the November 12, 2025 deliberations. This matter is 
resolved.  
 
Condition of Approval #12: All easements for sewers, storm drainage and water quality facilities, 
water mains, electrical lines, or any other public facilities shall be duly placed in an easement to the 

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.050_Utilities
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.060_Easements
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.2_Land_Use_Review_And_Site_Design_Review
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.3_Land_Divisions_And_Property_Line_Adjustments
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.3_Land_Divisions_And_Property_Line_Adjustments


27 
 

 

City. The City Manager or their designee shall have discretion in determining which improvements 
require easements to the City. In all cases, the duty to duly record any easements related to the 
proposal shall be the sole responsibility of the applicant and developer. Copies of all recorded 
documents shall be furnished to the City Manager. 
 
5-3.4.070 Construction Plan Approval 

1. Plan Approval and Permit. No public improvements, including sanitary sewers, storm sewers, 
streets, sidewalks, curbs, lighting, parks, or other requirements shall be undertaken except after 
the plans have been approved by the City, permit fee paid, and permit issued. The permit fee is 
required to defray the cost and expenses incurred by the City for construction and other services 
in connection with the improvement. The permit fee shall be set by City Council.  

2. Performance Guarantee. The City may require the developer or subdivider to provide bonding 
or other performance guarantees, to the City’s satisfaction, to ensure completion of required 
public improvements pursuant to Section 5-3.4.090. 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Construction plan review and approval will commence 
upon application following site design review and approval.  

Installation 

A. Conformance Required. Improvements installed by the developer either as a requirement of 
these regulations or at his/her own option, shall conform to the requirements of this Chapter, 
approved construction plans, and to improvement standards and specifications adopted by the 
City.  

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Improvements installed by the developer either as a 
requirement of these regulations or at their own option, shall conform to approved construction plans.  

B. Adopted Installation Standards. The City of John Day may adopt design standards, criteria 
and specifications for public improvements as well as private utility installation within the public 
right-of-way; until such standards are adopted, project designs shall conform to the 
recommendations of the Public Works Director.  

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: While there are no public improvements involved in this 
development if the frontage improvements are deferred, private installation of utilities within public ROW 
shall conform to adopted design standards and specifications.  

C. Commencement. Work in a public right-of-way shall not begin until all applicable agency permits 
have been approved and issued.  

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Refer to Condition of Approval #3 stating a right-of-way 
permit is required. A DEQ 1200C NPDES permit will be required because the project involves greater 
than an acre of land.  

D. Resumption. If work is discontinued for more than one month, it shall not be resumed until the 
City is notified in writing.  

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.070_Construction_Plan_Approval
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.090_Performance_Guarantee_And_Warranty_Bond
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.080_Installation


28 
 

 

E. City Inspection. Improvements shall be constructed under the inspection and to the satisfaction 
of the City. The City may require minor changes in typical sections and details if unusual 
conditions arising during construction warrant such changes in the public interest. Modifications 
to the approved design requested by the developer may be subject to review under Chapter 5-
4.6, Modifications to Approved Plans and Conditions of Approval. Any monuments that are 
disturbed before all improvements are completed by the subdivider shall be replaced prior to final 
acceptance of the improvements.  

F. Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans. A registered civil engineer shall provide written 
certification in a form required by the City that all improvements, workmanship, and materials are 
in accord with current and standard engineering and construction practices, conform to approved 
plans and conditions of approval, and are of high grade, prior to City acceptance of the public 
improvements, or any portion thereof, for operation and maintenance. The developer’s engineer 
shall also provide 2 set(s) of “as-built” plans, in conformance with the Public Works Director’s 
specifications, for permanent filing with the City. The Public Works Director may require the 
developer or subdivider to provide a warranty bond or other assurance pursuant to Section 5-
3.4.090. 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans shall be 
provided to City for improvements that pertain to public improvements.   

Revised Condition of Approval #13: Prior to connection to City water or City sewer system, Engineer’s 
Certification and As-Built Plans shall be provided to City for improvements that pertain to public 
improvements.   

Condition of Approval #13: An Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans shall be provided to the City 
Manager or their designee prior to the first day of operation of the RV Park.  

5-3.4.90 Performance Guarantee And Warranty Bond 

A. Performance Guarantee Required. The City at its discretion may approve a final plat or 
building permit when it determines that at least 75 percent of the public improvements 
required for the land division or phase thereof are complete and the applicant has an 
acceptable assurance for the balance of said improvements. The applicant shall provide a 
bond issued by a surety authorized to do business in the State of Oregon, irrevocable letter 
of credit from a surety or financial institution acceptable to the City, cash, or other form of 
security acceptable to the City.  

B. Determination of Sum. The assurance of performance shall be for a sum determined by the 
City as required to cover the cost of the improvements and repairs, including related 
engineering and incidental expenses, plus reasonable inflationary costs (110% of estimated 
improvement costs, as prepared by a qualified civil engineer).  

C. Itemized Improvement Estimate. The developer shall furnish to the City an itemized 
improvement estimate, certified by a registered civil engineer, to assist the City in calculating 
the amount of the performance assurance.  

D. Agreement. A written agreement between the City and developer shall be recorded with the 
final plat. The agreement shall not be valid until it is signed and dated by both the applicant 
and City Planning Official. The agreement shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:  

a. The period within which all required improvements and repairs shall be completed;  

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.6_Modifications_To_Approved_Plans_And_Conditions_Of_Approval
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.6_Modifications_To_Approved_Plans_And_Conditions_Of_Approval
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.090_Performance_Guarantee_And_Warranty_Bond
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.090_Performance_Guarantee_And_Warranty_Bond
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.090_Performance_Guarantee_And_Warranty_Bond


29 
 

 

b. A provision that if work is not completed within the period specified, the City may 
complete the work and recover the full cost and expenses from the applicant;  

c. The improvement fees and deposits that are required;  
d. (Optional) A provision for the construction of the improvements in stages and for the 

extension of time under specific conditions therein stated in the contract.  

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: If there are no frontage improvements then there will 
be no need for a performance guarantee or warranty bond. 

Informational Item #1: Staff recommend that the City Manager and the applicant enter into an 
Improvement Agreement that clearly outlines the required public improvements, identifies the party 
responsible for their construction, and establishes a timeline for completion. 

G. Warranty Bond. A warranty bond good for two (2) years is required on all public improvements 
and landscaping when installed in the public right-of-way. The warranty bond shall equal fifteen 
percent (15%) of the total cost of improvements and begin upon acceptance of said 
improvements by the City. 

Staff Response and Recommended Finding: If there are no frontage improvements then there will 
be no need for a performance guarantee or warranty bond. 

Condition of Approval #14: Before commencement of construction activities on the subject property, 
a Performance Guarantee shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee.  

Condition of Approval #15: Warranty Bond shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee 
at time of formal acceptance of public improvements.   

7.  STAFF RECOMMENDATION.  

Staff recommend that the City Council approve and accept the Planning Commission’s 
recommendations on all matters addressed at the outset of the staff report. Two remaining items 
require City Council action in order to finalize these findings and issue a decision and final order: 

1. Responsibility for correcting the ROW discrepancy and formally recording the documents 
establishing the extension of 3rd Avenue as City right-of-way; and 

2. Determination of the appropriate Collector Street option for the extension of 3rd Avenue. 
The two options are Option B (the applicant’s proposal) or Option D (the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation). 

Staff are fully supportive of Option B; however, staff strongly encourage adoption of Option B with 
the Trail Route so that pedestrian access and circulation are permanently preserved on the north 
side of 3rd Avenue, and the existing trail system is secured within an access easement granted by the 
Grant County Fairgrounds to the City of John Day. 

Furthermore, the zone change requires adoption of an ordinance formally amending the John Day 
Zoning Map. Staff propose that the ordinance approving the applicant’s requested zone change 
clearly state that the City of John Day does not currently have the cartographic capability to prepare 



30 
 

 

and issue an updated zoning map, but is in the process of obtaining such capability. The WHEREAS 
statements in the ordinance should reflect this limitation. 

As a temporary measure, staff recommend that the ordinance proceed with WHEREAS clauses 
explaining that a new zoning map will be adopted once the City has the means to produce one. For 
purposes of implementing the RV Park zone change, the functional zoning map will be the applicant-
provided map illustrating the revised designations for the property. 

Once the updated zoning map is officially drafted, it will be brought back to the City Council for 
adoption and will incorporate this and any previous zone changes not reflected on the current map. 

8.  CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.  

Revised Condition of Approval #1: Prior to issuance of a building permit, connecting to City water or sewer 
service, or creating a new access to 3rd Street, whichever occurs first, Applicant must take action(s) 
satisfactory to City to establish or correct the delineation of the 3rd Street right-of-way through the subject 
property such that it is 40 62 feet in width and none of applicant’s improvements (other than permitted utility 
connections) are located within the right-of-way.  Action may include dedicating right-of-way and/or filing 
petitions for vacation of right-of-way and/or street legalization process first brought up by the applicant’s 
surveyor. A 40 62’ ROW corresponds with Option B D for a Collector Street as adopted in Table 5-3.4.101F, 
Minimum Street, Sidewalk and Bikeway Standards. Condition of Approval #1 is tied to Chapter 5-3.4.101(A)(1) 
& (3), Adequate Public Facilities and Street Improvements. With the choice of Option B for the ROW for 3rd 
Street comes the need to obtain a formal trail easement to comply with the Local Street Network Plan for 
pedestrian travel on the north side of 3rd Street. To that end, as a condition development, Grant County 
Fairgrounds shall provide the City of John Day an access easement covering the existing trail network that 
generally begins near the southwestern corner of Map and Tax Lot 13S-31E-23-01300 and continues 
northward through said parcel to the northwestern corners and terminates at two points on Bridge Street, as 
outlined in graphical form in Figure 4.2, Existing trails and open spaces, of the John Day Innovation Gateway 
Plan. See Figure 4.2 included in this revised Condition of Approval #1 on December 3, 2025. Terms of access 
easement can be iterated on between Grant County Fairgrounds and John Day City Council, but shall be 
executed and recorded prior to the same terms as listed at the outset of this condition.  
 
Condition of Approval #2: As a condition of approval, the City will require the applicant to verify the 
exact boundaries of the easement, confirm the as-built location of all associated storm pipes, and, if 
necessary, record an updated easement to accurately reflect the as-built conditions. City will not sign 
off on the building permit application form until Condition of Approval #2 is completed to the City’s 
satisfaction. 
 
Condition of Approval #3: A right-of-way permit shall be required for any work to be performed in 
City right-of-way. A traffic control plan may be required. A right-of-way permit application may be 
submitted to the City either prior to or concurrent with building permit submittal. 
 
Revised (12.3.25) Condition of Approval #4: Prior to issuance of a building permit, connection to 
City water or sewer service, or creation of a new access to 3rd Street—whichever occurs first—the 
Applicant shall sign and record a Waiver of Remonstrance as a guarantee for future frontage 
improvements along 3rd Avenue to address pedestrian safety and circulation. The City is imposing a 
condition of approval requiring construction of half-street improvements, including sidewalk, curb, and 
gutter, built to City standards and specifications as referenced in Table 5-3.4.010.F (Option B for a 
Collector Street). 
 



31 
 

 

The rough proportionality of the required improvements corresponds to the length of the development 
frontage, approximately 535 feet along 3rd Street. Accordingly, half-street improvements consisting of 
sidewalk, curb, gutter, and bike-lane striping for the full ~535-foot frontage shall be required as a 
condition of approval. 
 

 
Condition of Approval #4: To address pedestrian safety and circulation, the City is imposing a 
condition of approval requiring construction of half-street improvements, including sidewalk, curb, and 
gutter, built to City standards and specifications. The rough proportionality of the required 
improvements corresponds to the length of the development frontage, approximately 535 feet along 
3rd Street. Accordingly, half-street improvements consisting of sidewalk, curb, and gutter along this 
~535-foot frontage shall be a condition of approval. 
 

Condition of Approval #5: A final erosion and sediment control plan will be required to be submitted 
before the City signs off on the City portion of the building permit application. 

Condition of Approval #6: Final Landscape plan shall clearly show ground cover, tree size with a 
minimum diameter or caliper 4 feet above grade and shrubs shall be planted from a 5-gallon container 
or larger. Non-plant ground cover may be bark dust, chips, or similar mulch and shall cover all landscape 
surfaces not otherwise planted or covered. 

Condition of Approval #7: Revise parking detail to show 8’ and 6” curb length rather than the 8’ 
currently shown on Sheet 3.  

Condition of Approval #8: New public improvements shall be duly inspected and accepted in writing 
by the City Manager or their designee. City will not accept public improvements until they have passed 
inspection.  

Condition of Approval #9: Final water and sewer improvements plans shall be duly reviewed and 
approved by the City Manager or their designee before the City will sign off on the City portion of the 
building permit application form.  

Condition of Approval #10: Final stormwater plans shall receive approval from the Public Works 
Director, or their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit 
application form.  

Condition of Approval #11: Final utility plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City Manager or 
their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit application form. 
Consistent with the code requirements, new utilities shall be placed underground.  

Condition of Approval #12: All easements for sewers, storm drainage and water quality facilities, 
water mains, electrical lines, or any other public facilities shall be duly placed in an easement to the 
City. The City Manager or their designee shall have discretion in determining which improvements 
require easements to the City. In all cases, the duty to duly record any easements related to the 
proposal shall be the sole responsibility of the applicant and developer. Copies of all recorded 
documents shall be furnished to the City Manager. 



32 
 

 

Revised Condition of Approval #13: Prior to connection to City water or City sewer system, Engineer’s 
Certification and As-Built Plans shall be provided to City for improvements that pertain to public 
improvements.   

Condition of Approval #13: An Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans shall be provided to the City 
Manager or their designee prior to the first day of operation of the RV Park.  

Condition of Approval #14: Before commencement of construction activities on the subject property, 
a Performance Guarantee shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee.  

Condition of Approval #15: Warranty Bond shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee 
at time of formal acceptance of public improvements.   

Condition of Approval #16: Staff recommend Planning Commission require a fence around Swale “A” 
for public safety and because of the depth of water being approximately 3’.   

Informational Item #1: Staff recommend that the City Manager and the applicant enter into an 
Improvement Agreement that clearly outlines the required public improvements, identifies the party 
responsible for their construction, and establishes a timeline for completion. 

Informational Item #1: Please be aware of the two additional comments contained in the City 
Engineer’s memorandum. These two comments are presented in order to ensure a smooth and 
expedient review of your project.  

Informational Item #2: The applicant has been aware that a floodplain development permit is required 
before construction can commence. Staff re-informed the applicant of this need via email on October 
23. Staff suggested the applicant and their design team begin working on the required Habitat Mitigation 
Assessment that must accompany floodplain development permits as a result of FEMA’s imposition of 
the Pre-Implementation Compliance Measures to address No Net Loss of habitat.  

 

7. NEW ATTACHMENTS to THIS STAFF REPORT.  
 
 
A – PC Packet for October 22nd Hearing 
B – PC Packet for November 12th Deliberations  
C – PC Meeting Minutes  
D – Applicant Submittal, December 2, 2025  

 



1 
 

 

1 

 

 
STAFF REPORT  

Zone Change and Site Design Review  
Grant County Fairgrounds Expansion  

PAPA 25-01  

Date Submitted: October 15, 2025  

Agenda Date Requested: October 22, 2025   

To: John Day Planning Commission   

From: Henry Hearley, Associate 
Planner, Lane Council of 
Governments  

Subject: Staff report for PAPA 25-01  

Location: Tax Lot 01300 on Map 13S-31E-23 

Published Notice: October 1 & October 8, 2025  

Type of Action Requested 
 

[ ] Resolution [ ] Ordinance 

[ X ] Formal Action 
(recommendation) 

[ ] Report 
Only 

 

1. BACKGROUND.  
Applicant: Mindy Winegar, Grant County Fairgrounds Manager  
Request: To change the zoning of a portion of the property to increase the amount of property 
zoned Park Reserve and reduce the amount zoned Residential Limited. And Site Design 
Review to expand the Grant County RV Park by adding 25 new short-term RV spaces on the 
subject property. The two applications are being processed concurrently and because the 
application involves a zone change, the application type has been elevated to Type IV review 
by the Planning Commission and City Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

1

EXHIBIT A



2 
 

 

 
Remaining Issues to be Addressed Prior to City Council Approval.  
Issue #1 Right-of-Way Discrepancy  
 
The applicant has provided a title report, as requested by the City, to assist in reviewing the 
right-of-way (ROW) issues. Upon review, City staff identified that the existing 1996 ROW legal 
description contains an incorrect bearing, which has caused previously noted discrepancies 
and must be corrected. It also appears that the 1996 ROW description remains in effect. 

Related to the ROW issue, the applicant is requesting to vacate the southern 30 feet of ROW 
along 3rd Street. If approved, the ROW vacation shall be recorded after the corrected ROW 
description so that the updated legal description takes precedence. If approved, the vacation of 
the southern 30’ of ROW along 3rd Street can occur via a recording of the new legal 
description.  

Staff recommend that the City Council grant conditional approval of the Site Design Review if 
the applicant demonstrates documented progress toward resolving Issue #1. However, the City 
will not sign the building permit application until this issue is fully corrected to the City’s 
satisfaction. 

Condition of Approval #1: City will not sign off the building permit application form until the 
right-of-way is discrepancy is resolved to the City’s satisfaction. Applicant may receive City 
Council final approval of the application prior to meeting Condition of Approval #1.  

Issue #2 Storm Drainage Easement  

Staff’s review of the title report also identified a recorded storm drainage easement (1995, 
Instrument No. 950789), which appears to generally correspond with the storm pipe located on 
the west side of the subject property as described by City staff. However, it appears the 
easement may not extend to the end of the storm pipe at the street. The legal description also 
references a northeasterly extension toward the river from the northwestern corner of the 
property, though the City is uncertain whether any existing pipe is located there. 

As a condition of approval, the City will require the applicant to verify the exact boundaries of 
the easement, confirm the as-built location of all associated storm pipes, and, if necessary, 
record an updated easement to accurately reflect the as-built conditions. 

Condition of Approval #2: As a condition of approval, the City will require the applicant to 
verify the exact boundaries of the easement, confirm the as-built location of all associated 
storm pipes, and, if necessary, record an updated easement to accurately reflect the as-built 
conditions. City will not sign off on the building permit application form until Condition of 
Approval #2 is completed to the City’s satisfaction.   

2



3 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Discretionary Items. Through staff’s review and the writing of this 
staff report, Staff have noted a couple standards that require the Planning Commission’s review 
and consideration to determine whether the standard is met, does not apply or can be waived 
or modified, at the Planning Commission discretion.  

Item #1: Should a 6’ tall fence be allowed around the entirety of the site?  An exception may be 
granted if it does not pose hazard to public health or safety and is compatible with existing 
structures in the vicinity. 

Item #2: Is the applicant’s off-street parking plan to provide three off-street parking spaces, with 
one space being ADA acceptable?  

Item #3: This item is twofold: 

1. Determine which use category an RV Park falls under for purposes of applying off-street 
parking and bicycle parking standards; and 

2. If applicable, determine the required number of bicycle parking spaces consistent with the 
standards in Table 5-3.3.030A. 

 
Public Process: 
Notice of the public hearing was duly published in the newspaper on 10/1/25 and 10/8/25 . In 
addition, Grant County Fairgrounds held the required neighborhood meeting on 3/17/25.  

3



4 
 

 

 
 
 
Subject Property: 

 
Figure 1. Subject property. 

 
2. PROPOSAL. As introduced above, the applicant is seeking to reduce the amount of land 
zoned Residential Limited and increase the amount of land zoned Parks Reserve. A zoning 
designation of Parks Reserve better fits the Fairgrounds needs, and the property is owned and 
operate by the Fairgrounds. A zoning designation of Parks Reserve will permit for the 
development of a RV park. The amount of land zoned Residential Limited will be reduced and 
will primarily be along the southwestern proportion of the property where there are existing 
homes. See Figure 2 below for the applicant’s proposal for the rezoning of the property and by 
how much for each zone. The second part of the proposal is for site design review. Site design 
review will look at the development of 25 new RV spaces for short-term use and act as an 
extension to the Fairground’s current RV park. Site improvements include power, water, and 
sanitary sewer to each new RV pad, and a common bathroom and laundry facility for guests 

4



5 
 

 

use. Frontage improvements along the property’s frontage along the extension of 3rd Street will 
be triggered and imposed by the City in the form of sidewalk, curb, and gutter. The amount of 
frontage improvements to be imposed will be the length of the actual development site – not the 
entirety of the frontage all the way from 3rd Street, up the hill to where 3rd Street meets Highway 
26, which is approximately 535’. This will be discussed further in this staff report. The property 
also lies in the regulated floodplain, so the floodplain development code will be triggered by this 
development, and the development must comply with floodplain development regulations. 
Review of the floodplain development application will occur post land use review and approval.  
 

 
Figure 2. Zone change proposal. 

5



6 
 

 

 
Figure 3. Site development proposal. 

 
3.  REVIEW OF ZONE CHANGE CRITERIA. The criteria for a zone change are contained 
in John Day Development Chapter 5-4.7, Land Use District Map and Text Amendments. The 
criteria for a zone change are as follows: 
 

B. Criteria for Quasi-Judicial Amendments. A recommendation or a decision to approve, 
approve with conditions or to deny an application for a quasi-judicial amendment shall be 
based on all of the following criteria:  

1. Approval of the request is consistent with the Statewide Planning Goals;  

Staff Response: Approval of the request is consistent with the Oregon Statewide Planning 
Goals. The proposal seeks to rezone County-owned property to decrease the area zoned 
Residential Limited and increase the area zoned Parks Reserve to support the development of 
a public RV park. The rezone and proposed use align with the applicable Statewide Planning 
Goals as follows: 

Approval of the request is consistent with the Oregon Statewide Planning Goals. The proposal 
seeks to rezone County-owned property to decrease the area zoned Residential Limited and 
increase the area zoned Parks Reserve to support the development of a public RV park 

6



7 
 

 

adjacent to the Grant County Fairgrounds. The rezone and proposed use align with the 
following applicable Statewide Planning Goals: 

  Goal 1 – Citizen Involvement: The City provides notice and opportunities for public 
comment consistent with its acknowledged citizen involvement program. Review of this 
request includes mailed and published notice, a public hearing before the Planning 
Commission, and the opportunity for written and oral testimony. 

 Goal 2 – Land Use Planning: The amendment is supported by an adequate factual 
base and is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The rezone maintains 
internal consistency between the zoning map and the Comprehensive Plan’s Parks and 
Open Space designations and implements the City’s policy direction to expand 
recreational opportunities and tourism-based economic development. 

 Goal 5 – Open Spaces, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Natural Resources: The 
proposed RV park enhances public access and recreational opportunities near the John 
Day River and Fairgrounds area while maintaining floodplain functionality and avoiding 
adverse impacts to significant natural features. 

 Goal 8 – Recreational Needs: The project directly supports Goal 8 by increasing and 
diversifying recreation and tourism amenities. The Parks Reserve designation allows the 
development of an RV park that will serve visitors attending events at the Fairgrounds 
and other community venues, supporting local tourism and outdoor recreation consistent 
with the City’s long-term recreation strategy. 

 Goal 9 – Economic Development: The proposal supports Goal 9 by promoting visitor-
serving uses that contribute to the local economy, expand tourism infrastructure, and 
strengthen John Day’s position as a regional recreation hub. The RV park will generate 
sustained economic benefits through visitor spending and extended stays. 

 Goal 10 – Housing: Goal 10 requires cities to maintain an adequate supply of 
residential land to meet future housing needs. The John Day Housing and Community 
Development Analysis (Econorthwest, 2019) concludes that the City has sufficient 
residential land within the Urban Growth Boundary to accommodate projected housing 
needs through the 2040 planning horizon. The proposed rezone affects County-owned 
land adjacent to the Fairgrounds that is not currently developed or likely to develop for 
housing due to its location and ownership. No existing housing units are displaced, and 
the City retains a surplus of residentially zoned land. The rezone therefore does not 
diminish residential capacity and remains consistent with Goal 10. 

 Goal 11 – Public Facilities and Services: The proposed RV park will utilize existing 
City utilities and transportation facilities, consistent with the goal of providing orderly and 
efficient service delivery within the Urban Growth Boundary. 

 Goal 12 – Transportation: The rezone will not significantly affect the City’s 
transportation system. The site is located on a local street network with direct access to 
U.S. Highway 26, consistent with the City’s Transportation System Plan. See Staff 
Response under criterion specific to Transportation Planning Rule (TPR).  

 Goal 14 – Urbanization: The rezone promotes efficient urban land use within the 
existing Urban Growth Boundary by converting underutilized public land to a recreational 
and economic use that supports community needs. The change does not require 
expansion of the UGB and aligns with Goal 14’s emphasis on compact and efficient 
urban development. 

7



8 
 

 

Conclusion: The proposed rezone to Parks Reserve is consistent with the applicable Oregon 
Statewide Planning Goals by promoting recreational and economic development opportunities, 
efficiently using existing infrastructure, maintaining adequate housing capacity, and providing 
orderly growth within the City’s Urban Growth Boundary. 

2. Approval of the request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; 

Staff Response: To address criterion #2 to determine whether the request is consistent with the 
John Day Comprehensive Plan, staff turn to a review and discussion of relevant Comprehensive 
Plan goals and policies.  

General Goals and Principles (pp. iii) 

 To retain and enhance the character and quality of the John Day Urban Area as 
growth and development occurs. 

 To provide a sound basis for orderly and efficient urbanization by establishing 
proper relationships between residential, commercial, industrial, public and open 
land uses, and transportation uses. 

 To provide for a close correlation between the provision of urban services and 
urban development in order to bring about a more orderly and efficient 
development pattern. 

 To encourage and foster economic development in the community and to 
consider such a vital factor in the long-term overall development of the 
community. 

These goals support a balanced land use pattern and encourage economic development, 
which aligns with the concept of converting a portion of residential land to a recreational, 
revenue-generating public use (RV park). 

Economic Development Goals and Policies (pp. 47–49) 

Goals: 

 Improve existing City infrastructure to adequately meet present and future needs. 
 Maintain and create new job opportunities. 
 Capitalize on the increasing Visitor and Tourism industry in the coming years. 
 Encourage steady managed growth. 

Policies: 

 To diversify, stabilize, and improve the economy of the area. 
 To require that development plans are based on the best economic information 

available and take into account areas suitable for economic development, 
available resources, and livability. 

 To encourage and support industrial development and diversification. 
 To expand job opportunities and reduce unemployment, reduce out-migration of 

youth, and accommodate the growth of the county labor force. 

8



9 
 

 

 To cluster commercial uses intended to meet the business needs of the area and 
highway travelers only in designated areas to prevent undesirable effects of spot 
zoning. 

These goals and policies directly support recreational, and visitor-serving uses such as RV 
parks, particularly since the project would enhance tourism and economic activity in Grant 
County. 

Public Facility and Parks Policies (pp. 39–40) 

Policies:  

 Planning and implementation of public facilities and service programs necessary 
for the public health, safety, and welfare shall guide and support urban 
development. 

 Public facilities and services provided shall take into consideration capacity of the 
air, land, and water resources of the urban area. 

 Capital improvements programming and budgeting should be utilized to achieve 
desired types and levels of public facilities and services in the urban area. 

These emphasize coordination between new developments and existing infrastructure—
relevant to siting an RV park with appropriate utilities and access. 

Land Use and Urbanization Policies (pp. 80–83) 

 Urban development shall be encouraged in areas where public services can be 
provided most efficiently and in a manner which will minimize costs related to 
necessary urban services such as schools, parks, streets, police, garbage 
disposal, fire protection, libraries, and other facilities and services. 

 Undeveloped areas in close proximity to urban services should be developed first 
as far as possible to facilitate the orderly and economic provision of public 
facilities. 

 Commercial development shall be concentrated in existing and designated areas 
to strengthen commercial activities. 

 It is vitally important that improvements within all developments be at a level 
commensurate with applicable City specifications, both inside and outside the City 
Limits. 

These support development of recreation or park facilities on land already served or easily 
serviceable by existing infrastructure, consistent with the proposed Parks Reserve zoning. 

Conclusion: As discussed above, the proposed rezone to Parks Reserve is consistent with the 
applicable Comprehensive Plan goals and policies, particularly, Economic Development, Public 
Facilities and Parks, and Land use and Urbanization.   

9



10 
 

 

3. The property and affected area is presently provided with adequate public facilities, 
services and transportation networks to support the use, or such facilities, services and 
transportation networks are planned to be provided in the planning period; and  

Staff Response: The proposed RV site will utilize an extension of NW 3rd Avenue for access. 
The existing site access will be removed and relocated westward, as shown on the site plan, 
with a new paved driveway approach. The development will include a 40-foot-wide paved 
driveway equipped with a gate keypad for guest entry, as well as a separate pedestrian access 
gate leading to a new crosswalk across 3rd Street. This crosswalk will connect the RV site to 
the existing gravel trail system adjacent to the John Day River, which is part of the City’s 
pedestrian trail network. 

A new utility pole will be installed near the driveway entrance. Utility improvements include a 
new 2-inch water line and a 6-inch sewer line, which will connect to an existing stub within 3rd 
Street right-of-way. 

Currently, the site frontage along the 3rd Street extension lacks half-street improvements such 
as sidewalk, curb, and gutter. As a condition of development, the City will require the applicant 
to construct half-street improvements along the project’s 535-foot frontage. This requirement 
represents the City’s standard of rough proportionality for development impacts. 

The 3rd Street extension currently includes a 120-foot-wide right-of-way. The applicant is 
proposing to vacate the southern 30 feet, reducing the total width to 90 feet. According to the 
City’s Transportation System Plan, 3rd Street is classified as a Collector, and a 90-foot right-
way is considered sufficient for this classification. 

Details of the requested vacation need to be worked out yet. Staff and applicant will have a 
more to report on this matter by the City Council hearing.  

A more detailed analysis of transportation impacts and consistency with Statewide Planning 
Goal 12 and the Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) will be provided in Staff’s review. 

4. The change is in the public interest with regard to neighborhood or community 
conditions, or corrects a mistake or inconsistency in the comprehensive plan map or 
zoning map regarding the property which is the subject of the application; and 

Staff Response: The change in this case is the proposed zone change to reduce the portion of 
land on County property zoned residential and increase the amount of land zoned Parks Reserve, 
a zoning designation more consistent with a County and government use. There is no evidence 
on the record to suggest that the change is not in the public interest. The applicant held the 
required neighborhood meeting and answered any questions or concerns the public had. The 
Planning Commission and City Council will have to determine if this criterion is met. Typically, 
when this type of criterion applies, Staff have seen this criterion being met if the application is 
approved, and conversely, if the Planning Commission or City Council find this criterion is not 
met, then obviously the change is not in the public interest. Staff will have to defer to the Planning 
Commission and City Council for their discretion in determining whether the change is in the 
public interest. The Planning Commission acts as the City’s Citizen Involvement Committee (CIC) 
for precisely these matters.  

10



11 
 

 

5. The amendment conforms to the Transportation Planning Rule provisions under 
Section 5-4.7.060. 

Staff Response: The applicant submitted a Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) Study, 
prepared by DKS Associates (dated May 2, 2025), to evaluate potential transportation impacts 
associated with the proposed zone change of approximately 5.75 acres from Residential 
Limited (RL) to Park Reserve (PR) at the Grant County Fairgrounds site. The study analyzed 
trip generation under both the existing and proposed zoning designations based on the 
reasonable worst-case development scenarios. 

Under the current RL zoning, development could reasonably yield up to 40 single-family 
dwelling units, generating approximately 378 average weekday trips, 28 AM peak hour trips, 
and 38 PM peak hour trips. In contrast, under the proposed PR zoning, the study evaluated an 
RV park/campground scenario with 25 campsites (as depicted in Figure 1 – Site Plan for the 
Proposed RV Park), which would generate approximately 68 average weekday trips, 5 AM 
peak hour trips, and 7 PM peak hour trips. This represents a net decrease of 310 daily trips, 23 
AM peak hour trips, and 31 PM peak hour trips. 

Because the proposed zoning will substantially reduce vehicle trip generation relative to what is 
permitted under existing zoning, the amendment will not alter the functional classification or 
performance of adjacent transportation facilities, nor will it result in levels of traffic inconsistent 
with the City’s Transportation System Plan. The proposed amendment therefore does not have 
a significant effect under OAR 660-012-0060 and is found to be in compliance with the 
Transportation Planning Rule (Goal 12). 

 

Figure 4. Table 5 from the TPR Study shows a net decrease in vehicle trips. 

Conclusion: As presented in this staff report, staff find that the criteria for a zone change are met. 
However, there is one criterion that staff cannot objectively evaluate, as it pertains to whether the 
proposal is in the best interest of the public. The Planning Commission and City Council must 
determine whether the proposal serves the public interest. If the Planning Commission and City 
Council approve the proposal, this criterion can be considered met. Conversely, if the proposal is 
denied, this criterion may be cited as justification for the denial. 
 
Staff now turn to a review and discussion of the Site Design Review criteria.   

11



12 
 

 

4. REVIEW OF SITE DESIGN REIVEW CRITIERIA.  
 
 5-4.2.060 Site Design Review – Approval Criteria.  

A. An application for Site Design Review shall be approved if the proposal meets all of 
the following criteria. The City decision making body may, in approving the application 
may impose reasonable conditions of approval, consistent with the applicable criteria: 
 

1. The application is complete, as determined in accordance with Chapter 5-4.1 – 
Types of Applications and Section 5-4.2.050, above.  
 

Staff Response: The application was deemed complete for processing on September 11, 2025. 
Staff agreed to move the application forward with the hearings process knowing that Issue #1 and 
Issue #2 still need to be addressed.  
 

2. The application complies with all of the applicable provisions of the underlying Land 
Use District (Article 5-2), including: building and yard setbacks, lot area and dimensions, 
density and floor area, lot coverage, building height, building orientation, architecture, 
and other applicable standards; 
 

Staff Response: Following successful rezone to a larger portion of the subject property Parks 
Reserve, the proposed use of an RV Park is a permitted commercial recreational use in the PR 
zone.  

 
3. The applicant shall be required to upgrade any existing development that does not 

comply with the applicable land use district standards, in conformance with Chapter 5-
5.2, Non-Conforming Uses and Development; 

 
Staff Response: There is no existing development on the subject property. The subject property 
is vacant and consists of bare ground. There are no non-conforming uses located on the subject 
property.  
 

4. The proposal complies with all of the Design Standards in Article 5-3: 
 

Staff Response: For a review and discussion of (4), Staff will provide a response for each 
Chapter described in (4)  to address compliance with Article 5-3.  

Chapter 5-3.1 - Access and Circulation; 

C. Access Permit Required. Access to a public street (e.g., a new curb cut or driveway 
approach) requires an Access Permit. An access permit may be in the form of a letter to the 
applicant, or it may be attached to a land use decision notice as a condition of approval. In 
either case, approval of an access permit shall follow the procedures and requirements of the 
applicable roadway authority, as determined through the review procedures in Article 5-4.  

Staff Response: A new driveway approach is proposed off 3rd Street, therefore, an access 
permit will be required (called a “right-of-way” permit). The applicant shall submit for and obtain a 
right-of-way permit before the City signs off on the building permit application form. Traffic access 

12



13 
 

 

and control plans may be required as part of the permit review. This shall be a condition of 
approval.  
 
Condition of Approval #3: A right-of-way permit shall be required for any work to be performed 
in City right-of-way. A traffic control plan may be required.  
 

D. Traffic Study Requirements. The City may require a traffic study prepared by a 
qualified professional to determine access, circulation, and other transportation 
requirements in conformance with Section 5-4.1.090, Traffic Impact Study.  
 

Staff Response: City did not require a full traffic study, rather City required TPR Significant Effects 
Analysis to be conducted. A TRP Significant Effects Analysis is required by virtue of the proposed 
zone change. A Significant Effects Analysis ensures that the future land use and traffic growth from 
the new land use is consistent with the transportation system. As alluded to earlier, the zone change 
actually results in a net decrease in overall trips. Refer to Figure 4.  
 

E. Conditions of Approval. The City or other roadway authority, as applicable, may require 
the closing or consolidation of existing curb cuts or other vehicle access points, recording of 
reciprocal access easements (i.e., for shared driveways), development of a frontage street, 
installation of traffic control devices, and/or other mitigation as a condition of granting an 
access permit, to ensure the safe and efficient operation of the street and highway system. 
 

Staff Response: Chapter 5-3.1.020(E) authorizes the City to impose conditions of approval requiring 
the upgrading of transportation systems impacted by development and having frontage on City rights-
of-way. The extension of 3rd Street currently lacks half-street improvements along the property 
frontage. To address pedestrian safety and circulation, the City is imposing a condition of approval 
requiring construction of half-street improvements, including sidewalk, curb, and gutter, built to City 
standards and specifications. The rough proportionality of the required improvements corresponds to 
the length of the development frontage, approximately 535 feet along 3rd Street. Accordingly, half-
street improvements consisting of sidewalk, curb, and gutter along this 535-foot frontage shall be a 
condition of approval. 
 
Condition of Approval #4: To address pedestrian safety and circulation, the City is imposing a 
condition of approval requiring construction of half-street improvements, including sidewalk, curb, and 
gutter, built to City standards and specifications. The rough proportionality of the required 
improvements corresponds to the length of the development frontage, approximately 535 feet along 
3rd Street. Accordingly, half-street improvements consisting of sidewalk, curb, and gutter along this 
~535-foot frontage shall be a condition of approval. 
 
Chapter 5-3.2 - Landscaping, Significant Vegetation, Street Trees, Fences and Walls; 

5-3.2.020 Landscape Conservation.  

E. Construction; Erosion and Sediment Control. An erosion and sediment control plan is 
required for all new construction. All significant vegetation on a site that is not otherwise 
designated and approved by the City for removal shall be protected prior to, during, and after 
construction in accordance with a limit-of-clearing and grading plan approved by the City. The 
City may limit grading activities and operation of vehicles and heavy equipment in and around 

13



14 
 

 

significant vegetation areas, streams and other water bodies to prevent erosion, pollution, or 
landslide hazards. 

Staff Response: A final erosion and sediment control plan will be required to be submitted before the 
City signs off on the City portion of the building permit application. This shall be a condition of approval.  

Condition of Approval #5: A final erosion and sediment control plan will be required to be submitted 
before the City signs off on the City portion of the building permit application. 

5-3.2.030 Landscaping And Screening 

A. Applicability. This Section shall apply to all new developments requiring Site Design 
Review. The landscape standards may be modified in accordance with the Adjustment 
procedure in Section 5-4.2.060.B. The Planning Official may approve an adjustment to 
any standard in this section by up to 20%; the Planning Commission reviews larger 
adjustments.  

B. Landscaping Plan Required. A landscape plan is required. All landscape plans shall 
conform to the requirements in subsection 5-4.2.050B.5 (Landscape Plans).  

C. Landscape Area Standards. The minimum percentage of site area required to be in 
landscaping varies by zone. See the development standards in Article 5-2.  

D. Landscape Materials. Permitted landscape materials include trees, shrubs, ground cover 
plants, non-plant ground covers, and outdoor hardscape features, as described below. 
“Coverage” is based on the projected canopy cover of all plants upon maturity, i.e., 
typically three (3) or more years after planting.  

Staff Response: Per the applicant’s narrative, each dividing area between RV sites will include a 
minimum of two trees, with additional trees planted around the perimeter of the site inside the proposed 
fencing. The trees will be a mix of spring- and fall-blooming species (such as redbud, dogwood, maple, 
and oak). At the time of planting, tree heights will range from 4 to 6 feet. Proposed tree locations are 
shown on Sheet 2. The applicant’s landscape proposal is sufficient for preliminary approval, but a final 
and more detailed landscape plan shall be submitted to the City before the City signs off the building 
permit application. Landscape plans shall clearly show ground cover, tree size with a minimum diameter 
or caliper 4 feet above grade and shrubs shall be planted from a 5-gallon container or larger. Non-plant 
ground cover may be bark dust, chips, or similar mulch and shall cover all landscape surfaces not 
otherwise planted or covered. This shall be a condition of approval.  

Condition of Approval #6: Final Landscape plan shall clearly show ground cover, tree size with a 
minimum diameter or caliper 4 feet above grade and shrubs shall be planted from a 5-gallon container 
or larger. Non-plant ground cover may be bark dust, chips, or similar mulch and shall cover all landscape 
surfaces not otherwise planted or covered.  

14



15 
 

 

5-3.2.50 Fences And Walls 

A. General Requirements. All fences and walls placed within a required setback yard shall 
comply with the standards of this Section.  

1. The City may require installation of walls and/or fences as a condition of land use 
or development approval. (See also, Section 5-3.2.030 for screening 
requirements.)  

2. Except as provided under subsection 5-3.2.050(B), below, fences and walls placed 
within a required setback yard shall not exceed the following height above grade, 
where grade is measured from the base of the subject fence or wall: 

a.  Within front and street-facing yard setbacks, four (4) feet 
b. Within side and rear yard setbacks, six (6) feet  

Staff Response: As seen on Sheet 02, a 6’ black chain fence is proposed around the perimeter of the 
site, similar to the photo below, as provided by the applicant and similar to existing fences on the 
Fairground property. The maximum height of a fence in the front and street-facing side yard setback is 
4’. The applicant is proposing a 6’ fence around the entirety of the site. Typically, fences are required to 
be shorter height in the front and street side yards due to vision clearance, however, vision clearance 
is not so much an issue with this property as the site is setback 20’ from the street and there is no other 
development along 3rd Street, and the only ingress and egress is via a new paved approach that will 
have a gate controlling access. Staff do not have any issues with permitting a 6’ fence around the 
entirety of the site, but the Planning Commission must approve this deviation.  

B. Exceptions and Adjustments. 

5. The Planning Commission, through a Type II Site Design Review, may approve a fence 
or wall exceeding the height limits of this Chapter. In approving such applications, the 
Planning Commission must find that the proposed fence or wall is necessary to buffer 
road noise, to protect the privacy of residents, or to mitigate adverse impacts of adjacent 
land uses, and does not pose a hazard to public health or safety. The Planning 
Commission shall also consider whether the proposed fence design (materials, color, 
detailing, etc.) is compatible with existing structures in the vicinity.  

Staff Response: (B)(5) as cited directly above in Exceptions and Adjustments, allows the Planning 
Commission through a Type II Site Design Review to approve a fence exceeding the height limits of this 
Chapter. The application is being processed as a Type IV review, so the Type IV exceeds what would 
be normally required under a Type II review. Planning Commission should consider whether permitting 
a 6’ fence around the entirety of the site does not pose a hazard to public health or safety and whether 
the proposed height is compatible with existing structures in the vicinity.  

Item #1 for Planning Commission Consideration: Should a 6’ tall fence be allowed around the 
entirety of the site?  An exception may be granted if it does not pose hazard to public health or safety 
and is compatible with existing structures in the vicinity.  

 

15



16 
 

 

 

Figure 5. Example of type of fence proposed. 

5-3.3 Parking and Loading  

5-3.3.30 Automobile Parking Standards 

A. Vehicle Parking - Minimum Standards by Use. The number of required off-street vehicle 
parking spaces shall be determined in accordance with the standards in Table 5-3.3.030A, 
or alternatively, through a separate parking demand analysis prepared by the applicant 
and subject to a Type II Land Use Review (or Type III review if the request is part of an 
application that is already subject to Type III review). Where a use is not specifically listed 
in this table, parking requirements are determined by finding that a use is similar to one of 
those listed in terms of parking needs, or by estimating parking needs individually using 
the demand analysis option described above. Parking that counts toward the minimum 
requirement is parking in garages, carports, parking lots, bays along driveways, City-
approved shared parking, and designated on-street parking when approved by the City. 
There is no minimum number of off-street parking required in the CBD district; however, 
new development and changes in use in the CBD shall be subject to a Downtown Parking 
District fee upon City adoption of a Downtown Parking District (or similar) ordinance. 
Where such Parking District applies, parking fees shall be calculated using the minimum 
parking ratios in Table 5-3.3.030A, below, or as established by City Ordinance.  
 
Table 5-3.3.030A – Minimum Required Parking by Use  

 

 

16



17 
 

 

 

Staff Response: Table 5-3.3.030A does not identify a specific parking minimum for outdoor 
recreational commercial uses. Instead, it directs that off-street parking minimums be determined 
through the conditional use permit process. The Site Design Review process, in essence, serves the 
same purpose as the conditional use process, and a conditional use review would not be appropriate 
for a use that is permitted outright. Therefore, staff find it more suitable for the minimum off-street 
parking requirements to be reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission, as would also occur 
under the conditional use process. 

An RV park use is distinct from traditional commercial uses that generate frequent customer turnover 
or retail traffic. In effect, the entire RV park functions as parking, specifically for RVs. Nonetheless, the 
applicant proposes three off-street parking spaces to serve the guest bathroom and laundry facility, 
one of which will be ADA-accessible. Given that RVs (and sometimes the vehicles that tow them) will 
already be parked at each individual site, staff consider the proposed number of additional off-street 
parking spaces appropriate to accommodate visitors or park staff. The Planning Commission should 
review and consider the applicant’s off-street parking proposal. 

Applicant is proposing three off-street parking spaces. One of the three is an ADA space.  

Item #2 for Planning Commission Consideration: 

Is the applicant’s off-street parking plan to provide three off-street parking spaces, with one space 
being ADA acceptable?  

Table 5-3.3.030F – Parking Area Layout  

 

Staff Response: Judging by the parking detail seen on Sheet 3, the curb length is short 6”. The plan 
shows curb length at 8’. Applicant advised to revise and resubmit with building permit application plans 
for review and approval by the City Manager or their designee.  

Condition of Approval #7: Revise parking detail to show 8’ and 6” curb length rather than the 8’ 
currently shown on Sheet 3.  

17



18 
 

 

 

Staff Response: Bicycle parking is not shown on any sheets. Per Chapter 5-3.3.040, Bicycle Parking 
Standards, Table 5-3.3.040, Parks (active recreation areas only), shall provide eight bicycle parking 
spaces, as required by the City. In this case, “the City” shall be the reviewing body for Site Desing 
Review, which is the Planning Commission.  

Item #3 – Planning Commission Consideration: 
This item is twofold: 

3. Determine which use category an RV Park falls under for purposes of applying off-street 
parking and bicycle parking standards; and 

4. If applicable, determine the required number of bicycle parking spaces consistent with 
the standards in Table 5-3.3.030A. 

Chapter 5-3.4 - Public Facilities 

5-3.4.10 Transportation Standards 

A. Development Standards and Criteria. Projects shall be required to meet the current standards 
in effect at the time an application is filed.  

1. Adequate Public Facilities. No development shall be approved unless adequate 
transportation facilities are available or improvements will be constructed and operational, 
as required by this Code, the John Day Transportation System Plan and the John Day 
Local Street Network Plan. If existing improvements leading to or serving the site are 
inadequate to handle anticipated loads, improvements are to be constructed and 
operational prior to the issuance of building permits or in conjunction with construction of 
the approved lots or parcels pursuant to financial assurance for the improvements or a 
written agreement with the City prior to final plat approval. Development resulting in 
increased traffic on a state highway shall meet the traffic operations standards per the 
current Oregon Highway Plan.  

18



19 
 

 

3. Street Improvements. Streets within and adjacent to a development shall be improved in 
accordance with the City of John Day Transportation System Plan and the provisions of this 
Chapter. Development of new streets, including sidewalks, curbs, gutters, bicycle lanes, 
vehicle travel lanes, traffic control devices, and park strips, and additional right-of-way or 
street width or improvements planned as a portion of an existing street, shall be improved in 
accordance with this Chapter; and all public streets shall be dedicated to the applicable road 
authority upon the Public Works Director’s acceptance of said improvements; 

Staff Response: As noted earlier in this staff report, the frontage of the subject property along 3rd 
Street does not currently include half-street improvements. The City is requiring the applicant to 
construct half-street improvements as a condition of approval. These improvements must be roughly 
proportional to the proposed development, extending the full length of the project frontage along 3rd 
Street, which is approximately 535 feet. This has already been included in this staff report as a condition 
of approval.  

4. Access Improvements. All new streets, and driveways connecting to streets, shall be 
paved; driveways and driveway aprons shall be improved as required under Section 5-3.4.030 
and subject to approval by the Public Works Director. 

Staff Response: Any new public improvements shall be duly inspected and accepted in writing by the 
City Manager or their designee. Public improvements will not be turned over to the City without first 
inspecting all public improvements. This shall be a condition of approval.  

Condition of Approval #8: New public improvements shall be duly inspected and accepted in writing 
by the City Manager or their designee. City will not accept public improvements until they have passed 
inspection.  

B. Guarantee. The City may accept a future improvement guarantee (e.g., cash, bond, and/or 
owner agreement not to object to the formation of a local improvement district in the future) in 
lieu of street improvements if one or more of the following conditions exist:  

1. A partial improvement would create a potential safety hazard to motorists or pedestrians;  
2. Due to the developed condition of adjacent properties it is unlikely that street 

improvements would be extended in the foreseeable future and the standard improvement 
associated with the project under review would not, by itself, provide increased street 
safety or capacity, or improved pedestrian circulation;  

3. The improvement would be in conflict with an adopted capital improvement plan; or  
4. The improvement is associated with an approved land partition and the proposed land 

partition does not create any new streets or result in increased transportation demand. 

Staff Response: Staff do not find any of the four criteria above triggered for the City to consider 
accepting a future improvement agreement. The proposed use creates pedestrian traffic on day one of 
operation of the proposed RV Park. The half-street improvements required are needed to address 
pedestrian circulation and safety.   

19



20 
 

 

 

K. Sidewalks, Planter Strips, Bicycle Lanes. Development shall be required to extend and 
improve sidewalks, planter strips, and bicycle lanes, as applicable, in conformance with the 
standards in Table 5-3.4.010, and pursuant to the City of John Day Transportation System Plan, 
John Day Local Street Network Plan, and/or the requirements of any other applicable roadway 
authority. The decision body may approve deferral of such improvements only as provided by 
Chapter 5-4.2 Site Design Review or Chapter 5-4.3 Land Divisions, as applicable. Maintenance of 
sidewalks and planter strips in the right-of-way is the continuing obligation of the adjacent property 
owner. 
 
Staff Response: Subsection (K) is another provision that requires development to provide 
sidewalks, planter strips, and bike lanes, as necessary. In the case of this application, the City is 
requiring half-street improvements along the frontage of the property for the length of the 
development, which is approximately 535’.  
 

5-3.4.30 Sanitary Sewer And Water Service Improvements 

A. Sewers and Water Mains Required. Sanitary sewers and water mains shall be installed to 
serve each new development and to connect developments to existing mains in accordance 
with the City’s Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, Water System Master Plan, and applicable 
engineering requirements. When streets are required to be stubbed to the edge of the 
subdivision, sewer and water system improvements shall also be stubbed with the streets, 
except as may be waived by the Public Works Director when alternate alignment(s) are 
provided.  

B. Sewer and Water Plan Approval. Development permits for sewer and water improvements 
shall not be issued until the Public Works Director has approved all sanitary sewer and water 
plans in conformance with City standards.  

C. Over-Sizing. The City may require as a condition of development approval that sewer, water, 
and/or storm drainage systems serving new development be sized to accommodate future 
development within the area as projected by the applicable Water, Sewer, and/or Storm 
Drainage Master Plan, provided that the City may grant the developer credit toward any 
required system development charge for the same, or the City may authorize other cost-
recovery or cost-sharing methods, in conformance with Section 5-3.4.010D.  

D. Inadequate Facilities. Development permits may be restricted or rationed by the City where 
a deficiency exists in the existing water or sewer system that cannot be rectified by the 
development and which if not rectified will result in a threat to public health or safety, 
surcharging of existing mains, or violations of state or federal standards pertaining to 
operation of domestic water and sewerage treatment systems. The City may require water 
booster pumps or sanitary sewer lift stations be installed with backup power.  

E. Water Pressure. Above a certain elevation, where the City has limited ability to serve new 
development, a developer may be required to install a water storage reservoir and related 
infrastructure for required water flow pressure, consistent with adopted City master plans. 

Staff Response: The development involves the addition of new water and sewer improvements. Each 
RV site will have sewer and water connections. Sewer and water improvement plans are subject to 
review, revision, and approval by the City Manager or their designee. Final water and sewer 
improvement plans shall be submitted to the Concurrent with the building permit application form. The 

20



21 
 

 

City will not sign off on the City portion of the building permit application form until the water and sewer 
plans have been duly reviewed and approved by the City Manager or their designee. This shall be a 
condition of approval.  

Condition of Approval #9: Final water and sewer improvements plans shall be duly reviewed and 
approved by the City Manager or their designee before the City will sign off on the City portion of the 
building permit application form.  

5-3.4.040 Storm Drainage Improvements 

1. General Provisions. A development permit may be granted only when adequate provisions for 
storm water and flood water runoff have been assured (i.e., through plans and assurances 
approved by the City). See also, Section 5-3.4.090.  

2. Accommodation of Upstream Drainage. Culverts and other drainage facilities shall be large 
enough to accommodate existing and potential future runoff from the entire upstream drainage 
area, whether inside or outside the development. Such facilities shall be subject to review and 
approval by the Public Works Director.  

3. Effect on Downstream Drainage. The rate of stormwater runoff leaving a development site 
during and after development (post-development) shall not exceed the rate of stormwater runoff 
leaving the site before development (pre-development).  

4. Storm Drainage Analysis and Mitigation Required. The Public Works Director may require an 
applicant for development to provide a storm drainage analysis prepared by a qualified 
professional engineer registered in the State of Oregon to examine pre- and post-development 
stormwater runoff conditions and any required mitigation consistent with the City of John Day 
Stormwater Master Plan. Such analysis, at a minimum, shall quantify pre- and post-development 
runoff volumes and rates and propose mitigation based on stormwater management best 
practices, as specified by the Public Works Director. Such mitigation shall ensure that post-
development runoff rates do not exceed pre-development rates and necessary facilities are 
provided to protect public health, safety, and welfare. If upon reviewing the applicant’s storm 
drainage analysis, the Public Works Director determines that the stormwater runoff resulting from 
the development will overload any existing and/or proposed drainage facility, the City shall 
withhold approval of the development until provisions have been made for improvement of the 
potential adverse impacts.  

5. Over-Sizing. The City may require as a condition of development approval that any public storm 
drainage system serving new development be sized to accommodate future development 
upstream, provided that the City may grant the developer credit toward any required system 
development charge for the same, or the City may authorize other cost-recovery or cost-sharing 
methods, in conformance with Section 5-3.4.010D.  

6. Existing Watercourse. Where a watercourse, drainage way, channel, or stream traverses a 
proposed development there shall be provided a storm water easement or drainage right-of-way 
conforming substantially with the lines of such watercourse and such further width as will be 
adequate for conveyance and maintenance to protect the public health and safety. See also, 
Chapter 5-2.9 Flood Plain Overlay Zone.  

Staff Response: The applicant is proposing a series of infiltration swales to manage stormwater. The 
plans submitted indicate stormwater detention is proposed to manage runoff on site. Final stormwater 
management plans shall be submitted for review and approval and are subject to revision at the 
discretion of the City Manager or their designee. Final stormwater plans shall receive approval from the 

21



22 
 

 

City Manager or their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit 
application form. This shall be a condition of approval.  

Condition of Approval #10: Final stormwater plans shall receive approval from the City Manager or 
their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit application form.  

5-3.4.050 Utilities 

1. Underground Utilities.  
1. Generally. All new utility lines including, but not limited to, those required for electric, 

communication, lighting, and cable television services and related facilities shall be placed 
underground, except for surface mounted transformers, surface mounted connection 
boxes and meter cabinets which may be placed above ground, temporary utility service 
facilities during construction, and high capacity electric lines operating at 50,000 volts or 
above. The City may require screening and buffering of above ground facilities to protect 
the public health, safety or welfare through Site Development Review.  

Staff Response: As seen on Sheet 2, a new power pole is proposed. The site, and each RV site will 
be provided with electric service. A new power conduit line is shown on Sheet 2. All new utilities shall 
be placed underground in accordance with Chapter 5-3.4.050. This shall be a condition of approval.  

Condition of Approval #11: Final utility plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City Manager or 
their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit application form. 
Consistent with the code requirements, new utilities shall be placed underground.  

5-3.4.060 Easements 

1. Provision. The developer or applicant shall make arrangements with the City, the applicable 
district, and each utility franchise for the provision and dedication of utility easements necessary 
to provide full services to the development. The City's standard width for public main line utility 
easements shall be determined by the Public Works Director.  

2. Recordation. As determined by the Public Works Director, all easements for sewers, storm 
drainage and water quality facilities, water mains, electric lines, or other public utilities shall be 
recorded with the final plat. See Chapter 5-4.2, Site Design Review, and Chapter 5-4.3, Land 
Divisions. 

Staff Response: All easements for sewers, storm drainage and water quality facilities, water mains, 
electrical lines, or any other public facilities shall be duly placed in an easement to the City. The City 
Manager or their designee shall have discretion in determining which improvements require 
easements to the City. In all cases, the duty to duly record any easements related to the proposal 
shall be the sole responsibility of the applicant and developer. Copies of all recorded documents shall 
be furnished to the City Manager.  
 
Condition of Approval #12: All easements for sewers, storm drainage and water quality facilities, 
water mains, electrical lines, or any other public facilities shall be duly placed in an easement to the 
City. The City Manager or their designee shall have discretion in determining which improvements 
require easements to the City. In all cases, the duty to duly record any easements related to the 

22



23 
 

 

proposal shall be the sole responsibility of the applicant and developer. Copies of all recorded 
documents shall be furnished to the City Manager. 
 
5-3.4.070 Construction Plan Approval 

1. Plan Approval and Permit. No public improvements, including sanitary sewers, storm sewers, 
streets, sidewalks, curbs, lighting, parks, or other requirements shall be undertaken except after 
the plans have been approved by the City, permit fee paid, and permit issued. The permit fee is 
required to defray the cost and expenses incurred by the City for construction and other services 
in connection with the improvement. The permit fee shall be set by City Council.  

2. Performance Guarantee. The City may require the developer or subdivider to provide bonding 
or other performance guarantees, to the City’s satisfaction, to ensure completion of required 
public improvements pursuant to Section 5-3.4.090. 

Staff Response: Consistent with Chapter 5-3.4.070, Construction Plan Approval, no public 
improvements, including sanitary sewers, storm sewers, streets, sidewalks, curbs, and lighting, shall be 
undertaken until improvement plans are duly reviewed and approved by the City Manager or their 
designee.  

5-3.4.80 Installation 

A. Conformance Required. Improvements installed by the developer either as a requirement of 
these regulations or at his/her own option, shall conform to the requirements of this Chapter, 
approved construction plans, and to improvement standards and specifications adopted by the 
City.  

B. Adopted Installation Standards. The City of John Day may adopt design standards, criteria 
and specifications for public improvements as well as private utility installation within the public 
right-of-way; until such standards are adopted, project designs shall conform to the 
recommendations of the Public Works Director.  

C. Commencement. Work in a public right-of-way shall not begin until all applicable agency permits 
have been approved and issued.  

D. Resumption. If work is discontinued for more than one month, it shall not be resumed until the 
City is notified in writing.  

E. City Inspection. Improvements shall be constructed under the inspection and to the satisfaction 
of the City. The City may require minor changes in typical sections and details if unusual 
conditions arising during construction warrant such changes in the public interest. Modifications 
to the approved design requested by the developer may be subject to review under Chapter 5-
4.6, Modifications to Approved Plans and Conditions of Approval. Any monuments that are 
disturbed before all improvements are completed by the subdivider shall be replaced prior to final 
acceptance of the improvements.  

F. Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans. A registered civil engineer shall provide written 
certification in a form required by the City that all improvements, workmanship, and materials are 
in accord with current and standard engineering and construction practices, conform to approved 
plans and conditions of approval, and are of high grade, prior to City acceptance of the public 
improvements, or any portion thereof, for operation and maintenance. The developer’s engineer 
shall also provide 2 set(s) of “as-built” plans, in conformance with the Public Works Director’s 
specifications, for permanent filing with the City. The Public Works Director may require the 

23



24 
 

 

developer or subdivider to provide a warranty bond or other assurance pursuant to Section 5-
3.4.090. 

Staff Response: Consistent with Chapter 5-3.4.080, Installation, and as reiterated throughout this staff 
report, all public improvements shall be inspected, and an Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans 
shall be provided to the City Manager or their designee prior to the first day of operation of the RV Park. 
This shall be a condition of approval.  

Condition of Approval #13: An Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans shall be provided to the City 
Manager or their designee prior to the first day of operation of the RV Park.  

5-3.4.90 Performance Guarantee And Warranty Bond 

A. Performance Guarantee Required. The City at its discretion may approve a final plat or 
building permit when it determines that at least 75 percent of the public improvements 
required for the land division or phase thereof are complete and the applicant has an 
acceptable assurance for the balance of said improvements. The applicant shall provide a 
bond issued by a surety authorized to do business in the State of Oregon, irrevocable letter 
of credit from a surety or financial institution acceptable to the City, cash, or other form of 
security acceptable to the City.  

B. Determination of Sum. The assurance of performance shall be for a sum determined by the 
City as required to cover the cost of the improvements and repairs, including related 
engineering and incidental expenses, plus reasonable inflationary costs (110% of estimated 
improvement costs, as prepared by a qualified civil engineer).  

C. Itemized Improvement Estimate. The developer shall furnish to the City an itemized 
improvement estimate, certified by a registered civil engineer, to assist the City in calculating 
the amount of the performance assurance.  

D. Agreement. A written agreement between the City and developer shall be recorded with the 
final plat. The agreement shall not be valid until it is signed and dated by both the applicant 
and City Planning Official. The agreement shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:  

a. The period within which all required improvements and repairs shall be completed;  
b. A provision that if work is not completed within the period specified, the City may 

complete the work and recover the full cost and expenses from the applicant;  
c. The improvement fees and deposits that are required;  
d. (Optional) A provision for the construction of the improvements in stages and for the 

extension of time under specific conditions therein stated in the contract.  

Staff Response: City and applicant have not discussed an improvement agreement that outlines all 
there required public improvements and when they shall be completed, but Staff think it prudent for the 
City Manager to consider for the best interest of both City and applicant so there is clear direction on 
what improvements are required of the applicant and when. Staff can aide City Manager in drafting an 
improvement agreement to be signed and executed between City and applicant. Staff will leave this as 
an informational item for the City Manager to consider.  

Informational Item #1: Staff recommend that the City Manager and the applicant enter into an 
Improvement Agreement that clearly outlines the required public improvements, identifies the party 
responsible for their construction, and establishes a timeline for completion. 

24



25 
 

 

G. Warranty Bond. A warranty bond good for two (2) years is required on all public improvements 
and landscaping when installed in the public right-of-way. The warranty bond shall equal fifteen 
percent (15%) of the total cost of improvements and begin upon acceptance of said 
improvements by the City. 

Staff Response: Before commencement of construction activities on the subject property, a 
Performance Guarantee shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee. Relatedly, a Warranty 
Bond shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee at time of formal acceptance of public 
improvements. These shall be conditions of approval.  

Condition of Approval #14: Before commencement of construction activities on the subject property, 
a Performance Guarantee shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee.  

Condition of Approval #15: Warranty Bond shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee 
at time of formal acceptance of public improvements.  

5.  STAFF RECOMMENDATION.  

Staff recommend Planning Commission recommend approval of the Zone Change and Site Design 
Reivew, with conditions noted. Furthermore, Planning Commission should decide on the three items 
noted In this staff report that require their discretion.  

Staff also recommend the applicant proceed with the City Council hearing while actively working towards 
addressing Conditions #1 and #2. City participation in addressing Conditions #1 and #2 may be 
necessary and City is willing and ready to jointly resolve these two issues, at applicant’s cost.  

6.  CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.  

Condition of Approval #1: City will not sign off the building permit application form until the right-of-
way is discrepancy is resolved to the City’s satisfaction. Applicant may receive City Council final 
approval of the application prior to meeting Condition of Approval #1.  

Condition of Approval #2: As a condition of approval, the City will require the applicant to verify the 
exact boundaries of the easement, confirm the as-built location of all associated storm pipes, and, if 
necessary, record an updated easement to accurately reflect the as-built conditions. City will not sign 
off on the building permit application form until Condition of Approval #2 is completed to the City’s 
satisfaction. 
 
Condition of Approval #3: A right-of-way permit shall be required for any work to be performed in 
City right-of-way. A traffic control plan may be required.  

 
Condition of Approval #4: To address pedestrian safety and circulation, the City is imposing a 
condition of approval requiring construction of half-street improvements, including sidewalk, curb, and 
gutter, built to City standards and specifications. The rough proportionality of the required 
improvements corresponds to the length of the development frontage, approximately 535 feet along 
3rd Street. Accordingly, half-street improvements consisting of sidewalk, curb, and gutter along this 
~535-foot frontage shall be a condition of approval. 
 

25



26 
 

 

Condition of Approval #5: A final erosion and sediment control plan will be required to be submitted 
before the City signs off on the City portion of the building permit application. 

Condition of Approval #6: Final Landscape plan shall clearly show ground cover, tree size with a 
minimum diameter or caliper 4 feet above grade and shrubs shall be planted from a 5-gallon container 
or larger. Non-plant ground cover may be bark dust, chips, or similar mulch and shall cover all 
landscape surfaces not otherwise planted or covered. 

Condition of Approval #7: Revise parking detail to show 8’ and 6” curb length rather than the 8’ 
currently shown on Sheet 3.  

Condition of Approval #8: New public improvements shall be duly inspected and accepted in writing 
by the City Manager or their designee. City will not accept public improvements until they have passed 
inspection.  

Condition of Approval #9: Final water and sewer improvements plans shall be duly reviewed and 
approved by the City Manager or their designee before the City will sign off on the City portion of the 
building permit application form.  

Condition of Approval #10: Final stormwater plans shall receive approval from the City Manager or 
their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit application form.  

Condition of Approval #11: Final utility plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City Manager or 
their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit application form. 
Consistent with the code requirements, new utilities shall be placed underground.  

Condition of Approval #12: All easements for sewers, storm drainage and water quality facilities, 
water mains, electrical lines, or any other public facilities shall be duly placed in an easement to the 
City. The City Manager or their designee shall have discretion in determining which improvements 
require easements to the City. In all cases, the duty to duly record any easements related to the 
proposal shall be the sole responsibility of the applicant and developer. Copies of all recorded 
documents shall be furnished to the City Manager. 

Condition of Approval #13: An Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans shall be provided to the City 
Manager or their designee prior to the first day of operation of the RV Park.  

Condition of Approval #14: Before commencement of construction activities on the subject property, 
a Performance Guarantee shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee.  

Condition of Approval #15: Warranty Bond shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee 
at time of formal acceptance of public improvements.  

Condition of Approval #16: Staff recommend Planning Commission require a fence around Swale “A” 
for public safety and because of the depth of water being approximately 3’.   

Informational Item #1: Staff recommend that the City Manager and the applicant enter into an 
Improvement Agreement that clearly outlines the required public improvements, identifies the party 
responsible for their construction, and establishes a timeline for completion. 

26



27 
 

 

7. ATTACHMENTS.  
 
A – Applicant’s materials, including sheets and narrative 
B – Neighborhood meeting materials  
C – Notice 
D – City Engineer comments  
E – Public comments  
F – Transportation Planning Rule Study  

 

27



    

Code Amendment Application  
  

Applicant: _Grant County Fair Grounds_ Phone: _541-575-1900_ Email: winegarm@grantcounty-or.gov  
  
Proposed:        X    Land Use District Map Amendment            Text Amendment   

   
Requested Change(s):  Tax Lot 1300 is currently zoned as Park Reserve (PR) and Residential Limited 

(RL).  This application is to request that an additional portion of the lot be removed from the RL zone 

and include in the PR zone.  The attached maps show both the existing zoning boundaries and the 

proposed.  The adjustment affects approximately 5.75 acres as shown.      

 You must provide the address, zone, map and taxlot number for each property that would be rezoned in 
order to implement the proposed amendment (include a separate spreadsheet if necessary.)  Please note that 
if the ordinance impacts the entire city or large portions thereof, you may be charged an additional fee for 
staff time and materials per the city fee schedule.   

  
Property Owner(s): ____Grant County ____________________________________________________  
  
  
Property Address: ____300 NE 3rd Street, John Day, OR 97845  __________       _____________  
   
  
Township, Section, Range, and Tax Lot:  ___13S  31E 23  - TL 1300  __________________________  
    
  
Zone: ____PR / RL____________________________   Lot size:    16.41 Acres______    

For Office Use Only 
 
 
 

Date Stamp                                                  Received By:_________________  Fee: $____________ 
 

 

 
  

ATTACHMENT A

28



    

LegislaƟve amendments are policy decisions made by City Council. They are reviewed using the Type IV 
procedure in SecƟon 5-4.1.050 and shall conform to the TransportaƟon Planning Rule provisions in SecƟon 

5-4.7.060, as applicable.  
  

5-4.7.030 Quasi-Judicial Amendments  

A. Applicability of Quasi-Judicial Amendments. Quasi-judicial amendments are those that involve 
the applicaƟon of adopted policy to a specific development applicaƟon or Code revision, and not 
the adopƟon of new policy (i.e., through legislaƟve decisions). Quasijudicial district map 
amendments and applicaƟon of master planned development overlay zones to individual 
properƟes shall follow the Type III procedure, as governed by SecƟon 5-4.1.040, using standards 
of approval in SecƟon 5-4.7.030.B. The approval authority shall be as follows:   

1. The Planning Commission shall review and recommend land use district map changes that do 
not involve comprehensive plan map amendments;   

2. The Planning Commission shall make a recommendaƟon to the City Council on an applicaƟon 
for a comprehensive plan map amendment. The City Council shall decide such applicaƟons; 
and  

3. The Planning Commission shall make a recommendaƟon to the City Council on a land use 
district change applicaƟon that also involves a comprehensive plan map amendment 
applicaƟon. The City Council shall decide both applicaƟons.  

B. Criteria for Quasi-Judicial Amendments. A recommendaƟon or a decision to approve, approve 
with condiƟons or to deny an applicaƟon for a quasi-judicial amendment shall be based on all of 
the following criteria:   

1. Approval of the request is consistent with the Statewide Planning Goals;    

2. Approval of the request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan;    

3. The property and affected area is presently provided with adequate public faciliƟes, services 
and transportaƟon networks to support the use, or such faciliƟes, services and 
transportaƟon networks are planned to be provided in the planning period; and   

4. The change is in the public interest with regard to neighborhood or community condiƟons, or 
corrects a mistake or inconsistency in the comprehensive plan map or zoning map regarding 
the property which is the subject of the applicaƟon; and   

5. The amendment conforms to the TransportaƟon Planning Rule provisions under SecƟon 5-
4.7.060.  

  
5-4.7.040 CondiƟons Of Approval On Quasi-Judicial Amendments  
A quasi-judicial decision may be for denial, approval, or approval with condiƟons; condiƟons shall be 
based on applicable regulaƟons and factual evidence in the record. A legislaƟve amendment may only be 
approved or denied.  

 
  

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park Project Narrative 

This project is to expand the RV Camping sites available at the Fairgrounds.   To better accommodate 
events at the fairgrounds, tours and other gatherings in the area, short term workers, and visitors to 
our City and County. 

This site is current in two Zones  Park Reserve and Residential Limited.  The Owner is proposing to 
maintain the two zones but, increase the amount of area in the Park Reserve and Decrease the 
amount of area in the Residential Limited.  See Sheet 01 of the attached plan sheets. 

The current 3rd Street ROW description does not match the physical location of 3rd Street and is 
described as a 120-ft wide ROW.  On Sheet 01 there is a proposed ROW shown.  This proposed right 
of way is proposed as 30’ from the current centerline on the south (no adjustment on the North) This 
is wide enough to contain all of the road and fill slopes along the flatter portion of the street, and as 
the road extends to the east and switches back up to Main Street it is proposed to transition to and 
to maintain the current ROW width. 

 

General Park Conditions: 

The project will add 25 new short-term RV spaces, no stays over 180 days will be allowed.   

No permanent type of accessories will be allowed on the RVs.  (i.e. built in-place decks, only 
temporary skirting allowed, etc.) 

The Grant County Fairgrounds currently has RV Spaces, and the proposed new RV Park will be 
managed and maintained to the same standards.  Attached is a copy of the current RV Park rules. 

 

Utilities and Equipment: 

Power – any unprotected portion of the RV Hookup system (line lugs, outlets, breakers, 
etc.) will be a minimum of 1-ft above the BFE at that area of the site. 

Water – Water will be provided to the RV Sites with an elevated Frost-Free Hydrant with 
the connection point a minimum of 1-ft above BFE at that area of the site.  Also, the City’s 
water system will be protected with a backflow preventor at or near the service meter 
connection. 

Sanitary Sewer – The sewer system piping and connections will be standard per Oregon 
Plumbing Code.  With the addition of all cleanouts and RV connections will have a 
watertight cover.  An example of this type of cover is attached. 

Storm RunoƯ – All storm runoƯ water from the site will be contained on site and routed 
to infiltration swales and areas.  

Solid Waste – Solid waste will be collected in a common dumpster for the site.  The 
surface area for this dumpster will be graded to be above the BFE to prevent the chance 
of it floating in a flood event 

42



Electrical, Mechanical, Plumbing and Other Equipment: 

All utilities and other systems in the Restroom/Laundry Building will be out of the flood 
water with the finished floor slab elevation 1-ft plus above the BFE.  Any exterior 
equipment, such as heat pump, propane tank, power meter, etc.  will be installed 
elevated as needed to be a minimum of 1-ft above the BFE and any stands or supports 
will be anchored to slabs or embedded as needed to resist any hydrostatic and 
hydrodynamic loads and eƯects.    

 

Non-Residential Construction: 

The only structure proposed for the project will be a restroom & shower building with a 
laundry room and small storage/mechanical room.   

The building will be slab-on-grade and the proposed finished floor (FF) elevation 
3078.50, the BFE in this area of the site is 3077.25, FF is 1-ft plus above BFE. 

Floodproofing is not required since above the BFE but, all building materials on the 
lower portion of the building will be water resistant such as concrete, CMU block, and 
steel. 

Structure is above BFE and not subject to any hydrostatic or hydrodynamic loads and 
eƯects. 

 

Floodway and Floodplain: 

Per the Floodway-Flood Boundary and Floodway Map (Panel Number 410077 0001), revised 
October 17th, 2019, all of the floodway on this property is North of 3rd Street, the proposed RV Park 
and improvements are South of 3rd Street.  The only proposed improvement in the flood way is to 
remove brush and vegetation to create a connection for pedestrians to the existing gravel trail along 
the John Day River. 

Description of the extent to which the watercourse will be altered or relocated.   There is no 
proposed alteration of the watercourse in the floodway.   The floodplain volume for storage of flood 
water will be altered in location and depth on the site but, the final floodplain storage will be equal 
to or greater than the current volume.  Based on the elevation of 3rd Street and the single culvert that 
crosses the street, flood water will only be entering the site by overtopping the road or thru the 
culvert and based on the BFEs this will only be happening within a few 10ths of the river being at the 
100yr flood stage.  The changes in the grades on site may minimally change very local flood depths 
but, only on this property there is no connection to any floodplain on other properties in this area. 

The amount and location of any cut and fill activities proposed.  The grading of the proposed RV 
Park will remove 2208 CYs of material from below the BFE in the floodplain, this will include the 
upper organic layer stripped prior to beginning any grading, excess spoils from utility trenching, and 
excess material cut from the area after re-shaping to allow for the addition of imported materials.  
For the construction of the RV Park materials will be imported such as pipe bedding, concrete, and 

43



base rock, these quantities will be amount to 1812 CYs.  This creates an additional 396 CYs of 
additional floodplain storage on the RV Project Site.  (See Grading Sheet Table)  

This grading produces 2208 CYs that must be relocated.  The grading plan shows a disposal site 
area.  Placing material in this area will require placing 350 CYs of material back into the floodplain 
on this property (leaving a net gain of 46 CYs more floodwater storage than currently).  The 
additional 1858 CYs will be placed above this and above the BFE having no eƯect on the floodplain 
storage.  The other option is to haul oƯ this material or some of it to be placed on an undetermined 
upland area (not to be used for filling in a floodplain, floodway or wetland).   

  

44



5-4.2.50  2. Site Design Review Information.  

1. Site analysis map. At a minimum the site analysis map shall contain the following:  
1. The applicant’s entire property and the surrounding property to a distance 

sufficient to determine the location of the development in the City, and the 
relationship between the proposed development site and adjacent property and 
development. The property boundaries, dimensions and gross area shall be 
identified;  

Attached current Tax Map shows the entire property, sheet 01 of the plan sheets 
shows more detail of the surrounding properties. 

2. Topographic contour lines at 2-foot intervals for slopes, except where the Public 
Works Director determines that larger intervals will be adequate for steeper slopes;  

0.5-ft contours are shown on the plan sheets, contours created from topography 
survey by Benchmark Surveying. 

3. Identification of slopes greater than fifteen (15) percent, with slope categories 
identified in 5 percent increments (e.g., 0%-5%, >5%-10%, >10%-15%, 
>15%20%, and so on.);  

No development is proposed North of 3rd Street so this area was not addressed.  
The area of the proposed RV Park is in the 0%-5% range, any areas above the 
5% slope range are shown on plan sheet 01 with colored hatch. 

4. The location and width of all public and private streets, drives, sidewalks, 
pathways, rights-of-way, and easements on the site and adjoining the site;  

Plan sheet 01 shows the location of the existing the existing driveways and access 
roads on this property.  Plan Sheet 02 shows the proposed new access driveway 
and two of the existing driveways will be eliminated.  Plan sheet 01 shows the 
existing ROW per the description and the proposed ROW to match the actual 
street.  A proposed easement for the existing sewer line is also shown on plan 
sheet 01. 

5. Potential natural hazard areas, including, as applicable, the base flood elevation 
identified on FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps or as otherwise determined 
through site specific survey, areas subject to high water table, and areas designated 
by the City, County, or State as having a potential for geologic hazards;  

The plan sheets include the Floodway and Floodplain elevations overlayed on 
the site, per the current FEMA Firm for this area. 

6. Resource areas, including marsh and wetland areas, streams, and 
wildlife habitat identified by the City or any natural resource 
regulatory agencies as requiring protection;  

45



The John Day River is shown as it flows across the northern portion of the 
property.  The is no development proposed near the River. 

7. Site features, including existing structures, pavement, large rock outcroppings, 
areas having unique views, and drainage ways, canals and ditches;  

There are no existing structures or distinct features on this property. 

8. Locally or federally designated historic and cultural resources on the site and 
adjacent parcels or lots; 

None known. 

9. The location, size and species of trees and other vegetation having a caliper 
(diameter) of six (6) inches or greater at four feet above grade; 

 There trees or large vegetation on the property in the area being developed. 

10. North arrow, scale, names and addresses of all persons listed as owners of the 
subject property on the most recently recorded deed;  

Deed attached. 

11. Name and address of project designer, engineer, surveyor, and/or planner, if 
applicable.  

Engineer – Sisul Engineering, 158 E Main St., John Day, OR 97845 

Surveyor – Benchmark Land Surveying, 217 N. Canyon Blvd. John Day, OR 97845. 

2. Proposed site plan. The site plan shall contain the following information:  
1. The proposed development site, including boundaries, dimensions, and gross area;  

The square footage of the proposed area to be developed is shown on plan sheet 
03.   

2. Features identified on the existing site analysis maps that are proposed to remain 
on the site;  

None. 

3. Features identified on the existing site map, if any, which are proposed to be 
removed or modified by the development.  

Two existing driveway locations will be replaced with a single new access.  The 
existing community garden location will be relocated south of the current 
location.   

 

46



4. The location and dimensions of all proposed public and private streets, drives,
rights-of-way, and easements; 

Existing and proposed ROWs and Easements are shown on plan sheet 01. 

5. The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures, utilities,
pavement and other improvements on the site. Setback dimensions for all existing 
and proposed buildings shall be provided on the site plan; 

Proposed utilities, fencing and accesses ways are shown on plan sheet 02.  The 
closest RV space has a 20’ setback from the proposed 3rd Street ROW.  The 
proposed restroom/shower/laundry building closest distance to any boundary is 
the proposed 3rd Street ROW and is 78 feet. 

6. The location and dimensions of entrances and exits to the site for vehicular,
pedestrian, and bicycle access; 

A single vehicular ingress and egress access is shown on plan sheet 02 for the 
RV Park, in addition there are two pedestrian access with double gates to allow 
for maintenance and emergency access. 

7. The location and dimensions of all parking and vehicle circulation areas (show
striping for parking stalls and wheel stops); 

See attached RV Park rules for space parking limits. The 
restroom/shower/laundry building has a concrete ADA park space and two 
additional parking spaces dimensions and preliminary grading shown on plan 
sheet 03. 

8. Pedestrian and bicycle circulation areas, including sidewalks, internal pathways,
pathway connections to adjacent properties, and any bicycle lanes or trails; 

Pedestrians and bicyles may circulate throughout the RV Park on the access 
isles that range from 24’-30’ wide.  There is a connection proposed from the RV 
Park to the existing trail along the John Day River. 

9. Loading and service areas for waste disposal, loading and delivery;

See plan sheet 02 for common dumpster location. 

10. Outdoor recreation spaces, common areas, plazas, outdoor seating, street furniture,
and similar improvements; 

None proposed. 

47



11. Location, type, and height of outdoor lighting;  

See plan sheet 02 for area lighting layout, and attached manufacturer info. for 
height and style information. 

12. Location of mail boxes, if known;  

None needed.  Mail will go to existing main fairgrounds office. 

13. Name and address of project designer, if applicable;  

Engineer – Sisul Engineering, 158 E Main St., John Day, OR 97845 

14. Locations of bus stops and other public or private transportation facilities;  

None proposed. 

15. Locations, sizes, and types of signs;  

None proposed. In future is one is needed owner will apply for sign permit. 

3. Architectural drawings. Architectural drawings showing one or all of the following shall 
be required for new commercial, commercial/residential, industrial and multifamily 
buildings, and major remodels of the same:  

1. Building elevations (as determined by the City Planning Official) with building 
height and width dimensions;  

Preliminary building elevations on shown on plan sheet 02.  

2. Building materials, colors and type;  

Some building materials and types on shown on the building elevation, others 
and final colors to be determined owner.  

4. Preliminary grading plan. A preliminary grading plan prepared by a registered engineer 
shall be required for development sites one-half (½) acre or larger. The preliminary grading 
plan shall show the location and extent to which grading will take place, indicating general 
changes to contour lines, slope ratios, slope stabilization proposals, and location and height 
of retaining walls, if proposed. Surface water detention and treatment plans may also be 
required, in accordance with Section 5-3.4.040.  

Plan sheet 03 shows both proposed finish grade contours for the site and general 
slopes.  Detail spot elevations around the building and ADA parking area are 
shown on a detail of the area.  A small landscaping wall is proposed and shown 
with spot elevations at to top and bottom. Proposed detention/infiltration areas 
are shown on the grading plan also, to be sized based on final design.  

 

48



5. Landscape plan. Where a landscape plan is required, it shall show the following:  
1. The location and height of existing and proposed fences, buffering or screening 

materials;  

A 6-ft, black chainlink security/semi screening fence is proposed around the 
permitter.  The photo below is an example of the type of fencing proposed. 

 
Existing Fencing on City Property near Public Works Shop. 

2. The location of existing and proposed terraces, retaining walls, decks, patios, 
shelters, and play areas;  

None proposed. 

3. The location, size, and species of the existing and proposed plant materials (at time 
of planting);  

Proposed landscape trees are shown on plan sheet 02.  Each dividing area 
between RVs will have a minimum of 2 trees when site is fully developed and 
other trees fit in around the permitter, inside the fence.  The trees will be a 
mixture of spring time flowering trees (i.e redbud, dogwood), trees with bright 
fall time foliage (i.e. maples, oaks), will follow recommendations of local nursery 
for varieties that are hardly enough for the local climate, mature providing 
shade, and low maintenance.  At planting the trees will be 4’-6’ in height. 

4. Existing and proposed building and pavement outlines;  

No buildings or pavement on site.  Existing street shown on plan sheet 01. 

5. Specifications for soil at time of planting, irrigation if plantings are not 
droughttolerant (may be automatic or other approved method of irrigation) and 
anticipated planting schedule;  

49



Will follow recommendations of local nursery on planting time and water needs.   

6. Other information as deemed appropriate by the City Planning Official. An 
arborist’s report may be required for sites with mature trees that are protected under 
Chapter 5-3.2. Landscape, Street Trees, Fences and Walls of this Code. 

6. Deed restrictions. Copies of all existing and proposed restrictions or covenants, including 
those for access control. 

None.   Attached copy of RV Park Rules. 

 

 

 

        PROPOSED LIGHTING 
        Manuf. MEL NORTHEY CO. INC. 

50



 

 

 

51



 
 
 

Welcome to the Grant County RV Park!  We hope you have a pleasant visit.   
Please report any concerns to the office.  

NO RV’S OR TRAILERS OVER 15 YEARS OLD 
ALL FEE’S MUST BE PAID IN ADVANCE 

 
 

1. Check-out time is by 12 PM (NOON). Due to previous reservations, if you plan on staying longer, the 
earlier you let us know, the better your chance of keeping a site.  (Please note: we cannot always guarantee 
that you will be able to keep the same site due to previous reservations.)   

2. A sewer hose seal (rubber donut or threaded connector) for your sewer hose is REQUIRED on all 
sewer hookups.  

3. Pets must be on a leash, under control, and quiet at all times. All pet waste must be picked up 
immediately.  No more than 1 pet and must be under 50lb. 

4. Campsites must be kept neat and tidy at all times.  
5. Garbage should be in sealed plastic bags and placed in the trash bin which is near the storage 

building.  
6. Children must be supervised at all times. Parents are responsible for their children’s safe conduct and 

any injuries or damage that they may incur or cause. Unsupervised children who cause disruption for 
other guests may be asked to leave the park with their entire group. 

7. Please respect privacy and comfort of fellow guests - keep music and noise down. 
8. No smoking in the restrooms, showers or public buildings. Please use proper receptacles when 

extinguishing cigarettes. Please do not throw cigarette butts on the ground. 
9. Absolutely NO FIREWORKS! 
10. Please do not take picnic tables from their sites. This includes swapping them around. If you’re 

planning a group gathering, we can make an exception to this providing all tables are put back, but please 
check with the office beforehand. 

11. No Tents in the RV Park.  Tents are only allowed in designated dry camping area only  
12. Campfires: Please use only the designated fire rings. Please note that campfires may be completely 

restricted during the mid-summer months when the fire danger is high. Fires must never be higher than 1 
1/2 feet. Fire rings are for firewood ONLY - Food scraps, cigarette butts, plastic, aluminum cans, bread ties 
etc. do not belong. Never leave fires unattended!!! Always extinguish fires completely when leaving them 
for any amount of time. 

13. The speed limit in the park is 5 mph. Please be aware of pedestrians and animals in the roadways. 
14. Quiet hours are from 10PM to 7AM. 
15. Be sure to close awnings when leaving your rig unattended. Strong winds can come about suddenly 

and cause severe damage. 
16. Cleanliness of the park is important to us. Sites are to be kept clean and orderly, as determined by 

management. Please leave restrooms as you would like to find them. If they are in need of attention, please 
notify someone in the office. 

 
Management reserves the right to evict or refuse entry to any person who has evidenced a disregard for the 

rules without a refund.  Guests and their visitors agree to use the campground at their own risk.  The 
management and owners are not responsible for damage, injury or loss to persons, pets or property.  We 

reserve the right the to make changes to the rules,  
Regulations and fees that we deem necessary. 

 
 

52



N

53

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 2100 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 2000 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1900 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1800 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1701 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1700 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1600 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1500 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1400 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1300 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1200 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1100 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 700 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 600 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 500 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 400 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 400 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 200 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 200 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 100 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
701 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 800 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 900 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 10400 MAP 13S31E23CD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 10300 MAP 13S31E23CD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 1000 MAP 13S31E26AB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 100 MAP 13S31E23

AutoCAD SHX Text
TL 200 MAP 13S31E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX FENCE REMOVED BY OTHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX WATER FAUCET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX WATER FAUCET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX WATER FAUCET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX DWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
100YR FLOOD ELEV 3077'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100YR FLOOD ELEV 3078'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100YR FLOOD ELEV 3079'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 YR FLOOD ELEV 3076'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100YR FLOOD ELEV 3078'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ZONING PARK RESERVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ZONING RESIDENTIAL LIMITED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED NEW ZONE BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ZONING PARK RESERVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ZONING RESIDENTIAL LIMITED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
178'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
166'

AutoCAD SHX Text
116'

AutoCAD SHX Text
620'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SHLDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SHLDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX GUARDRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX EOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX EOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
283'

AutoCAD SHX Text
83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
235'

AutoCAD SHX Text
159'

AutoCAD SHX Text
168'

AutoCAD SHX Text
180'

AutoCAD SHX Text
280'

AutoCAD SHX Text
127'

AutoCAD SHX Text
166'

AutoCAD SHX Text
65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ROW PER PROPERTY DESCRIPTION  TO BE REALIGNED WITH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELM STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
E MAIN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER EDGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN DAY RIVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX PROPERTY BOUNDARY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIVER EDGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX FIRE HYD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX WATER METER TO BE REPLACED

AutoCAD SHX Text
100YR FLOOD ELEV 3080'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1 in. = 50ft.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-332-2344

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION OF UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CALL FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
48 HRS. PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISUL  ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
158 E. MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN DAY, OREGON  97845

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING: XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(541) 575-3777

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANT COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANT COUNTY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SITE CONDITIONS  EX AND PROPOSED BOUNDARIES AND ZONE CHANGES

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODWAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROW PER DESCRIPTION  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPES GREATER THAN 5%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.75 AC INCREASE TO PARK RESERVE ZONE WITH EQUAL REDUCTION OF RESIDENTIAL LIMITED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND 



N

54

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER PED TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE TREES TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFILTRATION SWALE 'D'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 18" CMP  3078.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 18" CMP  3078.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX MH RIM 3077.52 8" INV OUT 3070.99 (W) 8" INV IN 3071.19 (E) (E) 8" INV IN 3071.19 (SE)(SE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BLACK CHAINLINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX FENCE TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACK CHAINLINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROST FREE HYD TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROST FREE HYD TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" FLOOD PROOF CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" FLOOD PROOF CLEANOUT TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" FLOOD PROOF CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC TRASH ENCLOSURE PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADA PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESTROOM, SHOWER, AND LAUNDRY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-2' LANDSCAPE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EX STUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER PED TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER PED TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL PER TYP SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL PER TYP SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX MH RIM 3077.52 8" INV OUT 3069.52 (W) 8" INV IN 3069.72 (E) (E) 8" INV IN 3069.72 (SE)(SE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX WATER FAUCET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX WATER FAUCET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX WATER FAUCET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX EOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX EOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ACCESS TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE TREES TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' DOUBLE PED GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' DOUBLE PED GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFILTRATION SWALE 'A'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFILTRATION SWALE 'B'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFILTRATION SWALE 'C'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE KEYPAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE KEYPAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL TRAIL TO EX TRAIL SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' RAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' RAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' RAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' RAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' RAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
75' RAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" WATER METER AND BACKFLOW PREVENTER TO BE INSTALLED AT CONNECTION WITH EXISTING WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RELOCATED COMMUNITY GARDEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1 in. = 30 ft.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-332-2344

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION OF UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CALL FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
48 HRS. PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISUL  ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
158 E. MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN DAY, OREGON  97845

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING: XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(541) 575-3777

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANT COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANT COUNTY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB

AutoCAD SHX Text
24-012

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE IMPROVEMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CONCRETE W/ #4 REBAR 18" O.C. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"  COMPACTED 3/4" MINUS C.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL ADA PARKING SECTION NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"  COMPACTED 3/4" MINUS C.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL 4" CONC. SECTION NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"  COMPACTED  3/4" MINUS C.R OVER 6" 1 1/2" MINUS C.R..

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL GRAVEL SECTION NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE LUGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL POWER PED DETAIL NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
 FF ELEV 3078.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ELEV 3086.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ELEV 3091.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
 BFE ELEV 3077.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U FRONT VIEW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%U SIDE VIEW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FRAMED GABLE SIDING TYPE/COLOR PER OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPLIT FACE CMU BLOCK COLOR PER OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PICTOGRAM AND SIGNAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR METAL DOOR w/ ADA HARDWARE & OCCUPANCY  INDICATOR



N

55

AutoCAD SHX Text
3077'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX EOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX EOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE ADA PARKING AND RESTROOM GRADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
100YR FLOOD ELEV 3078'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE ADA PARKING AND RESTROOM GRADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVED APPROACH GRADED APPROX. 2% AWAY FROM STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.32%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.40%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.51%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.51%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.25%

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EG CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
100YR FLOOD ELEV 3077'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100YR FLOOD ELEV 3078'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100YR FLOOD ELEV 3079'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.70%

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFILTRATION SWALE 'A'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFILTRATION SWALE 'B'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFILTRATION SWALE 'C'

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFILTRATION SWALE 'D'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRIPPINGS AND FILL  DISPOSAL SITE 350 CY LOCATED IN FLOOD PLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX WATER FAUCET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX WATER FAUCET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX WATER FAUCET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE ADA PARKING AND RESTROOM GRADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.92%

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE ADA PARKING AND RESTROOM GRADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.75%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.75%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.25%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.93%

AutoCAD SHX Text
RELOCATED COMMUNITY GARDEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100YR FLOOD ELEV 3077'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ACCESS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1 in. = 30 ft.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-332-2344

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION OF UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR IS TO CALL FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
48 HRS. PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISUL  ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
158 E. MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN DAY, OREGON  97845

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING: XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
(541) 575-3777

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANT COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANT COUNTY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN 2025

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB

AutoCAD SHX Text
24-012

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
GB

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADING  PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF ELEV 3078.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3077.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3076.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3077.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3077.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3077.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3076.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3077.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3078.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3076.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3076.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADA PARKING AND RESTROOM GRADING NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-2' LANDSCAPING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3077.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3077.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
3077.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHWORK AND IMPORTED MATERIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHIN FLOOD PLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHWORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1796 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3474 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRIPPINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTSIDE FLOOD PLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1490 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
25 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
0 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
90 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
101 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
14 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3589 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE BEDDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
297 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
0 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH SPOILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
297 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
0 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RV PARK GRADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCREASED VOLUME IN FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2208 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPORTED MATERIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
0 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
35 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECREASED VOLUME IN FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1812 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NET (CUT) INCREASED VOLUME IN FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
396 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHIN FLOOD PLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTHWORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTSIDE FLOOD PLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DISPOSAL SITE GRADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
350 CY *

AutoCAD SHX Text
1858 CY *

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NET (FILL) DECREASED VOLUME IN FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
350 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL PROJECT NET (CUT) INCREASED VOLUME IN FLOODPLAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
46 CY

AutoCAD SHX Text
* OPTION TO DISPOSE OF CUT MATERIAL OFF SITE PROVIDED NOT FILLING IN A FLOODPLAIN OR WETLAND AREA, UPLAND ONLY AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL SCALE: 1"=30' VERTICAL SCALE: 1"=15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION A-A

AutoCAD SHX Text
3070

AutoCAD SHX Text
3075

AutoCAD SHX Text
3080

AutoCAD SHX Text
3085

AutoCAD SHX Text
3090

AutoCAD SHX Text
3070

AutoCAD SHX Text
3075

AutoCAD SHX Text
3080

AutoCAD SHX Text
3085

AutoCAD SHX Text
3090

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+50

AutoCAD SHX Text
0+99

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
EG

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1 MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
RV PARK     143,362 SF 143,362 SF COMMUNITY GARDEN  35,362 sf 35,362 sf DISPOSAL SITE   10,036 sf10,036 sf

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB  STOP



0

0 0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

00

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0 00

00

0

0
0

0

0

0

&

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

159.58'
N82°45'E

N87°51'00"E
45.17'

1.

2. 3.

5. 4.

207.9'

139.0' 98
.7

1'

S48°00'00"E
118.12'

S31°00'00"E

300.00'

S61°30'80"E
310.00'

S49°15'00"E
600'

S64°35'00"E

1000.00'

310'

N2
5°

25
'E

203.84'

50
'

125'

N40°37'W371.5'

N33°43'W
192.5'

N78°46'E
84.97'

S84°16'52"E62.83'

S0
0°

05
'0

0"
E

10
9.

05
'

20
0.

00
'

S64°35'E200.00'

S2
5°

25
'W

20
0.

00
'

15
0'

15
0'110'

90'

N64°35'W

S2
5°

25
'W

N75°51'27"E

215.80'

N
7°

15
'W

10
0'

N82°45'E

1.
2.
3.

S1°25'00"E
20.00'

S88°35'00"W 1172.93'

S12°28'E
293.64'

N76°42'15"W123.98'

N88°25'23"W
194.15'S12°28'00"E

278.45'

23
3.

28
'

20
0.

00
'

(B
Y 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

)S4
°0

1'
30

"E
S1

°2
6'

00
"E

S75°02'00"E
50.00'

S1°23'00"E
49.98'

N54°43'W
145.3'

100'
36.59'
63.41'

110'

S0
°1

5'
W

31
3.

8'
WEST
71.2'

N47°44'W
199.3'

N35°25'E

143.3' N49°04'W

S70°00'00"E160.00'

S51°54'W202.40'

S85°16'W
140.20'

S70°47'W
18.5'

N83°40'W
130.40'N80°13'W

149.60'
N82°26'W

460.0'S88°53'W
122.20'

N73°30'W 79.50'N65°55'W

10
0'

S50°53'E

193'

S0
°2

9'
E

22
1.

6'

60'

104.8'
139.6'

129.3'

53.9'

100'

110'

100'

N56°5'W

180.00'

4.
5.

N74°46'00"E
S44°47'00"W 185.00'
N48°07'41"E 184.91'
N4°34'52"E 45.91'
S16°14'00"W 39.50'

176.5'

TROWBRIDGE
DITCH

SEE MAPSEE MAP
SEE MAP

SEE MAP
SEE MAP

SEE MAP

SEE MAP

13S 31E 23AC13S 31E 23BC
13S 31E 23BD

13S 31E 23CB 13S 31E 23CA

13S 31E 23CC
13S 31E 23CD

THIRD

STREET

NE 7TH
ST.

WELL NO. 3 IS 454.9' S
& 1695.6' W OF 1/4
COR SEC 23 & 24

JOHN
DAY

RIVER

2627

23

14

23

14 13

24

23

22

2526

15

23 2422

SEE MAP 13S 31E

SEE MAP 13S 31E

SE
E 

M
AP

 1
3S

 3
1E

SE
E 

M
AP

 1
3S

 3
1E

 2
2D

SEE MAP 13S 31E 26BA

SEE MAP 13S 31E 26AB

SEE MAP 13S 31E 26AA

SE
E 

M
AP

 1
3S

 3
1E

 2
2A

SE
E 

M
AP

 1
3S

 3
1E

 2
2D

D

SEE MAP 13S 31E 26BB

80'

60'

60' 60'

80'

POR.

FIRST

MUNICIPAL

ADDITION

CS 636

CS 770

CS 1117

CS 1733
      1914

CS 582

CS 309

CS 985

3-1

3-1
200

1101

1400

1200

1001

1002

1000

100

1300

PARCEL 1300 1300

1100

SEC. 23

16.41 AC

37.65 AC

0.23 AC

0.69 AC

0.85 AC

0.47 AC

0.43 AC

0.53 AC

0.53 AC

23.02 AC
N84°30'31"E

116.55'

S64°35'E400.36'

89.84'

110.21'

109.56'

159.58'
N82°45'E

N87°51'00"E
45.17'

1.

2. 3.

5. 4.

207.9'

139.0' 98
.7

1'

S48°00'00"E
118.12'

S31°00'00"E

300.00'

S61°30'80"E
310.00'

S49°15'00"E
600'

S64°35'00"E

1000.00'

310'

N2
5°

25
'E

203.84'

50
'

125'

N40°37'W371.5'

N33°43'W
192.5'

N78°46'E
84.97'

S84°16'52"E62.83'

S0
0°

05
'0

0"
E

10
9.

05
'

20
0.

00
'

S64°35'E200.00'

S2
5°

25
'W

20
0.

00
'

15
0'

15
0'110'

90'

N64°35'W

S2
5°

25
'W

N75°51'27"E

215.80'

N
7°

15
'W

10
0'

N82°45'E

1.
2.
3.

S1°25'00"E
20.00'

S88°35'00"W 1172.93'

S12°28'E
293.64'

N76°42'15"W123.98'

N88°25'23"W
194.15'S12°28'00"E

278.45'

23
3.

28
'

20
0.

00
'

(B
Y 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

)S4
°0

1'
30

"E
S1

°2
6'

00
"E

S75°02'00"E
50.00'

S1°23'00"E
49.98'

N54°43'W
145.3'

100'
36.59'
63.41'

110'

S0
°1

5'
W

31
3.

8'
WEST
71.2'

N47°44'W
199.3'

N35°25'E

143.3' N49°04'W

S70°00'00"E160.00'

S51°54'W202.40'

S85°16'W
140.20'

S70°47'W
18.5'

N83°40'W
130.40'N80°13'W

149.60'
N82°26'W

460.0'S88°53'W
122.20'

N73°30'W 79.50'N65°55'W

10
0'

S50°53'E

193'

S0
°2

9'
E

22
1.

6'

60'

104.8'
139.6'

129.3'

53.9'

100'

110'

100'

N56°5'W

180.00'

4.
5.

N74°46'00"E
S44°47'00"W 185.00'
N48°07'41"E 184.91'
N4°34'52"E 45.91'
S16°14'00"W 39.50'

176.5'

TROWBRIDGE
DITCH

SEE MAPSEE MAP
SEE MAP

SEE MAP
SEE MAP

SEE MAP

SEE MAP

13S 31E 23AC13S 31E 23BC
13S 31E 23BD

13S 31E 23CB 13S 31E 23CA

13S 31E 23CC
13S 31E 23CD

THIRD

STREET

NE 7TH
ST.

WELL NO. 3 IS 454.9' S
& 1695.6' W OF 1/4
COR SEC 23 & 24

JOHN
DAY

RIVER

2627

23

14

23

14 13

24

23

22

2526

15

23 2422

SEE MAP 13S 31E

SEE MAP 13S 31E

SE
E 

M
AP

 1
3S

 3
1E

SE
E 

M
AP

 1
3S

 3
1E

 2
2D

SEE MAP 13S 31E 26BA

SEE MAP 13S 31E 26AB

SEE MAP 13S 31E 26AA

SE
E 

M
AP

 1
3S

 3
1E

 2
2A

SE
E 

M
AP

 1
3S

 3
1E

 2
2D

D

SEE MAP 13S 31E 26BB

80'

60'

60' 60'

80'

POR.

FIRST

MUNICIPAL

ADDITION

CS 636

CS 770

CS 1117

CS 1733
      1914

CS 582

CS 309

CS 985

3-1

3-1
200

1101

1400

1200

1001

1002

1000

100

1300

PARCEL 1300 1300

1100

SEC. 23

16.41 AC

37.65 AC

0.23 AC

0.69 AC

0.85 AC

0.47 AC

0.43 AC

0.53 AC

0.53 AC

23.02 AC
N84°30'31"E

116.55'

S64°35'E400.36'

89.84'

110.21'

109.56'

SECTION 23 T.13S. R.31E. W.M.
GRANT COUNTY

1" = 400'

Cancelled 
101
206
207
300
400
500
600
601
700
800
900
1301
1302

13S31E23
& INDEX

 JOHN DAY

 JOHN DAY
& INDEX

13S31E23

Revised: MA
04/05/2023

0 200 400 600 800 Feet

  

THIS MAP WAS PREPARED FOR
ASSESSMENT PURPOSE ONLY

56

JoeH
Highlight

JoeH
Highlight

JoeH
Highlight

JoeH
Highlight

JoeH
Highlight



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



ATTACHMENT B

68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



1

HEARLEY Henry O

From: DLCD Plan Amendments <plan.amendments@dlcd.oregon.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, September 17, 2025 12:51 PM
To: HEARLEY Henry O
Subject: Confirmation of PAPA Online submittal to DLCD

 
John Day 
 
Your notice of a proposed change to a comprehensive plan or land use regulation has been received by 
the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development. 
Local File #: PAPA 25-01 
DLCD File #: 003-25 
Proposal Received: 9/17/2025 
First Evidentiary Hearing: 10/22/2025 
Final Hearing Date: 12/9/2025 
Submitted by: hhearley 
 
If you have any questions about this notice, please reply or send an email to 
plan.amendments@dlcd.oregon.gov. 

WARNING: This is NOT an internal sender. Please review this message carefully before responding 
or interacting. If you have any concerns, contact the SERVICE DESK or click here to submit a ticket.  

ATTACHMENT C

96



-Ad Proof-

This is the proof of your ad, scheduled to run on the dates

indicated below. Please proofread carefully, and if changes are needed,

please contact Dayle Stinson prior to deadline at 541-966-0824  or

dstinson@eastoregonian.com. 

EOMedia

http://localhost:50010

                  Date: 9/18/2025
            Account: EO10628
                 File#:

Company Name: CITY OF JOHN DAY
             Contact: Melissa Bethel
            Address: 450 E MAIN ST

JOHN DAY, OR 97845-1238
       Telephone: 541-575-0028
                  Fax:

Ad ID:    493494
 Start: 10/01/2025
 Stop: 10/08/2025

 

  Total Cost: $465.60
 Columns Wide: 2.00

 # of Inserts: 6
    Ad Class: Legal Notices

  Phone:     541-966-0824
                       Email:     dstinson@eastoregonian.com

    Amount Due:   $465.60

Run Dates: Notice of Application PAP A25-01

bluemountaineagle.com
10-01-25, 10-08-25

East Oregonian
10-01-25, 10-08-25

eastoregonian.com
10-01-25, 10-08-25

97



ClassAd-493494-1

98



99



100



   M E M O R A N D U M    

DATE August 28, 2025 

TO   Melissa Bethel, City Manager, City of John Day 
Henry Hearley, Associate Planner, Lane Council of Governments 

FROM  Trish Rice, PE 

SUBJECT Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park Project – Site Design Review Completeness 

 
 
Melissa and Henry, 
 
We have updated our Site Design Review completeness review under the John Day 
Development Code (JDDC) based on additional information provided by the applicant since the 
original January 14, 2025 application and the February 18, 2025 pre-application meeting.  We 
understand that the development has been classified as a Type III review and the proposed zone 
change as a Type IV review.  We have performed the Type III review as per JDDC § 5-4.1.040 
and have the following comments. 
 
Our comments are as follows: 
 

JDDC Text Dyer Review Comment 

A. General Submission Requirements. An application for Site Design Review shall contain all 
of the information required for a Type II or Type III review, as applicable, under Sections 5-
4.1.030-040, and provide: 

1.   Public Facilities and Services Impact Study. The 
impact study shall quantify and assess the effect of 
the development on public facilities and services. 
The City shall advise as to the scope of the study 
during the required pre-application conference 
(Section 5- 4.1.060C). The study shall address, at a 
minimum, the transportation system, including 
required improvements for vehicles and 
pedestrians, the drainage system, the parks system, 
the water system, and the sewer system. For each 
public facility system and type of impact, the study 

Update:  In the 2-18-2025 pre-
application meeting, the City 
team determined that a Traffic 
Impact Analysis and a technical 
memo summarizing the demand 
on utilities would satisfy the scope 
of this requirement.  These two 
documents have not been 
submitted, however some 
portions of this information are 
briefly provided throughout 

 

THE DYER PARTNERSHIP 
ENGINEERS & PLANNERS, INC. 

481 S. Main Street 
Lebanon, Oregon 97355 

(541) 405-4520 
www.dyerpart.com 

   

ATTACHMENT D

101

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.1_Types_Of_Review_Procedures
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.1_Types_Of_Review_Procedures
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development&name=5-4.1.060_General_Provisions%3A_120-Day_Rule%3B_Time_Computation%3B_Pre-Application_Conferences%3B_Acceptance_And_Review%3B_Planning_Official%27s_Duties%3B_Amended_Applications%3B_Re-Submittal%3B_Appeals
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development&name=5-4.1.060_General_Provisions%3A_120-Day_Rule%3B_Time_Computation%3B_Pre-Application_Conferences%3B_Acceptance_And_Review%3B_Planning_Official%27s_Duties%3B_Amended_Applications%3B_Re-Submittal%3B_Appeals


shall propose improvements necessary to meet 
City standards; 

various other application 
materials.   
 
Applicant has provided a draft 
Technical Memorandum 
prepared by DKS Associates for 
the purpose of meeting the 
Transportation Planning Rule as 
required by the proposed zone 
change. 
 
Because the site is currently 
undeveloped, the memo’s forecast 
trip generation from the 25 camp 
sites represents the estimated 
traffic impact of the proposed 
development.  The memo does 
not address street improvements.  
The memo is labeled as a draft 
and has not been stamped by a 
licensed professional engineer. 
 
A technical memo summarizing 
the demands on utilities has not 
been submitted.  The previously 
submitted application narrative 
includes brief comments on 
water, sewer and storm drainage.  
The plans indicate stormwater 
detention to manage runoff 
onsite. 

2.   Traffic Impact Analysis, if required by the City or 
other road authority. Traffic Impact Analysis shall 
conform to the standards and procedures in Section 
5-4.1.090; and 

Update: Applicant has provided a 
draft Technical Memorandum 
prepared by DKS Associates for 
the purpose of meeting the 
Transportation Planning Rule as 
required by the proposed zone 
change.  It appears the memo 
may compare the full 
development scenario (5.75 acres) 
of the existing residential zoning 
to a partial development scenario 

102

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development&name=5-4.1.090_Traffic_Impact_Analysis
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development&name=5-4.1.090_Traffic_Impact_Analysis


(25 camp sites, approx. 3.5 acres) 
of the proposed zoning.  The 
memo is labeled as a draft and 
has not been stamped by a 
licensed professional engineer. 

3.   In situations where this Code requires the 
dedication of real property to the City, the City 
shall either (1) include in the written decision 
evidence that shows that the required property 
dedication is directly related to and roughly 
proportional to the projected impacts of the 
development on public facilities and services, or 
(2) not require the dedication as a condition of 
approval. 

N/A 

B. Site Design Review Information. In addition to the general submission requirements for a 
Type III review (Section 5-4.1.040) an applicant for Site Design Review shall provide the 
following additional information, as deemed applicable by the City Planning Official. The 
Planning Official may deem applicable any information that he or she needs to review the 
request and prepare a complete staff report and recommendation to the approval body: 

1. Site analysis map. At a minimum the site analysis map shall contain the following: 

a. The applicant’s entire property and the 
surrounding property to a distance sufficient to 
determine the location of the development in 
the City, and the relationship between the 
proposed development site and adjacent 
property and development. The property 
boundaries, dimensions and gross area shall be 
identified; 

A copy of the assessor’s map 
showing the entire property was 
provided.  The site map does not 
show the entire property, however it 
is sufficient to determine the project 
location and abutting property 
relationships.   

b. Topographic contour lines at 2-foot intervals for 
slopes, except where the Public Works Director 
determines that larger intervals will be adequate 
for steeper slops; 

Included. 

c. Identification of slopes greater than fifteen (15) 
percent, with slope categories identified in 5 
percent increments (e.g., 0%-5%, >5%-10%, 
>10%-15%, >15%20%, and so on.); 

Included. 

d. The location and width of all public and private 
streets, drives, sidewalks, pathways, rights-of-
way, and easements on the site and adjoining the 
site; 

Update:  The applicant has 
provided a title report to aid the 
review of the previously noted 
Right-of-Way (ROW) 
discrepancies.  The 1996 ROW 

103

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development&name=5-4.1.040_Type_III_Procedure_(Quasi-Judicial)


deed (instrument 961953) is the 
most recent document listed in 
the title report.  Upon review of 
the applicant’s provided 
materials, it appears there is a 
bad bearing in the existing 1996 
ROW description which has 
caused the previously noted 
discrepancies and needs to be 
corrected.  It also appears that 
the 1996 ROW description is still 
in effect.  The subsequent Journal 
Voucher entry (1997, updating 
parts of the alignment and 
providing ROW widths, but still 
containing the bad bearing) is not 
in the title report and therefore 
does not seem to have been 
recorded. 
We recommend a condition of 
approval that the existing ROW 
legal description shall be 
corrected to match the as-built 
street alignment and the intended 
ROW widths from that time, and 
shall be legally recorded in the 
County deed records. 
The applicant is requesting 
vacation of a portion of 3rd Street 
Extension ROW.  If the proposed 
30-foot ROW vacation is 
approved then it shall be 
recorded second, such that the 
corrected description of the 
existing ROW has precedence. 
The title report also revealed a 
recorded storm drainage 
easement (1995, instrument 
950789) which appears to 
approximately correspond with 
the storm pipe described by City 
staff on the west side of the 
property.  It appears the 
easement may not extend all the 

104



way to the end of pipe at the 
street.  The description also 
includes a northeasterly length 
towards the river from the 
northwestern property corner.  
We don’t know if there is any 
existing pipe at that location.  We 
recommend requiring the 
applicant to confirm the exact 
bounds of the easement, the as-
built location of the pipe(s), and if 
necessary record an update to the 
easement to match the as-built 
pipe location(s). 
Legal review of all draft 
documents prior to recording is 
recommended. 

e. Potential natural hazard areas, including, as 
applicable, the base flood elevation identified on 
FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Maps or as 
otherwise determined through site specific 
survey, areas subject to high water table, and 
areas designated by the City, County, or State as 
having a potential for geologic hazards; 

Approximate FEMA floodplain 
boundary is shown. 

f. Resource areas, including marsh and wetland 
areas, streams, and wildlife habitat identified by 
the City or any natural resource regulatory 
agencies as requiring protection; 

John Day River is shown on plans.  
Riparian zone is not shown. 

g. Site features, including existing structures, 
pavement, large rock outcroppings, areas having 
unique views, and drainage ways, canals and 
ditches; 

None known. 

h. Locally or federally designated historic and 
cultural resources on the site and adjacent 
parcels or lots; 

None known. 

i. The location, size and species of trees and other 
vegetation having a caliper (diameter) of six (6) 
inches or greater at four feet above grade; 

None known. 

j. North arrow, scale, names and addresses of all 
persons listed as owners of the subject property 
on the most recently recorded deed; 

Included.  

105



k. Name and address of project designer, engineer, 
surveyor, and/or planner, if applicable. 

Included. 

2. Proposed site plan. The site plan shall contain the following information: 
 

a. The proposed development site, including 
boundaries, dimensions, and gross area; 

Included. 

b. Features identified on the existing site analysis 
maps that are proposed to remain on the site; 

Included. 

c. Features identified on the existing site map, if 
any, which are proposed to be removed or 
modified by the development; 

Included. 

d. The location and dimensions of all proposed 
public and private streets, drives, rights-of-way, 
and easements; 

Update:  The existing ROW legal 
description needs to be corrected.   
See comment B.1.d above.  The 
existing ROW correction shall be 
recorded prior to the recording of 
any approved ROW vacation. 
The applicant is requesting 
vacation of a portion of 3rd Street 
Extension ROW. Applicant 
proposes reducing 3rd Street ROW 
width from 120 feet to 90 feet by 
vacating 30 feet from the south 
side.   
3rd Street is classified as a collector 
in the 1996 Transportation System 
Plan, the 2009 Local Street 
Network Plan, and the 2021 
Transportation Study. 
The proposed 90-foot width is 
satisfactory for a collector as per 
JDDC Table 5-3.4.010F. 
There is an existing sewer main 
on the south side of 3rd Street 
which is within the requested 
vacation area.  A 15-foot utility 
easement is proposed.  If 
approved, the width of proposed 
utility easement shall be decided by 
the Public Works Director as per 

106



JDDC § 5-3.4.060.  A 20-foot 
easement is recommended. 
There is a proposed crosswalk for 
connectivity to the existing trail 
on the north side of 3rd Street. 
Enhancement and more formal 
adoption of this path into a wider 
John Day River path system is 
identified in the 2009 Local Street 
Network Plan (LSNP) (Figure 4-2 
and 4-3, p44-45 and Project 22, 
p53). An easement for public 
access of the trail is 
recommended. 
Legal review is recommended. 

e. The location and dimensions of all existing and 
proposed structures, utilities, pavement and 
other improvements on the site. Setback 
dimensions for all existing and proposed 
buildings shall be provided on the site plan; 

Update:  The proposed plan does 
not indicate street improvements.   
Street improvements on 3rd Street 
Extension are identified in the 
Transportation System Plan (p9-
12) and the LSNP (Project 23, 
p53).  
We recommend requiring half 
street improvements along the 
northern frontage of the 
development area (approximately 
535 ft) in accordance with the 
TSP, LSNP, and JCCD 5-
3.4.010.A.3. 
Locations and dimensions of 
structures and pavement are 
included. 
We recommend requiring a fence 
around infiltration swale ‘A’ for 
public safety due to the indicated 
water depth of approximately 3 
feet. 
A 20-foot setback from 3rd Street is 
shown.  The setbacks should be 
reviewed for applicable 

107



requirements under the proposed 
zoning with a collector street. 
Water/sewer utilities show location 
and size.  A new 2” water meter is 
proposed serve the development.   
A backflow preventor is indicated 
to be installed at or near the water 
meter. 
The City water main ends by the 
water service at the western side of 
the property.  Update:  In the 2-18-
2025 pre-application meeting, the 
Fire Chief determined that a 
water main extension for fire 
protection is not required. 

f. The location and dimensions of entrances and 
exits to the site for vehicular, pedestrian, and 
bicycle access; 

Included.  The applicant appears to 
be requesting variance from the 
driveway width standards. The 
proposed 3rd Street driveway is 40 
feet wide.  
City code stipulates lane width of 
10-12’ for one-way access and 9’-
11’ for two-way access (JDDC § 5-
3.1.020.K). 
Access permitting will be required.  
Driveway construction satisfying 
JDDC § 5-3.1.020.K will be 
required. 
A pedestrian access gate is 
indicated on the southwest corner 
of the RV park which lets out onto 
the remainder of the property. 
There are two existing driveways 
indicated on the plans, but only the 
western driveway is called out for 
removal.  The eastern driveway 
should also be removed. 

g. The location and dimensions of all parking and 
vehicle circulation areas (show striping for 
parking stalls and wheel stops); 

Included.  

108



h. Pedestrian and bicycle circulation areas, 
including sidewalks, internal pathways, pathway 
connections to adjacent properties, and any 
bicycle lanes or trails; 

Update:  We recommend 
requiring street improvements as 
described in comment B.2.e 
above. 
There is a proposed crosswalk for 
connectivity to the existing trail on 
the north side of 3rd Street. 
Enhancement and more formal 
adoption of this path into a wider 
John Day River path system is 
identified in the 2009 Local Street 
Network Plan (LSNP) (Figure 4-2 
and 4-3, p44-45 and Project 22, 
p53). An easement for public 
access of the trail is 
recommended.  Legal review is 
recommended. 
We recommend seeking comments 
from ODOT due to the proximity to 
Highway 26. 

i. Loading and service areas for waste disposal, 
loading and delivery; 

Included. 

j. Outdoor recreation spaces, common areas, 
plazas, outdoor seating, street furniture, and 
similar improvements; 

Included.  

k. Location, type, and height of outdoor lighting; Included. 

l. Location of mail boxes, if known; Application narrative: “None 
needed. Mail will go to existing 
main fairgrounds office.” 
No concerns at this time. 

m. Name and address of project designer, if 
applicable; 

Included. 

n. Locations of bus stops and other public or 
private transportation facilities; 

N/A. 

o. Locations, sizes, and types of signs; Application narrative: “None 
proposed. In future if one is needed 
owner will apply for sign permit.” 
Crosswalk signage is 
recommended. 

109



Wayfinding and/or entrance signage 
is recommended. 

3. Architectural drawings. Architectural drawings showing one or all of the following shall 
be required for new commercial, commercial/residential, industrial and multifamily 
buildings, and major remodels of the same:  

a. Building elevations (as determined by the City 
Planning Official) with building height and 
width dimensions;  

Included (Sheet 02). 

b. Building materials, colors and type;  Application narrative: “Some 
building materials and types on 
shown on the building elevation, 
others and final colors to be 
determined owner.” 

c. The name of the architect or designer.  Included. 

4. Preliminary grading plan. A preliminary grading 
plan prepared by a registered engineer shall be 
required for development sites one-half (½) acre or 
larger. The preliminary grading plan shall show the 
location and extent to which grading will take 
place, indicating general changes to contour lines, 
slope ratios, slope stabilization proposals, and 
location and height of retaining walls, if proposed. 
Surface water detention and treatment plans may 
also be required, in accordance with Section 5-
3.4.040. 

Included. 
Update:  The plans indicate on-
site stormwater detention.  
Engineered stormwater 
calculations will be required for 
construction permitting.  We 
recommend requiring a fence 
around infiltration swale ‘A’ for 
public safety due to the indicated 
water depth of approximately 3 
feet. 
 

5. Landscape plan. Where a landscape plan is required, it shall show the following: 
 

a. The location and height of existing and 
proposed fences, buffering or screening 
materials;  

Included. 

b. The location of existing and proposed terraces, 
retaining walls, decks, patios, shelters, and play 
areas;  

N/A. 

c. The location, size, and species of the existing 
and proposed plant materials (at time of 
planting);  

Application narrative: “Proposed 
landscape trees are shown on plan 
sheet 02. Each dividing area 
between RVs will have a minimum 
of 2 trees when site is fully 
developed and other trees fit in 

110



around the permitter, inside the 
fence. The trees will be a mixture of 
spring time flowering trees (i.e 
redbud, dogwood), trees with bright 
fall time foliage (i.e. maples, oaks), 
will follow recommendations of 
local nursery for varieties that are 
hardly enough for the local climate, 
mature providing shade, and low 
maintenance. At planting the trees 
will be 4’-6’ in height.” 

d. Existing and proposed building and pavement 
outlines;  

Included. 

e. Specifications for soil at time of planting, 
irrigation if plantings are not drought tolerant 
(may be automatic or other approved method of 
irrigation) and anticipated planting schedule;  

Application narrative: “Will follow 
recommendations of local nursery 
on planting time and water needs.” 

f. Other information as deemed appropriate by the 
City Planning Official. An arborist’s report may 
be required for sites with mature trees that are 
protected under Chapter 5-3.2. Landscape, 
Street Trees, Fences and Walls of this Code.  

N/A. 

6. Deed restrictions. Copies of all existing and 
proposed restrictions or covenants, including those 
for access control.  

None known at this time.  Applicant 
states in narrative that there are no 
existing or proposed restrictions or 
covenants. 

7. Narrative. Letter or narrative report documenting 
compliance with the applicable approval criteria 
contained in Section 5-4.2.060 Approval Criteria.  

A narrative was included, but does 
not address the requirements of 
JDDC § 5-4.2.060. 

8. Traffic Impact Analysis, when required, shall be 
prepared in accordance with the road authority’s 
requirements. See Section 5-4.1.090, and Section 5-
3.4.010 for relevant standards.  

Update:  See comment A.2 above. 

 
Update: Additional Comments 
 
To facilitate project development, we recommend informing the applicant of the following 
permitting/construction topics: 

1. The project will require a DEQ 1200-C erosion control permit for ground disturbance 
over 1 acre. 

111



2. Design plans for the proposed site work, including access, parking, drainage, and utilities, 
including engineered stormwater calculations, shall be submitted for review and approval 
by the City Engineer prior to the start of construction activity.  The City’s adopted 
System Development Charges, connection fees, and permitting fees will apply. 

 

END MEMORANDUM 

112



WARNING: This is NOT an internal sender. Please review this message carefully
before responding or interacting. If you have any concerns, contact the SERVICE DESK
or click here to submit a ticket.

From: Mathew Hogan from Fair Housing Council of Oregon
To: HEARLEY Henry O
Subject: PAPA file PAPA 25-01​
Date: Wednesday, October 8, 2025 9:43:16 AM

Good morning ​Henry,

My name is Mathew Hogan and I am conducting outreach for the Fair Housing Council of
Oregon (FHCO). I was hoping to obtain the staff report and all corresponding attachments for
PAPA 25-01 the “zone change from RL to Parks Reserve for RV park expansion for Grant
County Fairgrounds. On county property.“ when available. We will be reviewing the staff
report predominantly for Statewide Planning Goal 10 compliance.

If we do have any commentary or concerns my colleagues and I will be in touch to advise. We
hope this can be a collaborative process. Please confirm receipt of this e-mail, and I look
forward to hearing from you soon.

Very Respectfully,​

Mathew Hogan
Fair Housing Council of Oregon
Phone: (503) 928-8597
E-mail: Mathew.JamesFHCO@gmail.com
For the latest on the PAPA Project and our feedback & technical advice methodology, please read the PAPAs section at our
partner website, here.

 Powered by HubSpot.

ATTACHMENT E

113

https://lcog.assist.com/portal/incidents/new?incident%5Bservice_id%5D=1890463536588030089
mailto:mathew.jamesfhco@gmail.com
mailto:HHEARLEY@lcog-or.gov
tel:(503) 928-4943
mailto:Sbrmdz@protonmail.com
mailto:athew.JamesFHCO@gmail.com
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhousinglandadvocates.wordpress.com%2Fwhat-we-do%2F&data=05%7C02%7CHHEARLEY%40lcog-or.gov%7C3d7461f0471b4b00768008de0689c547%7C9a80ddb717904782a634ef32f273169c%7C0%7C0%7C638955385956700920%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=MgwKMYGoGkEmyvV52yWdx6XazWj5YOyuo%2FKtB%2BvLUFY%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fapp.hubspot.com%2Fsignup-hubspot%2Fsales%3Fuuid%3D7114a9e2-6e94-43ae-949f-ba6a6f8c71fc%26utm_medium%3Dvirality%26utm_campaign%3Dhubspot-email-plugin-virality&data=05%7C02%7CHHEARLEY%40lcog-or.gov%7C3d7461f0471b4b00768008de0689c547%7C9a80ddb717904782a634ef32f273169c%7C0%7C0%7C638955385956727035%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TeKSCbatLpdkgttGxHmvckLMQlrf5j8xULT9e9%2FqOpE%3D&reserved=0


TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  May 2, 2025 

TO:  Joe Hitz| Sisul Engineering 

FROM:  Kevin Chewuk | DKS Associates 

SUBJECT:  John Day Fairgrounds 

Transportation Planning Rule Study 
 
 

This letter presents the findings of an evaluation of potential traffic impacts associated with the 
proposed zone change for a 5.75-acre portion of the 16.41-acre parcel (Tax Lot 13S31E231300) 
located along the NE 3rd Avenue Extension in John Day, Oregon. The current zoning for the 
property is Residential Limited (RL) and Park Reserve (PR). The owner proposes to change the 
zoning of 5.75 acres of the property from Residential Limited to Park Reserve. 

The proposed zone change must meet the requirements of Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 660-
012-0060, also known as the Transportation Planning Rule (TPR). The intent of the TPR is to 
ensure that future land use and traffic growth is consistent with transportation system planning 
and does not create a significant effect on the surrounding transportation system beyond currently 
allowed uses. The definition of a significant effect on a transportation facility is defined as the 
following1: 

• Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility  

• Change standards implementing a functional classification system 

• Results in types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional 
classification of an existing or planned transportation facility  

• Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility such that it would not 
meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan  

• Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is otherwise 
projected to not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan. 

1 OAR 660-012-0060 (1) 

ATTACHMENT F

114



This letter documents the expected trip generation of the reasonable worst-case development 
potential under the current and proposed zoning, and whether the proposed zone change will 
create a significant effect on the transportation system. 

CURRENT ZONING TRIP GENERATION 

Under the current Residential Limited zoning (5.75-acres), the following land uses are permitted 
outright per city code2. Note that some additional uses are permitted with standards or as part of a 
conditional use permit, but only those permitted outright have been included in the summary 
below. 

• Household living (e.g., single-family detached, duplex, cottage cluster) 

• Family daycare (i.e., 16 or fewer children) 

• Adult daycare 

• Basic utilities 

• Park and open space (when designated on an adopted Specific Area Plan or subdivision 
application) 

• Livestock or small animals (subject to limitations) 

• Transportation facilities 

To identify the reasonable worst case trip generation for the current Residential Limited zoning, the 
land uses with the highest trip generation rates are presented in Table 1. 

TABLE 1: EXAMPLE TRIP GENERATION RATES FOR PERMITTED LAND USES UNDER CURRENT 
ZONING 

LAND USE (ITE CODE) INDEPENDENT 
VARIABLE 

WEEKDAY TRIP GENERATION RATES 

DAILY AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR 

SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED 
HOUSING (210) Dwelling Units 

9.43 trips per 
dwelling unit 

0.70 trips per 
dwelling unit 

0.94 trips per 
dwelling unit 

SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED 
HOUSING (215) Dwelling Units 

7.20 trips per 
dwelling unit 

0.48 trips per 
dwelling unit 

0.57 trips per 
dwelling unit 

DAY CARE (565) Students 
4.09 trips per 

student 
0.78 trips per 

student 
0.79 trips per 

student 

Several assumptions were utilized to determine the amount of buildable land and sizes of potential 
development to base trip generation estimates (see Table 2). Average assumptions regarding 
development densities that can reasonably be expected were utilized to estimate the net quantities 

2 City of  John Day Development Code, Article 5-2 Land Use Districts, 5-2.2.020 Residential Districts. 

115



of potential development. The development assumptions were based on a minimum lot size of 
5,000 square feet per unit for detached dwelling units, 4,000 square feet per unit for attached 
dwelling units in the Residential Limited zone and included a 20 percent reduction of the total 
parcel size for infrastructure and other unbuildable areas. 

Based on these assumptions, the reasonable worst-case development under the current zoning is 
assumed to be up to 40 single-family detached dwelling units. Table 2 shows that this assumed use 
would be expected to generate the most average weekday trips under the current zoning, with up 
to 378 daily trips, 28 AM peak hour trips, and 38 PM peak hour trips. 

TABLE 2: DEVELOPMENT ASSUMPTIONS FOR PERMITTED LAND USES UNDER CURRENT ZONING 

LAND USE (ITE CODE) SIZE  * DEVELOPMENT 
DENSITY ** NET SIZE 

AVERAGE WEEKDAY TRIP 
GENERATION 

DAILY AM PEAK 
HOUR 

PM PEAK 
HOUR 

SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED 
HOUSING (210) 5.75 gross 

acres;  

4.60 net 
acres 

5,000 square 
foot minimum lot 

size per unit 

40 
dwelling 

units 
378 28 38 

SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED 
HOUSING (215) 

4,000 square 
foot minimum lot 

size per unit 

50 
dwelling 

units 
361 24 29 

Notes: * A 20 percent reduction for infrastructure and unbuildable areas was applied to the 5.75-acre 
parcel, resulting in a total buildable area of 4.60 acres. 

** Source: City of John Day Development Code 

PROPOSED ZONING TRIP GENERATION 

Under the proposed Park Reserve zoning (5.75-acres), the following land uses are permitted 
outright per city code3. Note that some additional uses are permitted as part of a conditional use 
permit, but only those permitted outright have been included in the summary below. 

• Public reserve areas of natural, historical or geological significance.  

• Public wildlife reserve or management area.  

• Public or commercial recreation use, including marina, recreation camp, or resort.  

• Utility facilities that directly support or enhance recreation use/visitor health and safety.  

• Public picnic grounds, parks, playgrounds, campgrounds or nature trails.  

• Fairgrounds, accessory structures for fairgrounds use, and accessory parking for fairgrounds.  

3 City of  John Day Development Code, Article 5-2 Land Use Districts, 5-2.7 Park Reserve (PR) Zone. 

116



To identify the reasonable worst case trip generation under the proposed zoning, the land uses 
with the highest trip generation rates are presented in Table 3.  

TABLE 3: TRIP GENERATION RATES FOR PERMITTED LAND USES UNDER PROPOSED ZONING 

LAND USE (ITE CODE) INDEPENDENT 
VARIABLE 

WEEKDAY TRIP GENERATION RATES 

DAILY AM PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR 

PUBLIC PARK (411) Acres 
0.78 trips per 

acre 
0.02 trips per 

acre 
0.11 trips per 

acre 

CAMPGROUND/ 
RECREATIONAL VEHICLE 
PARK (416) 

 Campsites 
2.70 trips per 

campsite 
0.21 trips per 

campsite 
0.27 trips per 

campsite 

The development assumptions were based on a 20 percent reduction of the total parcel size for 
infrastructure and other unbuildable areas for the public park use and the proposed site plan in 
Figure 1 showing 25 campsites on the 5.75-acre parcel for the campground/recreational vehicle 
park use under the proposed Park Reserve zoning. 

FIGURE 1: SITE PLAN FOR THE PROPOSED RV PARK UNDER THE PROPOSED ZONING

 

 

117



Based on these assumptions, the reasonable worst-case development under the current zoning is 
assumed to be up to 25 campsites. Table 4 shows that this assumed use would be expected to 
generate the most average weekday trips under the current zoning, with up to 68 daily trips, 5 AM 
peak hour trips, and 7 PM peak hour trips. 

TABLE 4: DEVELOPMENT ASSUMPTIONS FOR PERMITTED LAND USES UNDER PROPSED ZONING 

LAND USE (ITE CODE) SIZE DEVELOPMENT 
DENSITY *** NET SIZE 

AVERAGE WEEKDAY TRIP 
GENERATION 

DAILY AM PEAK 
HOUR 

PM PEAK 
HOUR 

PUBLIC PARK (411) 

5.75 gross 
acres;  

4.60 net 
acres * 

The minimum lot 
size shall be as 
determined by 
the City to be 
necessary for the 
protection of 
public health and 
natural resource 

4.60 acres 4 0 1 

CAMPGROUND/ 
RECREATIONAL VEHICLE 
PARK (416) 

25 
campsites 

** 
68 5 7 

Notes: * A 20 percent reduction for infrastructure and unbuildable areas was applied to the 5.75-acre 
parcel, resulting in a total buildable area of 4.60 acres. 

** Based on proposed site plan showing 25 campsites on the 5.75-acre parcel. 

*** Source: City of John Day Development Code 

COMPARISON OF TRIP GENERATION POTENTIAL 

The previous tables show the reasonable worst-case development potential of the property under 
the current zoning and the proposed zoning. As shown in Table 5, the proposed zone change could 
result in a net decrease of 310 daily trips, 23 AM peak hour trips, and 31 PM peak hour trips. 

TABLE 5: COMPARISON OF TRIP GENERATION 

ZONING SCENARIO 

AVERAGE WEEKDAY TRIP 
GENERATION 

DAILY AM PEAK 
HOUR 

PM PEAK 
HOUR 

Current Zoning Trips 
(Table 2) 378 28 38 

Proposed Zoning Trips 
(Table 4) 68 5 7 

NET DIFFERENCE 
(PROPOSED – CURRENT) 

-310 -23 -31 

 

 

118



TRANSPORTATION PLANNING RULE FINDINGS 

After evaluating the reasonable worst-case development potential of the parcel under the current 
and proposed zoning, the zone change could result in a net decrease of 310 daily trips, 23 AM peak 
hour trips, and 31 PM peak hour trips. Based on the findings of this analysis, it can be concluded 
that the proposed zone change and traffic growth is consistent with transportation system planning 
and does not create a significant effect on the surrounding transportation system beyond currently 
allowed uses and therefore complies with the Transportation Planning Rule requirements. 

119



1 

1 

STAFF REPORT  
Zone Change and Site Design Review  
Grant County Fairgrounds Expansion  

PAPA 25-01  
PC Deliberations for November 12, 2025 

Date Submitted: November 5, 2025  

Agenda Date Requested: November 12, 2025  

To: John Day Planning Commission 

From: Henry Hearley, Associate 
Planner, Lane Council of 
Governments  

Subject: Revised Staff report for PAPA 25-01 

Location: Tax Lot 01300 on Map 13S-31E-23 

Published Notice: October 1 & October 8, 2025  

Type of Action Requested 

[ ] Resolution [ ] Ordinance 

[ X ] Formal Action 
(recommendation) 

[ ] Report 
Only 

1. UPDATES FROM LAST MEETING

The Planning Commission is reconvening for deliberations and to consider additional evidence 
submitted by the applicant. At the October 22nd meeting, the Planning Commission held a 
public hearing and received new oral testimony. Planning Commission passed a motion to 
close the public hearing but keep the record open to allow for additional written evidence to be 
submitted.  

At the October 22nd meeting, the Planning Commission did take formal action on the 
applicant’s proposed zone change. The Planning Commission found that the proposed zone 
change was in the public interest and recommended the zone change be approved. The zone 
change criteria has been removed from this revised staff report.  

1

EXHIBIT B 



2 
 

 

The only application yet to be determined is the applicant’s request for Site Design Review for 
creation on a new 25 spot RV Park. At the conclusion of the hearing on October 22nd, there 
remained several outstanding matters that needed to be discussed and resolved. The open 
record period allowed the applicant to put their substantial oral testimony provided at the 
hearing, on paper and formalize their position on several conditions of approval that were 
presented at the October 22nd hearing. This revised staff report will go through the applicant’s 
additional written testimony and staff will offer their responses, where appropriate.  
 
Some previous conditions of approval have been removed altogether and some have been 
revised.  
 
2. NEW EVIDENCE SUBMITTED  

 
On October 30, the applicant’s engineer submitted the following additional testimony for 
Planning Commission’s review and consideration: 
 
Narrative for Site Design Review Conditions 10-30-25;  
Attachment A – Proposed 3rd St. ROW Revised 10-30-25; 
Attachment A-1 – Existing ROW West;  
Attachment B – D – Transportation Information;  
Attachment E – Utility Locate Notes;  
Attachment F – Original Construction Agreement; and  
Attachment G – Landscape plan 11-4-25.  
 
3. UPDATE ON ISSUES IDENTIFED  

 
The following issues presented below were initially identified at the October 22nd hearing. Staff 
take this opportunity to provide an update on each issue.  
 
Update on Issue #1 Right-of-Way Discrepancy  
 
The City and the applicant agree that discrepancies exist in the legal description of the existing 
extension of the 3rd Street right-of-way (ROW) and that these discrepancies need to be 
resolved. The core issue is determining who bears the responsibility for correcting them. 
 
Applicant’s Attachment F is an agreement between Grant County and the City of John Day 
concerning the construction and ownership of the 3rd Street extension. Under this agreement, 
Grant County agreed to construct the extension of 3rd Street, and upon completion, ownership 
of the roadway would be transferred to the City of John Day for inclusion in the City’s 
transportation network. Attachment F also includes agreement principle #6, which states: “Upon 
acceptance of this road, the County will convey title and jurisdiction of this road segment to the 
City of John Day.” See Figure 1 below.  
 
Because there is no recorded ROW width in the existing deed for this portion of 3rd Street—
and the accompanying Journal Voucher has no legal standing to establish one (per the 
applicant’s surveyor’s oral testimony on October 22nd) —it appears the County did not fully 
carry out agreement principle #6. The applicant contends that this issue was not created by the 
Fairgrounds development. 

2



3 
 

 

 
The applicant proposes to dedicate a new ROW that conforms to City standards for a Collector 
Street and extends as needed to include the toe of the existing fill slopes. However, the 
applicant argues that requiring the Fairgrounds project to bear the full cost of resolving this 
issue would be inappropriate, as the ROW discrepancy exists regardless of whether the 
proposed RV Park is developed. 

 
Figure 1. Excerpt from Attachment F which is the original construction agreement between Grant County, Oregon, and 
City of John Day for the construction of the extension of 3rd Street. Original agreement is dated April 17, 1996. 

Staff acknowledges the applicant’s position that the 3rd Street ROW discrepancy originated 
from the 1996 construction agreement between the County and the City, and not from the 
current development proposal. However, the City must ensure that new development occurs on 
properly dedicated public right-of-way consistent with current design standards. The existing 
lack of a defined ROW width means the legal right-of-way is effectively zero feet and this may 
have been the result of failure for County to follow through on agreement principle #6. 
Therefore, dedication of the appropriate ROW is necessary to establish legal and design clarity 
for future improvements to 3rd Street. 
 
The City’s requirement for ROW dedication is consistent with Chapter 5-3.4.010(A)(1) & (3), 
which authorize the City to require additional right-of-way to ensure adequate public facilities 
and compliance with adopted street design standards.  
 
Staff therefore recommends dedication of a 62-foot-wide ROW consistent with the Collector 
Street, Option D cross-section identified in Table 5-3.4.101F. This dedication will correct the 
longstanding deficiency, provide for orderly extension of public infrastructure, and ensure that 
future improvements meet City standards. 
 
Accordingly, Staff recommend that the Planning Commission accept the revised Condition of 
Approval #1 related to Issue #1. 
 

3



4 
 

 

Revised Condition of Approval #1: Prior to issuance of a building permit, connecting to City 
water or sewer service, or creating a new access to 3rd Street, whichever occurs first, Applicant 
must take action(s) satisfactory to City to establish or correct the delineation of the 3rd Street 
right-of-way through the subject property such that it is 62 feet in width and none of applicant’s 
improvements (other than permitted utility connections) are located within the right-of-
way.  Action may include dedicating right-of-way and/or filing petitions for vacation of right-of-
way and/or street legalization process first brought up by the applicant’s surveyor. A 62’ ROW 
corresponds with Option D for a Collector Street as adopted in Table 5-3.4.101F, Minimum 
Street, Sidewalk and Bikeway Standards. Condition of Approval #1 is tied to Chapter 5-
3.4.101(A)(1) & (3), Adequate Public Facilities and Street Improvements.  

 
Issue #2 Storm Drainage Easement  
 
Issue #2 has been resolved during the oral testimony of the applicant’s surveyor at the public 
hearing on October 22nd. Applicant’s land surveyor determined accurately the easement 
matches the as-built location of the City’s stormwater system across the subject property. Note: 
it does not appear City-staff independently verified this though, judging by the locate request 
submitted and included in Attachment E.   
 
Condition of Approval #2 is no longer applicable and is proposed for deletion.  

Update on Planning Commission’s Recommendation on Discretionary Items.  

Staff thank the Planning Commission for providing direction on the three previous discretionary 
items that were decided on October 22nd. A review of those three items is provided below. 
However, during the review of the additional applicant testimony, a few more items became 
known that require the Planning Commission’s discretion. Those new items are discussed 
immediately below. Staff request the Planning Commission review, debate these items, and 
provide direction to Staff on how to proceed. Staff note, any direction or decision provided 
about these items would be forwarded to the City Council for final approval.  

Item #4: The underground utility provision,  

Item #5: The requirement for fencing around Swale “A,” 

Item #6: Approval of the proposed landscape plan, and  

Item #7: Appoint a designee to the Public Works Director. Staff recommend the designee be the 
City Engineer.  

 

 

 

4



5 
 

 

On October 22, staff presented three items to the Planning Commission that required 
discretion. The three items are described below as is the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation on each item.  

Item #1: Should a 6’ tall fence be allowed around the entirety of the site?  An exception may be 
granted if it does not pose hazard to public health or safety and is compatible with existing 
structures in the vicinity. 

 Planning Commission passed a motion to approve a fence that exceeds 6’ around the 
entirety of the site and found doing so does not pose a threat to public safety.  

Item #2: Is the applicant’s off-street parking plan to provide three off-street parking spaces, with 
one space being ADA acceptable?  

 Planning Commission passed a motion to approve the applicant’s proposed off-street 
parking plan as shown on the site plan.  

Item #3: This item is twofold: 

1. Determine which use category an RV Park falls under for purposes of applying off-street 
parking and bicycle parking standards; and 

2. If applicable, determine the required number of bicycle parking spaces consistent with the 
standards in Table 5-3.3.030A. 

 Planning Commission found the bicycle parking standards to be triggered and 
determined the appropriate number of bicycle parking spaces to be provided is three.  

4.   REVIEW OF SITE DESIGN REIVEW CRITIERIA.  
 
 5-4.2.060 Site Design Review – Approval Criteria.  

A. An application for Site Design Review shall be approved if the proposal meets all of 
the following criteria. The City decision making body may, in approving the application 
may impose reasonable conditions of approval, consistent with the applicable criteria: 
 

1. The application is complete, as determined in accordance with Chapter 5-4.1 – 
Types of Applications and Section 5-4.2.050, above.  
 

Staff Response: The application was deemed complete for processing on September 11, 2025.  
 

2. The application complies with all of the applicable provisions of the underlying Land 
Use District (Article 5-2), including: building and yard setbacks, lot area and dimensions, 
density and floor area, lot coverage, building height, building orientation, architecture, 
and other applicable standards; 
 

Staff Response: Following successful rezone to a larger portion of the subject property Parks 
Reserve, the proposed use of an RV Park is a permitted commercial recreational use in the PR 
zone.  

 

5

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=ARTICLE_5-2_LAND_USE_DISTRICTS


6 
 

 

3. The applicant shall be required to upgrade any existing development that does not 
comply with the applicable land use district standards, in conformance with Chapter 5-
5.2, Non-Conforming Uses and Development; 

 
Staff Response: There is no existing development on the subject property. The subject property 
is vacant and consists of bare ground. There are no non-conforming uses located on the subject 
property.  
 

4. The proposal complies with all of the Design Standards in Article 5-3: 
 

Staff Response: For a review and discussion of (4), Staff will provide a response for each 
Chapter described in (4)  to address compliance with Article 5-3.  

Chapter 5-3.1 - Access and Circulation; 

C. Access Permit Required. Access to a public street (e.g., a new curb cut or driveway 
approach) requires an Access Permit. An access permit may be in the form of a letter to the 
applicant, or it may be attached to a land use decision notice as a condition of approval. In 
either case, approval of an access permit shall follow the procedures and requirements of the 
applicable roadway authority, as determined through the review procedures in Article 5-4.  

Staff Response: A new driveway approach is proposed off 3rd Street, therefore, an access 
permit will be required (called a “right-of-way” permit). The applicant shall submit for and obtain a 
right-of-way permit before the City signs off on the building permit application form. Traffic access 
and control plans may be required as part of the permit review. Construction plans will be 
reviewed timely and in conformance with the approved site plan, conditions of approval, City 
design standards, and ROW permit requirements. This shall be a condition of approval.  
 
Condition of Approval #3: A right-of-way permit shall be required for any work to be performed 
in City right-of-way. A traffic control plan may be required. A right-of-way permit application may 
be submitted to the City either prior to or concurrent with building permit submittal.  
 

D. Traffic Study Requirements. The City may require a traffic study prepared by a 
qualified professional to determine access, circulation, and other transportation 
requirements in conformance with Section 5-4.1.090, Traffic Impact Study.  
 

Staff Response: City did not require a full traffic study, rather City required TPR Significant Effects 
Analysis to be conducted. A TRP Significant Effects Analysis is required by virtue of the proposed 
zone change. A Significant Effects Analysis ensures that the future land use and traffic growth from 
the new land use is consistent with the transportation system. As alluded to earlier, the zone change 
actually results in a net decrease in overall trips.  
 

E. Conditions of Approval. The City or other roadway authority, as applicable, may require 
the closing or consolidation of existing curb cuts or other vehicle access points, recording of 
reciprocal access easements (i.e., for shared driveways), development of a frontage street, 
installation of traffic control devices, and/or other mitigation as a condition of granting an 
access permit, to ensure the safe and efficient operation of the street and highway system. 
 

6

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-5.2_Non-Conforming_Uses_And_Developments
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-5.2_Non-Conforming_Uses_And_Developments
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=ARTICLE_5-3_COMMUNITY_DESIGN_STANDARDS
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=ARTICLE_5-4_ADMINISTRATION_OF_LAND_USE_AND_DEVELOPMENT
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.1.090_Traffic_Impact_Analysis


7 
 

 

Staff Response: Chapter 5-3.1.020(E) authorizes the City to impose conditions of approval requiring 
the upgrading of transportation facilities impacted by development and having frontage on City rights-
of-way. The subject property fronts the planned extension of 3rd Street, which currently lacks half-
street improvements including curb, gutter, and sidewalk. These improvements are necessary to 
ensure safe pedestrian circulation and to support an interconnected street network consistent with City 
standards. 
 
Additionally, pursuant to Chapter 5-3.010(A)(1) and (3), the City may require dedication of ROW 
where needed to ensure adequate public facilities consistent with adopted street standards. Because 
no ROW width is recorded for this segment of 3rd Street, the existing legal ROW width is functionally 
zero feet. This presents an opportunity to correct the ROW record and establish the appropriate street 
width. 
 
Consistent with the Collector Street, Option D cross-section identified in Table 5-3.4.101F, a 62-foot 
right-of-way (ROW) width is required to accommodate the necessary public infrastructure. Dedication 
of ROW is therefore required to comply with City standards and to support proper design and future 
improvements for the extension of 3rd Street. 
 
Option D for a Collector Street is also consistent with the John Day Local Street Network Plan (LSNP), 
which identifies key issues for this segment, including the lack of sidewalk and/or bikeway facilities 
and the importance of 3rd Avenue as a connector linking neighborhoods southeast of downtown to 
open space and recreational trails along the John Day River. Refer to Figure 3 below for Table 5-
3.4.101F. 
 
Frontage improvements totaling approximately 535 linear feet are required. However, as discussed in 
the staff report, Staff recommends allowing the applicant to provide a future improvement guarantee in 
lieu of constructing the improvements at this time. This is something the Planning Commission will 
have to consider and recommend granting to the applicant. Given the current lack of continuous 
pedestrian facilities north and south of the site, immediate construction would not provide a complete 
network. A deferred improvement guarantee ensures compliance with City standards while aligning 
infrastructure installation with future phasing and adjoining improvements. 
 
The required ROW dedication and deferred construction guarantee are roughly proportional to the 
nature and extent of the development and necessary to ensure compliance with adopted street, 
pedestrian, and safety standards. 
 
The below revised Condition of Approval #4 is written reflecting Staff’s recommendation that Planning 
Commission consider and allow a future guarantee for otherwise required frontage improvements 
concurrent with site development. A signed and recorded waiver of remonstrance may be triggered at 
any time by the City when a Local Improvement District (LID) is formed. A waiver of remonstrance 
does not prohibit a property owner from testifying in favor or opposition to the formation of a LID, but 
they do waive their right to object to the formation of a LID.  
 
Revised Condition of Approval #4: Prior to issuance of a building permit, connection to City water or 
sewer service, or creation of a new access to 3rd Street, whichever occurs first, the Applicant shall 
sign and record a Waiver of Remonstrance as a guarantee for future frontage improvements along 3rd 
Street for the length of the proposed development frontage, approximately 535 feet. Future frontage 
improvements shall be constructed consistent with the adopted Collector Street standards (Option D), 

7



8 
 

 

including half-street improvements consisting of sidewalk, curb, and gutter. The rough proportionality 
of the required improvements corresponds to the length of the development frontage, approximately 
535 feet along 3rd Street. 
 
Chapter 5-3.2 - Landscaping, Significant Vegetation, Street Trees, Fences and Walls; 

5-3.2.020 Landscape Conservation.  

E. Construction; Erosion and Sediment Control. An erosion and sediment control plan is 
required for all new construction. All significant vegetation on a site that is not otherwise 
designated and approved by the City for removal shall be protected prior to, during, and after 
construction in accordance with a limit-of-clearing and grading plan approved by the City. The 
City may limit grading activities and operation of vehicles and heavy equipment in and around 
significant vegetation areas, streams and other water bodies to prevent erosion, pollution, or 
landslide hazards. 

Staff Response: An erosion and control plan will be reviewed as part of the construction level review 
of the plans. Condition of Approval #5 is proposed for deletion. Applicants are hereby made aware an 
erosion and control plan shall accompany the final construction plans. Applicants are hereby made 
aware that providing a copy of their 1200-C or 1200-CA erosion control permit to the City will be required 
during construction plan review. 

Condition of Approval #5: A final erosion and sediment control plan will be required to be submitted 
before the City signs off on the City portion of the building permit application. 

5-3.2.030 Landscaping And Screening 

A. Applicability. This Section shall apply to all new developments requiring Site Design 
Review. The landscape standards may be modified in accordance with the Adjustment 
procedure in Section 5-4.2.060.B. The Planning Official may approve an adjustment to 
any standard in this section by up to 20%; the Planning Commission reviews larger 
adjustments.  

B. Landscaping Plan Required. A landscape plan is required. All landscape plans shall 
conform to the requirements in subsection 5-4.2.050B.5 (Landscape Plans).  

Staff Response: Applicant submitted a landscape plan via email on November 4. The applicant’s 
landscape plan shows the site to be landscaped with a variety of trees between 4-6’, shrubs, and 
groundcovers. Each individual RV space will be landscaped as seen on the landscape plan. Plants are 
proposed to be hand-watered when necessary.  

In the applicant’s written narrative dated October 30, 2025, the applicant states that the PR zone does 
not have adopted minimum landscaping requirements. This is correct. The applicant also notes that the 
cost of large trees and 5-gallon container shrubs will limit what the Fairground can afford for site 
landscaping. Because the PR zone does not specify a minimum landscaping percentage, the applicant 
is requesting that the Planning Commission approve a landscape plan that aligns with their budget and 
maximizes overall landscaped area. 

8

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.2.020_Landscape_Conservation
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.2.030_Landscaping_And_Screening
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.2.060_Site_Design_Review_-_Approval_Criteria;_Adjustments
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.2.050_Site_Design_Review_-_Application_Submission_Requirements


9 
 

 

Staff is comfortable with this approach given the lack of clear landscaping standards in the PR zone. 
The proposed landscaping plan for Planning Commission review and consideration is attached here as 
applicant’s submittal – Attachment G.  

 

Figure 2. Proposed landscaping design. Refer to Attachment G for full details. 

 
5-3.2.050 Fences And Walls 

A. General Requirements. All fences and walls placed within a required setback yard shall 
comply with the standards of this Section.  

1. The City may require installation of walls and/or fences as a condition of land use 
or development approval. (See also, Section 5-3.2.030 for screening 
requirements.)  

Staff Response: Regarding the requirement for fencing around proposed Swale “A,” the City cites 
Chapter 5-3.2.050 as the regulatory authority for imposing a condition to ensure public safety, 
particularly that of small children who may enter the swale area. In addition, staff reference the Oregon 
Department of Transportation Hydraulics Manual (April 2014), Safety Features for Treatment and 
Detention Facilities, which recommends fencing for detention or treatment areas where specific safety 
risks exist—such as proximity to residential areas, schools, or playgrounds—and where side slopes are 
steeper than 1V:3H or water depths exceed three feet for more than 24 hours. 
 
The applicant explains that Swale “A” is preliminary and that the final stormwater design, including the 
ultimate depth, is not yet determined. The three-foot depth currently shown on the plans is an estimate. 
The applicant also references several examples of unfenced infiltration areas in and around John Day, 

9

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.2.050_Fences_And_Walls
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.2.030_Landscaping_And_Screeninghttps://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.2.030_Landscaping_And_Screening


10 
 

 

such as at CCS, the Bank of Eastern Oregon, the Dollar General, and the John Day Fire Hall, and notes 
that fencing could interfere with snow removal operations. 
 
Staff acknowledge these examples but note that those facilities are not located in areas where small 
children are typically present. In contrast, the proposed RV Park expansion is within a residential 
neighborhood and adjacent to the County Fairgrounds—locations where young children are expected 
to be present. Accordingly, staff maintain that fencing around Swale “A” is appropriate and consistent 
with both City code and state safety guidance. 
 
If the Planning Commission disagrees with staff’s recommendation, it may elect to remove the fencing 
requirement or adopt a conditional standard—requiring fencing only if the final stormwater design results 
in a depth greater than three feet. If the final design indicates a depth of three feet or less, fencing would 
not be required. 
 
Staff also welcome a revised plan showing a shallower swale design that both mitigates potential safety 
hazards and allows for snow plowing operations.  
 
However, given that even a shallower facility may still pose a risk to small children, staff recommend 
this matter be deliberated by the Planning Commission. 
 
5-3.3 Parking and Loading  

Table 5-3.3.030F – Parking Area Layout  

 

Staff Response: Judging by the parking detail seen on Sheet 3, the curb length is short 6”. The plan 
shows curb length at 8’. Applicant advised to revise and resubmit with building permit application plans 
for review and approval by the City Manager or their designee. The open record period submittals do 
not appear to address Condition of Approval #7, so it stays as is. Staff note, this should be an easy fix 
for the applicant to make on their plans and can be reviewed as part of construction review.  

Condition of Approval #7: Revise parking detail to show 8’ and 6” curb length rather than the 8’ 
currently shown on Sheet 3.  

 

10



11 
 

 

Chapter 5-3.4 - Public Facilities 

5-3.4.10 Transportation Standards 

A. Development Standards and Criteria. Projects shall be required to meet the current standards 
in effect at the time an application is filed.  

1. Adequate Public Facilities. No development shall be approved unless adequate 
transportation facilities are available or improvements will be constructed and operational, 
as required by this Code, the John Day Transportation System Plan and the John Day 
Local Street Network Plan. If existing improvements leading to or serving the site are 
inadequate to handle anticipated loads, improvements are to be constructed and 
operational prior to the issuance of building permits or in conjunction with construction of 
the approved lots or parcels pursuant to financial assurance for the improvements or a 
written agreement with the City prior to final plat approval. Development resulting in 
increased traffic on a state highway shall meet the traffic operations standards per the 
current Oregon Highway Plan.  

3. Street Improvements. Streets within and adjacent to a development shall be improved in 
accordance with the City of John Day Transportation System Plan and the provisions of this 
Chapter. Development of new streets, including sidewalks, curbs, gutters, bicycle lanes, 
vehicle travel lanes, traffic control devices, and park strips, and additional right-of-way or 
street width or improvements planned as a portion of an existing street, shall be improved in 
accordance with this Chapter; and all public streets shall be dedicated to the applicable road 
authority upon the Public Works Director’s acceptance of said improvements; 

Staff Response: As discussed earlier in this revised staff report, Staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission allow the applicant to provide a future improvement guarantee for frontage improvements 
along the property frontage, which is approximately 535 feet (refer to revised Condition of Approval #4) 
.Additionally, Chapter 5-3.010(A)(1) and (3) authorize the City to require additional ROW to ensure 
adequate public facilities. Because no ROW width is identified in the deed for the extension of 3rd Street, 
the technical ROW width is currently zero feet. This presents an opportunity to correct the ROW width 
and legal description for the roadway. 

Accordingly, the City requires dedication of additional ROW, effectively establishing the initial ROW—
of 62 feet, consistent with the adopted Collector Street standards (Option D) as shown in Table 5-
3.4.101F. This ROW dedication requirement is already included in revised Condition of Approval #1. 

4. Access Improvements. All new streets, and driveways connecting to streets, shall be 
paved; driveways and driveway aprons shall be improved as required under Section 5-3.4.030 
and subject to approval by the Public Works Director. 

Staff Response: The proposal does not involve the creation of new streets. However, the proposal 
does include a new driveway connection to 3rd Street and driveway apron. The access improvements 
can be reviewed as part of the right-of-way permit review. If the Planning Commission requires 
construction of frontage improvements concurrent with site development, Staff would recommend a 
condition of approval requiring the frontage improvements to be duly inspected before acceptance by 
the Public Works Director. If during the hearing Planning Commission does require construction of the 

11

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.010_Transportation_Standards
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.030_Sanitary_Sewer_And_Water_Service_Improvements


12 
 

 

frontage improvements, Staff will craft a condition of approval to that effect. For now, Condition of 
Approval #8 is proposed for deletion.  

Condition of Approval #8: New public improvements shall be duly inspected and accepted in writing 
by the City Manager or their designee. City will not accept public improvements until they have passed 
inspection.  

B. Guarantee. The City may accept a future improvement guarantee (e.g., cash, bond, and/or 
owner agreement not to object to the formation of a local improvement district in the future) in 
lieu of street improvements if one or more of the following conditions exist:  

1. A partial improvement would create a potential safety hazard to motorists or pedestrians;  
2. Due to the developed condition of adjacent properties it is unlikely that street 

improvements would be extended in the foreseeable future and the standard improvement 
associated with the project under review would not, by itself, provide increased street 
safety or capacity, or improved pedestrian circulation;  

3. The improvement would be in conflict with an adopted capital improvement plan; or  
4. The improvement is associated with an approved land partition and the proposed land 

partition does not create any new streets or result in increased transportation demand. 

Staff Response: Chapter 5-3.2.020(B) allows the City to accept a future improvement guarantee—
such as cash, a bond, or an agreement not to object to the formation of a Local Improvement District 
(LID), in lieu of constructing required street improvements when certain conditions are met. A LID is a 
financing mechanism through which benefited property owners share in the cost of public 
improvements, such as street or sidewalk construction, through a special assessment. Property owners 
who sign a Waiver of Remonstrance agree not to oppose the formation of an LID in the future if such 
improvements are initiated by the City. 

This standard permits acceptance of a future improvement guarantee when the required conditions are 
found to be present. These conditions are listed above in the criteria. Staff reasonably believes that 
conditions (1) and (2) can be found to exist on the site: (1) construction of a partial improvement would 
create a potential safety hazard to motorists or pedestrians; and (2) due to the developed condition of 
adjacent properties, it is unlikely that street improvements will be extended in the foreseeable future, 
and the improvements associated with the proposed development would not, by themselves, provide 
increased street safety, capacity, or pedestrian circulation. 

In their written narrative, the applicant explains that constructing sidewalk improvements concurrent with 
development would result in a disjointed pedestrian network because adjacent properties to the north 
and south lack sidewalks. As such, constructing sidewalks at this time would not improve pedestrian 
circulation or safety and could create inconsistent or isolated infrastructure. The applicant does not 
object to providing a future improvement guarantee in the form of a Waiver of Remonstrance. 

Based on discussions with the applicant and review of the applicable criteria, Staff finds that conditions 
#1 and #2 above are satisfied. A future improvement guarantee is therefore appropriate, and Staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission accept a Waiver of Remonstrance in lieu of immediate 
frontage improvements. 

The pathway to allow for this is provided as a condition of approval in revised Condition of Approval #4:  

12



13 
 

 

Revised Condition of Approval #4: Prior to issuance of a building permit, connection to City water or 
sewer service, or creation of a new access to 3rd Street, whichever occurs first, the Applicant shall sign 
and record a Waiver of Remonstrance as a guarantee for future frontage improvements along 3rd Street 
for the length of the proposed development frontage, approximately 535 feet. Future frontage 
improvements shall be constructed consistent with the currently adopted Collector Street standards 
(Option D), including half-street improvements consisting of sidewalk, curb, and gutter. The rough 
proportionality of the required improvements corresponds to the length of the development frontage, 
approximately 535 feet along 3rd Street. 

K. Sidewalks, Planter Strips, Bicycle Lanes. Development shall be required to extend and improve 
sidewalks, planter strips, and bicycle lanes, as applicable, in conformance with the standards in Table 
5-3.4.010, and pursuant to the City of John Day Transportation System Plan, John Day Local Street 
Network Plan, and/or the requirements of any other applicable roadway authority. The decision body 
may approve deferral of such improvements only as provided by Chapter 5-4.2 Site Design Review or 
Chapter 5-4.3 Land Divisions, as applicable. Maintenance of sidewalks and planter strips in the right-
of-way is the continuing obligation of the adjacent property owner. 

Staff Response: Subsection (K) is another provision that requires development to provide sidewalks, 
planter strips, and bike lanes, as necessary. In this application, the City is requiring that the extension 
of 3rd Street, when frontage improvements are triggered, conform to the Collector Street standards, 
Option D, as identified in Table 5-3.4.010F. 

 
Figure 3. Table 5-3.4.010F showing Collector Street, Option D right-of-way standards. 

 
5-3.4.30 Sanitary Sewer And Water Service Improvements 

A. Sewers and Water Mains Required. Sanitary sewers and water mains shall be installed to 
serve each new development and to connect developments to existing mains in accordance 
with the City’s Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, Water System Master Plan, and applicable 

13

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.2_Land_Use_Review_And_Site_Design_Review
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.2_Land_Use_Review_And_Site_Design_Review
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.030_Sanitary_Sewer_And_Water_Service_Improvements


14 
 

 

engineering requirements. When streets are required to be stubbed to the edge of the 
subdivision, sewer and water system improvements shall also be stubbed with the streets, 
except as may be waived by the Public Works Director when alternate alignment(s) are 
provided.  

B. Sewer and Water Plan Approval. Development permits for sewer and water improvements 
shall not be issued until the Public Works Director has approved all sanitary sewer and water 
plans in conformance with City standards.  

C. Over-Sizing. The City may require as a condition of development approval that sewer, water, 
and/or storm drainage systems serving new development be sized to accommodate future 
development within the area as projected by the applicable Water, Sewer, and/or Storm 
Drainage Master Plan, provided that the City may grant the developer credit toward any 
required system development charge for the same, or the City may authorize other cost-
recovery or cost-sharing methods, in conformance with Section 5-3.4.010D.  

D. Inadequate Facilities. Development permits may be restricted or rationed by the City where 
a deficiency exists in the existing water or sewer system that cannot be rectified by the 
development and which if not rectified will result in a threat to public health or safety, 
surcharging of existing mains, or violations of state or federal standards pertaining to 
operation of domestic water and sewerage treatment systems. The City may require water 
booster pumps or sanitary sewer lift stations be installed with backup power.  

E. Water Pressure. Above a certain elevation, where the City has limited ability to serve new 
development, a developer may be required to install a water storage reservoir and related 
infrastructure for required water flow pressure, consistent with adopted City master plans. 

Staff Response: The applicant’s final water and sewer plans will be required to show service 
connection details for construction permit review. Final water and sewer plans may be reviewed in detail 
during the construction review and permitting phase of the project at time of building permit plans 
submittal.  

Revised Condition of Approval #9: Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant’s final water 
and sewer plans will be required to show service connection details for construction permit review. Final 
water and sewer plans shall be reviewed in detail during the construction review process.  

Condition of Approval #9: Final water and sewer improvements plans shall be duly reviewed and 
approved by the City Manager or their designee before the City will sign off on the City portion of the 
building permit application form.  

5-3.4.040 Storm Drainage Improvements 

1. General Provisions. A development permit may be granted only when adequate provisions for 
storm water and flood water runoff have been assured (i.e., through plans and assurances 
approved by the City). See also, Section 5-3.4.090.  

2. Accommodation of Upstream Drainage. Culverts and other drainage facilities shall be large 
enough to accommodate existing and potential future runoff from the entire upstream drainage 
area, whether inside or outside the development. Such facilities shall be subject to review and 
approval by the Public Works Director.  

3. Effect on Downstream Drainage. The rate of stormwater runoff leaving a development site 
during and after development (post-development) shall not exceed the rate of stormwater runoff 
leaving the site before development (pre-development).  

14

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.010_Purpose_And_Applicability
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.040_Storm_Drainage_Improvements
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.090_Performance_Guarantee_And_Warranty_Bond


15 
 

 

4. Storm Drainage Analysis and Mitigation Required. The Public Works Director may require an 
applicant for development to provide a storm drainage analysis prepared by a qualified 
professional engineer registered in the State of Oregon to examine pre- and post-development 
stormwater runoff conditions and any required mitigation consistent with the City of John Day 
Stormwater Master Plan. Such analysis, at a minimum, shall quantify pre- and post-development 
runoff volumes and rates and propose mitigation based on stormwater management best 
practices, as specified by the Public Works Director. Such mitigation shall ensure that post-
development runoff rates do not exceed pre-development rates and necessary facilities are 
provided to protect public health, safety, and welfare. If upon reviewing the applicant’s storm 
drainage analysis, the Public Works Director determines that the stormwater runoff resulting from 
the development will overload any existing and/or proposed drainage facility, the City shall 
withhold approval of the development until provisions have been made for improvement of the 
potential adverse impacts.  

5. Over-Sizing. The City may require as a condition of development approval that any public storm 
drainage system serving new development be sized to accommodate future development 
upstream, provided that the City may grant the developer credit toward any required system 
development charge for the same, or the City may authorize other cost-recovery or cost-sharing 
methods, in conformance with Section 5-3.4.010D.  

6. Existing Watercourse. Where a watercourse, drainage way, channel, or stream traverses a 
proposed development there shall be provided a storm water easement or drainage right-of-way 
conforming substantially with the lines of such watercourse and such further width as will be 
adequate for conveyance and maintenance to protect the public health and safety. See also, 
Chapter 5-2.9 Flood Plain Overlay Zone.  

Staff Response: The applicant is proposing a series of infiltration swales to manage stormwater. The 
plans submitted indicate stormwater detention is proposed to manage runoff on site. Prior to issuance 
of building permits, the applicant shall receive approval of final storm drainage system design. Final 
review shall occur during the construction review process. 

Condition of Approval #10: Final stormwater plans shall receive approval from the Public Works 
Director, or their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit 
application form.  

5-3.4.050 Utilities 

A. Underground Utilities.  
1. Generally. All new utility lines including, but not limited to, those required for electric, 

communication, lighting, and cable television services and related facilities shall be placed 
underground, except for surface mounted transformers, surface mounted connection 
boxes and meter cabinets which may be placed above ground, temporary utility service 
facilities during construction, and high capacity electric lines operating at 50,000 volts or 
above. The City may require screening and buffering of above ground facilities to protect 
the public health, safety or welfare through Site Development Review.  

B. Exception to Undergrounding Requirement. An exception to the undergrounding 
requirement may be granted where existing physical constraints, such as steep 
topography, natural resource constraints (e.g. geologic conditions, rivers and streams), or 
existing development conditions make underground placement impractical. 

15

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.010_Transportation_Standards
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-2.9_Flood_Plain_(FP)_Overlay


16 
 

 

Staff Response: Applicant is seeking an exception to the underground requirement on the basis of 
existing development conditions make underground placement impractical (cites the rodeo ground 
fences, access and paved 3rd Street). Staff don’t have anything to add to this requirement other than 
the code standard is “all new utility lines.” The Planning Commission may consider whether the applicant 
has a qualifying case for an exception to underground utilities, but as it current sits, the City’s position 
is that all new utility lines shall be placed underground, as the code states. Staff also want to note that 
City is not aware of any constraints against bringing power to the site via 3rd Street from Elm, instead of 
from the Rodeo grounds. The Planning Commission should review this situation of the applicant’s 
request for an exception to underground utility standards.  

Condition of Approval #11: Consistent with the requirements of Chapter 5-3.4.050(A)(1), new utilities 
shall be placed underground.  

5-3.4.060 Easements 

1. Provision. The developer or applicant shall make arrangements with the City, the applicable 
district, and each utility franchise for the provision and dedication of utility easements necessary 
to provide full services to the development. The City's standard width for public main line utility 
easements shall be determined by the Public Works Director.  

2. Recordation. As determined by the Public Works Director, all easements for sewers, storm 
drainage and water quality facilities, water mains, electric lines, or other public utilities shall be 
recorded with the final plat. See Chapter 5-4.2, Site Design Review, and Chapter 5-4.3, Land 
Divisions. 

Staff Response: All proposed public utilities are proposed to be within City ROW on 3rd Street. As 
seen on Sheet 1 of the site plan, there is a portion of an existing sewer line currently on the subject 
property by the development site that would not be within City ROW, and in this case, an easement is 
necessary. The sewer easement is proposed for a width of 15’. However, City recommends this be 
enlarged to 20’ wide. Furthermore, per JDDC 5-3.4.060, the Public Works Director has the authority to 
set easement widths. Presently, the City is without a Public Works Director, In the absence of a Public 
Works Director, Staff request the Planning Commission determine an alternate review and approval 
authority for setting easement widths. Staff recommend Planning Commission designate the City 
Engineer as the “or designee” in light of the fact that there is no Public Works Director currently 
employed at City Hall. The John Day City Charter recognizes the Public Works Director, or their 
designee as head of the Public Works Department.  
 

 
 

 
Figure 4. Excerpts from the John Day City Charter. 

 

16

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.060_Easements
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.2_Land_Use_Review_And_Site_Design_Review
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.3_Land_Divisions_And_Property_Line_Adjustments
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.3_Land_Divisions_And_Property_Line_Adjustments


17 
 

 

 
 
 
Revised Condition of Approval #12: The portion of existing sewer line that is currently on the 
subject property and does not lie in the ROW, shall be placed in an easement to the City. Easement 
width shall be 20’. Easements shall be duly recorded, before connection to city water or city sewer 
service occurs.  
 
Condition of Approval #12: All easements for sewers, storm drainage and water quality facilities, 
water mains, electrical lines, or any other public facilities shall be duly placed in an easement to the 
City. The City Manager or their designee shall have discretion in determining which improvements 
require easements to the City. In all cases, the duty to duly record any easements related to the 
proposal shall be the sole responsibility of the applicant and developer. Copies of all recorded 
documents shall be furnished to the City Manager. 
 
5-3.4.070 Construction Plan Approval 

1. Plan Approval and Permit. No public improvements, including sanitary sewers, storm sewers, 
streets, sidewalks, curbs, lighting, parks, or other requirements shall be undertaken except after 
the plans have been approved by the City, permit fee paid, and permit issued. The permit fee is 
required to defray the cost and expenses incurred by the City for construction and other services 
in connection with the improvement. The permit fee shall be set by City Council.  

Staff Response: Construction plan review and approval will commence upon application following site 
design review and approval.  

2. Performance Guarantee. The City may require the developer or subdivider to provide bonding 
or other performance guarantees, to the City’s satisfaction, to ensure completion of required 
public improvements pursuant to Section 5-3.4.090. 

Staff Response: If the Planning Commission allows the applicant to defer the frontage improvements, 
then a performance guarantee is not necessary because there are no public improvements.  

5-3.4.080 Installation  

A. Conformance Required. Improvements installed by the developer either as a requirement of 
these regulations or at his/her own option, shall conform to the requirements of this Chapter, 
approved construction plans, and to improvement standards and specifications adopted by the 
City.  

Staff Response: Improvements installed by the developer either as a requirement of these regulations 
or at their own option, shall conform to approved construction plans.  

B. Adopted Installation Standards. The City of John Day may adopt design standards, criteria 
and specifications for public improvements as well as private utility installation within the public 
right-of-way; until such standards are adopted, project designs shall conform to the 
recommendations of the Public Works Director.  

17

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.070_Construction_Plan_Approval
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.090_Performance_Guarantee_And_Warranty_Bond


18 
 

 

Staff Response: While there are no public improvements involved in this development if the frontage 
improvements are deferred, private installation of utilities within public ROW shall conform to adopted 
design standards and specifications.  

C. Commencement. Work in a public right-of-way shall not begin until all applicable agency permits 
have been approved and issued.  

Staff Response: Refer to Condition of Approval #3 stating a right-of-way permit is required. A DEQ 
1200C NPDES permit will be required because the project involves greater than an acre of land.  

D. Resumption. If work is discontinued for more than one month, it shall not be resumed until the 
City is notified in writing.  

E. City Inspection. Improvements shall be constructed under the inspection and to the satisfaction 
of the City. The City may require minor changes in typical sections and details if unusual 
conditions arising during construction warrant such changes in the public interest. Modifications 
to the approved design requested by the developer may be subject to review under Chapter 5-
4.6, Modifications to Approved Plans and Conditions of Approval. Any monuments that are 
disturbed before all improvements are completed by the subdivider shall be replaced prior to final 
acceptance of the improvements.  

F. Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans. A registered civil engineer shall provide written 
certification in a form required by the City that all improvements, workmanship, and materials are 
in accord with current and standard engineering and construction practices, conform to approved 
plans and conditions of approval, and are of high grade, prior to City acceptance of the public 
improvements, or any portion thereof, for operation and maintenance. The developer’s engineer 
shall also provide 2 set(s) of “as-built” plans, in conformance with the Public Works Director’s 
specifications, for permanent filing with the City. The Public Works Director may require the 
developer or subdivider to provide a warranty bond or other assurance pursuant to Section 5-
3.4.090. 

Staff Response: Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans shall be provided to City for improvements 
that pertain to public improvements.   

Revised Condition of Approval #13: Prior to connection to City water or City sewer system, Engineer’s 
Certification and As-Built Plans shall be provided to City for improvements that pertain to public 
improvements.   

Condition of Approval #13: An Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans shall be provided to the City 
Manager or their designee prior to the first day of operation of the RV Park.  

5-3.4.90 Performance Guarantee And Warranty Bond 

A. Performance Guarantee Required. The City at its discretion may approve a final plat or 
building permit when it determines that at least 75 percent of the public improvements 
required for the land division or phase thereof are complete and the applicant has an 
acceptable assurance for the balance of said improvements. The applicant shall provide a 
bond issued by a surety authorized to do business in the State of Oregon, irrevocable letter 
of credit from a surety or financial institution acceptable to the City, cash, or other form of 
security acceptable to the City.  

18

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.6_Modifications_To_Approved_Plans_And_Conditions_Of_Approval
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.6_Modifications_To_Approved_Plans_And_Conditions_Of_Approval
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.090_Performance_Guarantee_And_Warranty_Bond
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.090_Performance_Guarantee_And_Warranty_Bond
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-3.4.090_Performance_Guarantee_And_Warranty_Bond


19 
 

 

B. Determination of Sum. The assurance of performance shall be for a sum determined by the 
City as required to cover the cost of the improvements and repairs, including related 
engineering and incidental expenses, plus reasonable inflationary costs (110% of estimated 
improvement costs, as prepared by a qualified civil engineer).  

C. Itemized Improvement Estimate. The developer shall furnish to the City an itemized 
improvement estimate, certified by a registered civil engineer, to assist the City in calculating 
the amount of the performance assurance.  

D. Agreement. A written agreement between the City and developer shall be recorded with the 
final plat. The agreement shall not be valid until it is signed and dated by both the applicant 
and City Planning Official. The agreement shall contain, at a minimum, all of the following:  

a. The period within which all required improvements and repairs shall be completed;  
b. A provision that if work is not completed within the period specified, the City may 

complete the work and recover the full cost and expenses from the applicant;  
c. The improvement fees and deposits that are required;  
d. (Optional) A provision for the construction of the improvements in stages and for the 

extension of time under specific conditions therein stated in the contract.  

Staff Response: If the Planning Commission allows deferment of the frontage improvements then there 
will be no need for a performance guarantee or warranty bond.  

Informational Item #1: Staff recommend that the City Manager and the applicant enter into an 
Improvement Agreement that clearly outlines the required public improvements, identifies the party 
responsible for their construction, and establishes a timeline for completion. 

G. Warranty Bond. A warranty bond good for two (2) years is required on all public improvements 
and landscaping when installed in the public right-of-way. The warranty bond shall equal fifteen 
percent (15%) of the total cost of improvements and begin upon acceptance of said 
improvements by the City. 

Staff Response: If the Planning Commission allows deferment of the frontage improvements, then 
there will be no need for a performance guarantee or warranty bond.  

Condition of Approval #14: Before commencement of construction activities on the subject property, 
a Performance Guarantee shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee.  

Condition of Approval #15: Warranty Bond shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee 
at time of formal acceptance of public improvements.   

19



20 
 

 

5.  STAFF RECOMMENDATION.  

Staff recommend Planning Commission recommend approval of Site Design Review approval onto the 
City Council, subject to the conditions of approval.  

Staff request the Planning Commission review, debate these items, and provide direction to Staff on 
how to proceed. Staff note, any direction or decision provided about these items would be forwarded to 
the City Council for final approval.  

Item #4: The underground utility provision,  

Item #5: The requirement for fencing around Swale “A,” 

Item #6: Approval of the proposed landscape plan, and  

Item #7: Appoint a designee to the Public Works Director. Staff recommend the designee be the City 
Engineer.  

6.  CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL.  

Revised Condition of Approval #1: Prior to issuance of a building permit, connecting to City water or 
sewer service, or creating a new access to 3rd Street, whichever occurs first, Applicant must take 
action(s) satisfactory to City to establish or correct the delineation of the 3rd Street right-of-way 
through the subject property such that it is 62 feet in width and none of applicant’s improvements 
(other than permitted utility connections) are located within the right-of-way.  Action may include 
dedicating right-of-way and/or filing petitions for vacation of right-of-way and/or street legalization 
process first brought up by the applicant’s surveyor. A 62’ ROW corresponds with Option D for a 
Collector Street as adopted in Table 5-3.4.101F, Minimum Street, Sidewalk and Bikeway Standards. 
Condition of Approval #1 is tied to Chapter 5-3.4.101(A)(1) & (3), Adequate Public Facilities and Street 
Improvements. 

Condition of Approval #1: City will not sign off the building permit application form until the right-of-
way is discrepancy is resolved to the City’s satisfaction. Applicant may receive City Council final 
approval of the application prior to meeting Condition of Approval #1.  

Condition of Approval #2: As a condition of approval, the City will require the applicant to verify the 
exact boundaries of the easement, confirm the as-built location of all associated storm pipes, and, if 
necessary, record an updated easement to accurately reflect the as-built conditions. City will not sign 
off on the building permit application form until Condition of Approval #2 is completed to the City’s 
satisfaction. 
 
Condition of Approval #3: A right-of-way permit shall be required for any work to be performed in 
City right-of-way. A traffic control plan may be required. A right-of-way permit application may be 
submitted to the City either prior to or concurrent with building permit submittal.  
 
Revised Condition of Approval #4: Prior to issuance of a building permit, connection to City water or 
sewer service, or creation of a new access to 3rd Street, whichever occurs first, the Applicant shall 
sign and record a Waiver of Remonstrance as a guarantee for future frontage improvements along 3rd 

20



21 
 

 

Street for the length of the proposed development frontage, approximately 535 feet. Future frontage 
improvements shall be constructed consistent with the adopted Collector Street standards (Option D), 
including half-street improvements consisting of sidewalk, curb, and gutter. The rough proportionality 
of the required improvements corresponds to the length of the development frontage, approximately 
535 feet along 3rd Street. 
 
Condition of Approval #4: To address pedestrian safety and circulation, the City is imposing a 
condition of approval requiring construction of half-street improvements, including sidewalk, curb, and 
gutter, built to City standards and specifications. The rough proportionality of the required 
improvements corresponds to the length of the development frontage, approximately 535 feet along 
3rd Street. Accordingly, half-street improvements consisting of sidewalk, curb, and gutter along this 
~535-foot frontage shall be a condition of approval. 

Condition of Approval #5: A final erosion and sediment control plan will be required to be submitted 
before the City signs off on the City portion of the building permit application. 

Condition of Approval #6: Final Landscape plan shall clearly show ground cover, tree size with a 
minimum diameter or caliper 4 feet above grade and shrubs shall be planted from a 5-gallon container 
or larger. Non-plant ground cover may be bark dust, chips, or similar mulch and shall cover all 
landscape surfaces not otherwise planted or covered. 

Condition of Approval #7: Revise parking detail to show 8’ and 6” curb length rather than the 8’ 
currently shown on Sheet 3.  

Condition of Approval #8: New public improvements shall be duly inspected and accepted in writing 
by the City Manager or their designee. City will not accept public improvements until they have passed 
inspection.  

Revised Condition of Approval #9: Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant’s final water 
and sewer plans will be required to show service connection details for construction permit review. Final 
water and sewer plans shall be reviewed in detail during the construction review process.  

Condition of Approval #9: Final water and sewer improvements plans shall be duly reviewed and 
approved by the City Manager or their designee before the City will sign off on the City portion of the 
building permit application form.  

Condition of Approval #10: Final stormwater plans shall receive approval from the Public Works 
Director, or their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit 
application form.  

Revised Condition of Approval #11: Consistent with the requirements of Chapter 5-3.4.050(A)(1), 
new utilities shall be placed underground. 

Condition of Approval #11: Final utility plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City Manager or 
their designee, prior to the City signing off on the City portion of the building permit application form. 
Consistent with the code requirements, new utilities shall be placed underground.  

21



22 
 

 

Revised Condition of Approval #12: The portion of existing sewer line that is currently on the 
subject property and does not lie in the ROW, shall be placed in an easement to the City. Easement 
width shall be 20’. Easements shall be duly recorded, before connection to city water or city sewer 
service occurs.  
 
Condition of Approval #12: All easements for sewers, storm drainage and water quality facilities, 
water mains, electrical lines, or any other public facilities shall be duly placed in an easement to the 
City. The City Manager or their designee shall have discretion in determining which improvements 
require easements to the City. In all cases, the duty to duly record any easements related to the 
proposal shall be the sole responsibility of the applicant and developer. Copies of all recorded 
documents shall be furnished to the City Manager. 

Revised Condition of Approval #13: Prior to connection to City water or City sewer system, Engineer’s 
Certification and As-Built Plans shall be provided to City for improvements that pertain to public 
improvements.  

Condition of Approval #13: An Engineer’s Certification and As-Built Plans shall be provided to the City 
Manager or their designee prior to the first day of operation of the RV Park.  

Condition of Approval #14: Before commencement of construction activities on the subject property, 
a Performance Guarantee shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee.  

Condition of Approval #15: Warranty Bond shall be furnished to the City Manager or their designee 
at time of formal acceptance of public improvements.  

Condition of Approval #16: Staff recommend Planning Commission require a fence around Swale “A” 
for public safety and because of the depth of water being approximately 3’.   

Informational Item #1: Staff recommend that the City Manager and the applicant enter into an 
Improvement Agreement that clearly outlines the required public improvements, identifies the party 
responsible for their construction, and establishes a timeline for completion. 

Informational Item #1: Please be aware of the two additional comments contained in the City 
Engineer’s memorandum (Attachment B). These two comments are presented in order to ensure a 
smooth and expedient review of your project.  

Informational Item #2: The applicant has been aware that a floodplain development permit is required 
before construction can commence. Staff re-informed the applicant of this need via email on October 
23. Staff suggested the applicant and their design team begin working on the required Habitat Mitigation 
Assessment that must accompany floodplain development permits as a result of FEMA’s imposition of 
the Pre-Implementation Compliance Measures to address No Net Loss of habitat.  

7. ATTACHMENTS.  
 

A – Applicant’s open record period submittal. Contains applicants’ Attachments A,A-1 through G 
that were submitted on October 30.  
B – City Engineer’s revised memorandum on review of additional applicant testimony.  

22



ATTACHMENT A
to REVISED STAFF REPORT
for 11.12.25

23



Attachment A-1

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 1 

 

   M E M O R A N D U M    

DATE November 5, 2025 

TO   Melissa Bethel, City Manager, City of John Day 
Henry Hearley, Associate Planner, Lane Council of Governments 

FROM  Trish Rice, PE 

SUBJECT PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park – Site Design Review Update 

 
 
Melissa and Henry, 
 
This is a revision to our Site Design Review comments to incorporate and respond to the 
applicant’s verbal testimony at the October 22, 2025 Planning Commission hearing and written 
testimony submitted October 30, 2025. 
 
Our comments are as follows, with revisions in bold: 
 

JDDC Text Dyer Review Comment 

A. General Submission Requirements. An application for Site Design Review shall contain all 
of the information required for a Type II or Type III review, as applicable, under Sections 5-
4.1.030-040, and provide: 

1.   Public Facilities and Services Impact 
Study. The impact study shall 
quantify and assess the effect of the 
development on public facilities and 
services. The City shall advise as to 
the scope of the study during the 
required pre-application conference 
(Section 5- 4.1.060C). The study 
shall address, at a minimum, the 
transportation system, including 
required improvements for vehicles 
and pedestrians, the drainage 
system, the parks system, the water 
system, and the sewer system. For 

In the 2-18-2025 pre-application meeting, the 
City team determined that a Traffic Impact 
Analysis and a technical memo summarizing the 
demand on utilities would satisfy the scope of this 
requirement.  These two documents have not been 
submitted, however some portions of this 
information are briefly provided throughout 
various other application materials.   
 
Applicant has provided a draft Technical 
Memorandum prepared by DKS Associates for 
the purpose of meeting the Transportation 
Planning Rule as required by the proposed zone 
change. 

 

THE DYER PARTNERSHIP 
ENGINEERS & PLANNERS, INC. 

481 S. Main Street 
Lebanon, Oregon 97355 

(541) 405-4520 
www.dyerpart.com 

   

ATTACHMENT B to REVISED
STAFF REPORT for 11.12.25 

56

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.1_Types_Of_Review_Procedures
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development#name=5-4.1_Types_Of_Review_Procedures
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development&name=5-4.1.060_General_Provisions%3A_120-Day_Rule%3B_Time_Computation%3B_Pre-Application_Conferences%3B_Acceptance_And_Review%3B_Planning_Official%27s_Duties%3B_Amended_Applications%3B_Re-Submittal%3B_Appeals
https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development&name=5-4.1.060_General_Provisions%3A_120-Day_Rule%3B_Time_Computation%3B_Pre-Application_Conferences%3B_Acceptance_And_Review%3B_Planning_Official%27s_Duties%3B_Amended_Applications%3B_Re-Submittal%3B_Appeals


City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 2 

 

each public facility system and type 
of impact, the study shall propose 
improvements necessary to meet 
City standards; 

 
Because the site is currently undeveloped, the 
memo’s forecast trip generation from the 25 camp 
sites represents the estimated traffic impact of the 
proposed development.  The memo does not 
address street improvements.  The memo is 
labeled as a draft and has not been stamped by a 
licensed professional engineer. 
 
A technical memo summarizing the demands on 
utilities has not been submitted.  The previously 
submitted application narrative includes brief 
comments on water, sewer and storm drainage.  
The plans indicate stormwater detention to 
manage runoff onsite. 

2.   Traffic Impact Analysis, if required by 
the City or other road authority. 
Traffic Impact Analysis shall conform 
to the standards and procedures in 
Section 5-4.1.090; and 

Applicant has provided a draft Technical 
Memorandum prepared by DKS Associates for 
the purpose of meeting the Transportation 
Planning Rule as required by the proposed zone 
change.  It appears the memo may compare the 
full development scenario (5.75 acres) of the 
existing residential zoning to a partial 
development scenario (25 camp sites, approx. 3.5 
acres) of the proposed zoning.  The memo is 
labeled as a draft and has not been stamped by a 
licensed professional engineer. 

3.   In situations where this Code 
requires the dedication of real 
property to the City, the City shall 
either (1) include in the written 
decision evidence that shows that the 
required property dedication is 
directly related to and roughly 
proportional to the projected impacts 
of the development on public 
facilities and services, or (2) not 
require the dedication as a condition 
of approval. 

N/A 

57

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development&name=5-4.1.090_Traffic_Impact_Analysis


City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 3 

 

B. Site Design Review Information. In addition to the general submission requirements for a 
Type III review (Section 5-4.1.040) an applicant for Site Design Review shall provide the 
following additional information, as deemed applicable by the City Planning Official. The 
Planning Official may deem applicable any information that he or she needs to review the 
request and prepare a complete staff report and recommendation to the approval body: 

1. Site analysis map. At a minimum the site analysis map shall contain the following: 

a. The applicant’s entire property 
and the surrounding property to 
a distance sufficient to determine 
the location of the development 
in the City, and the relationship 
between the proposed 
development site and adjacent 
property and development. The 
property boundaries, dimensions 
and gross area shall be identified; 

A copy of the assessor’s map showing the entire 
property was provided.  The site map does not 
show the entire property, however it is sufficient 
to determine the project location and abutting 
property relationships.   

b. Topographic contour lines at 2-
foot intervals for slopes, except 
where the Public Works Director 
determines that larger intervals 
will be adequate for steeper slops; 

Included. 

c. Identification of slopes greater 
than fifteen (15) percent, with 
slope categories identified in 5 
percent increments (e.g., 0%-5%, 
>5%-10%, >10%-15%, 
>15%20%, and so on.); 

Included. 

d. The location and width of all 
public and private streets, drives, 
sidewalks, pathways, rights-of-
way, and easements on the site and 
adjoining the site; 

Right-of-Way Discrepancy and Vacation: 
The applicant has provided a title report to aid the 
review of the previously noted Right-of-Way 
(ROW) discrepancies.  The 1996 ROW deed 
(instrument 961953) is the most recent document 
listed in the title report.  Upon review of the 
applicant’s provided materials, it appears there is 
a bad bearing in the existing 1996 ROW 
description which has caused the previously 
noted discrepancies and needs to be corrected.  It 
also appears that the 1996 ROW description is 
still in effect.  The subsequent Journal Voucher 
entry (1997, updating parts of the alignment and 
providing ROW widths, but still containing the 

58

https://johnday.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=development&name=5-4.1.040_Type_III_Procedure_(Quasi-Judicial)


City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 4 

 

bad bearing) is not in the title report and therefore 
does not seem to have been recorded. 
We recommend a condition of approval that the 
existing ROW legal description shall be corrected 
to match the as-built street alignment and the 
intended ROW widths from that time, and shall 
be legally recorded in the County deed records. 
The County Surveyor, Mike Springer of 
Benchmark Land Surveying, has testified his 
opinion that a legal ROW does not appear to 
exist.  Deed 961953 describes the centerline 
only and does not provide a ROW width, and 
he finds that the subsequent Journal Voucher 
entry has no legal standing.  The applicant 
proposes to resolve the issues using the road 
legalization process provided in ORS 223.935 
through 223.950.  This process would legally 
establish the road ROW to existing conditions 
through a survey and extinguish any 
previous/erroneous ROW descriptions. 
Upon preliminary review of ORS 223.935 
through 223.950, it appears to be a viable 
solution to this issue.  The City Attorney has 
been consulted. 
The applicant has also provided the 1996 
construction agreement between the City and 
County for the creation of 3rd Street Extension. 
The applicant is requesting vacation of a portion 
of 3rd Street Extension ROW.  If the proposed 30-
foot ROW vacation is approved then it shall be 
recorded second, such that the corrected 
description of the existing ROW has precedence. 
If the road legalization process is used, then 
there would be no need for a vacation because 
the ROW width would be established at 
whatever width the City approves. 
The applicant is now requesting a 60-foot 
ROW, which is a significant change from the 
original application of 90 feet.  The additional 
written testimony submitted October 30 
includes files Add Info PAPA25-01 Narrative 
for Site Design Review Conditions 10-30-

59



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 5 

 

25.pdf and Add Info PAPA25-01 Attachment A 
- Proposed 3rd ST ROW Revised 10-30-25.pdf.  
The narrative states on page 2, “In the City’s 
Development Code Section 5-3.4 Public 
Facilities Table 5-3.4.010F Shows the options 
for a Collector Street ROW ranging from 40’-
74’, with option B closest matching the 
conditions at this site and what Staff is 
proposing. Option B calls for a 40’- 44’ ROW. If 
we are starting from scratch, Grant County 
Fairgrounds is proposing to provide a ROW that 
matches the Code for a collector street and 
extends wider as needed to include the toe of the 
existing road fill slopes.”  The map in 
Attachment A shows ROW width varying from 
40 feet at the west end, 60 feet through the 
middle, then 90 to 180 feet at the east end on 
the approach to Highway 26 where the slope 
requires wider ROW width for the road 
embankment. 
We disagree with applicant’s statement that 
Option B matches staff’s proposal.  There is a 
difference between the ROW required to 
provide for future full development, and staff’s 
recommended half street improvement 
requirement for this development as discussed 
below in item 2.e. 
Dyer and City staff have reviewed JDDC Table 
5-3.4.010F and find that Option D represents 
the desired full-development scenario on this 
street with the bicycle lanes, parking, and both 
sides of sidewalk.  This is consistent with the 
2009 John Day Local Street Network Plan, 
page 33, which states: 
 “Route(s):3rd Avenue between the Fairgrounds 
and US 26 

• Issue(s): Lack of sidewalk and/or 
bikeway system. 

• Needs(s): 3rd Avenue is an important 
connector from the neighborhoods 
southeast of downtown to open space and 
recreation trails along the John Day 
River, the Grant County Fairgrounds, 
and to Bridge Street with its access to the 

60



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 6 

 

7th Street Complex.  Having sidewalks 
and bike lanes would facilitate these 
movements.  The future development of 
Strawberry Heights will further increase 
the demand for these facilities. 

• Physical Constraint(s): The 3rd Street 
ramp that connects US 26 to the at-grade 
portion of 3rd Street may not have 
sufficient space to locate sidewalks and 
bike lanes on both sides of the roadway.” 

The Plan indicates sidewalks (plural) and 
bikes lanes (plural).  There is a known need for 
event overflow parking in this area which 
provides the basis for including parking lanes. 
The applicant states on page 3 of the narrative 
that the improvements are not needed because 
development has not happened.  Whether or 
not to construct the improvements at this time 
is a separate matter, discussed below in item 
2.e.  City has a duty to plan for future 
development and should therefore provide for 
sufficient ROW to allow for construction of 
full street development. 
We recommend requiring minimum 62 feet 
ROW which is the minimum required for 
construction of Collector Option D street 
improvements. 
Upon preliminary review the centerline 
bearings shown in Attachment A map appear 
to be in substantial conformance with the 
existing street, but due to the short staff review 
period of 3 working days we have not 
performed an in-depth review of the proposed 
centerline.   
We agree with the applicant that additional 
ROW width is necessary at the east end to 
provide for the roadway embankment as it 
ascends the hill.  Due to the short staff review 
period we have not performed an in-depth 
review of the proposed widths. 
We recommend that the Planning Commission 
and City Council make a determination on the 
legal mechanism to be used for correcting the 

61



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 7 

 

ROW issue and the minimum width 
requirement, and empower staff to follow up 
with the applicant for further review, revision, 
and execution of the ROW documents. 
Stormwater Easement 
The title report also revealed a recorded storm 
drainage easement (1995, instrument 950789) 
which appears to approximately correspond with 
the storm pipe described by City staff on the west 
side of the property.  It appears the easement may 
not extend all the way to the end of pipe at the 
street.  The description also includes a 
northeasterly length towards the river from the 
northwestern property corner.  We don’t know if 
there is any existing pipe at that location.  We 
recommend requiring the applicant to confirm the 
exact bounds of the easement, the as-built 
location of the pipe(s), and if necessary record an 
update to the easement to match the as-built pipe 
location(s). 
Benchmark Land Surveying has testified that 
they have determined the easement accurately 
matches the as-built location of the City’s 
stormwater system across the subject property.  
We therefore consider the stormwater 
easement issue to be resolved. 
The applicant requested the code citation for 
this investigation. The code requirement is this 
self-same criteria, JDDC 5-4.2.050.B.1.d, 
which requires the applicant to provide “d. 
The location and width of all public and private 
streets, drives, sidewalks, pathways, rights-of-
way, and easements on the site and adjoining the 
site” and related criteria JDDC 5-
4.2.050.B.2.d-e, which require the applicant to 
provide “d. The location and dimensions of all 
proposed public and private streets, drives, 
rights-of-way, and easements; e. The location 
and dimensions of all existing and proposed 
structures, utilities, pavement and other 
improvements on the site. Setback dimensions 
for all existing and proposed buildings shall be 
provided on the site plan.” 

62



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 8 

 

Legal review of all draft documents prior to 
recording is recommended. 

e. Potential natural hazard areas, 
including, as applicable, the base 
flood elevation identified on 
FEMA Flood Insurance Rate 
Maps or as otherwise determined 
through site specific survey, areas 
subject to high water table, and 
areas designated by the City, 
County, or State as having a 
potential for geologic hazards; 

Approximate FEMA floodplain boundary is 
shown. 

f. Resource areas, including marsh 
and wetland areas, streams, and 
wildlife habitat identified by the 
City or any natural resource 
regulatory agencies as requiring 
protection; 

John Day River is shown on plans.  Riparian zone 
is not shown. 

g. Site features, including existing 
structures, pavement, large rock 
outcroppings, areas having unique 
views, and drainage ways, canals 
and ditches; 

None known. 

h. Locally or federally designated 
historic and cultural resources on 
the site and adjacent parcels or 
lots; 

None known. 

i. The location, size and species of 
trees and other vegetation having 
a caliper (diameter) of six (6) 
inches or greater at four feet 
above grade; 

None known. 

j. North arrow, scale, names and 
addresses of all persons listed as 
owners of the subject property on 
the most recently recorded deed; 

Included.  

k. Name and address of project 
designer, engineer, surveyor, 
and/or planner, if applicable. 

Included. 

2. Proposed site plan. The site plan shall contain the following information: 
 

63



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 9 

 

a. The proposed development site, 
including boundaries, dimensions, 
and gross area; 

Included. 

b. Features identified on the existing 
site analysis maps that are 
proposed to remain on the site; 

Included. 

c. Features identified on the existing 
site map, if any, which are 
proposed to be removed or 
modified by the development; 

Included. 

d. The location and dimensions of 
all proposed public and private 
streets, drives, rights-of-way, and 
easements; 

The existing ROW legal description needs to be 
corrected.   See comment B.1.d above.  The 
existing ROW correction shall be recorded prior 
to the recording of any approved ROW vacation. 
The applicant Is requesting vacation of a portion 
of 3rd Street Extension ROW. Applicant proposes 
reducing 3rd Street ROW width from 120 feet to 
90 feet by vacating 30 feet from the south side.   
3rd Street is classified as a collector in the 1996 
Transportation System Plan, the 2009 Local 
Street Network Plan, and the 2021 Transportation 
Study. 
The proposed 90-foot width is satisfactory for a 
collector as per JDDC Table 5-3.4.010F.  See 
revised comments 1.d above.  We recommend 
minimum 62 foot ROW to provide for future 
construction of Collector Option D as per 
JDDC Table 5-3.4.010F. 
There is an existing sewer main on the south side 
of 3rd Street which is within the requested 
vacation area.  A 15-foot utility easement is 
proposed.  If approved, the width of proposed 
utility easement shall be decided by the Public 
Works Director as per JDDC § 5-3.4.060.  A 20-
foot easement is recommended. 
There is a proposed crosswalk for connectivity to 
the existing trail on the north side of 3rd Street. 
Enhancement and more formal adoption of this 
path into a wider John Day River path system is 
identified in the 2009 Local Street Network Plan 
(LSNP) (Figure 4-2 and 4-3, p44-45 and Project 

64



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 10 

 

22, p53). An easement for public access of the 
trail is recommended. 
Legal review is recommended. 

e. The location and dimensions of 
all existing and proposed 
structures, utilities, pavement and 
other improvements on the site. 
Setback dimensions for all 
existing and proposed buildings 
shall be provided on the site plan; 

Street: 
The proposed plan does not indicate street 
improvements.   
Street improvements on 3rd Street Extension are 
identified in the Transportation System Plan (p9-
12) and the LSNP (Project 23, p53).  
We recommend requiring half street 
improvements along the northern frontage of the 
development area (approximately 535 ft) in 
accordance with the TSP, LSNP, and JCCD 5-
3.4.010.A.3 and 5-3.4.010.K. 
The applicant has requested to enter into a 
future improvement guarantee in lieu of street 
improvements as provided by JDDC 5-
3.4.010.B.  We request the Commission 
determine if the code conditions are met which 
would allow the deferment of improvements 
via a guarantee. 
The applicant’s narrative also proposes two 
different types of fulfillment which we request 
the Commission to review.  Page 3 of the 
narrative states “The Grant County 
Fairgrounds are not opposed to a sidewalk in 
this area and will sign an agreement not to 
object to the formation of a local improvement 
district in the future.”  Page 4 of the narrative 
states “The City Code allows an owner to sign 
an agreement in lieu of actually constructing the 
improvements at this time. The County 
Fairgrounds feels an agreement like this would 
be very appropriate at this time for this 
project…. When the City prioritizes constructing 
curb and sidewalk along this street and seeks 
funding, the Fairgrounds would work with them 
on the project.”  These are two different things.  
An agreement for nonremonstrance of a Local 
Improvement District is different from an 
agreement to construct their share of 

65



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 11 

 

improvements in collaboration with a City 
capital project. 
As discussed in comment 1.d above, the 
applicant now proposes 60-foot ROW and staff 
recommend requiring 62-foot ROW for 
construction of Collector Option D as per 
JDDC Table 5-3.4.010F.  The applicant 
requests Collector Option B with minimum 40-
foot ROW. 
If the Commission approves the request for a 
deferment guarantee under JDDC 5-3.4.010.B, 
we request the Commission to define which 
form of guarantee is acceptable and to define 
the scope of the required improvements (which 
Collector Option the Commission determines 
is applicable from Table 5-3.4.010F), the 
conditions which would trigger required 
construction, and the time period for 
completion; or the Commission should 
empower staff to do the same. 
We suggest referring to JDDC 5-3-4.090.D as 
an example of important terms for such 
agreements which can be used as guidance on 
this matter. For clarity we want to emphasize 
that JDDC 3-4.090.D is not directly applicable 
to the site design review.  This comment is 
intended as informational on the terms found 
in deferment agreements such as the 
agreement requested by the applicant. 
Bonding: 
The applicant has requested clarification on 
who is to provide the required Performance 
Guarantee and Warranty bond (narrative 
page 11).  Dyer has no preference whether the 
bonds are provided by the applicant or by the 
applicant’s contractor, as long as the 
appropriate bonds are issued to the City.  The 
City should decide if it has a preference. 
Locations and dimensions of structures and 
pavement are included. 
Swale Fencing: 

66



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 12 

 

We recommend requiring a fence around 
infiltration swale ‘A’ for public safety due to the 
indicated water depth of approximately 3 feet.   
Please see item 4 below for updated comments. 
ROW Permit: 
Construction permitting matters are not 
typically deliberated in land use review 
processes, but are discussed here in response to 
the applicant's requests and for informational 
purposes to help streamline construction 
permitting. 
The applicant has requested that the City 
commit to issuance of the ROW permit if 
construction plans match the layout shown on 
the submitted site design plans (narrative page 
3).  It is impossible for staff to commit to 
issuance of a ROW permit prior to the 
submission of construction plans, especially 
considering that the matter of construction vs 
deferment of street improvements described 
above may require revisions from the 
submitted site plan. 
The applicant has requested the City revise the 
requirement for final water and sewer plans to 
encompass only the public water and sewer 
(narrative page 6) on the basis that private 
service lines are permitted under state 
plumbing code.  Please note that the scope of 
JDDC 5-3.4 includes the service connections to 
City facilities.  The applicant’s final water and 
sewer plans will be required show service 
connection details for construction permit 
review. 
The applicant has requested timely review and 
permitting.  Construction plans will be 
reviewed timely for conformance with the 
approved site plan, any applicable conditions 
of approval, and City design standards and 
standard ROW permit requirements.  Please 
note that it is common for construction 
permitting to include one or more rounds of 
review comments and resubmittals prior to 
permit approval and issuance.  Please also note 

67



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 13 

 

that an estimate of the average daily water 
usage will be required for the calculation of 
SDC fees. 
A 20-foot setback from 3rd Street is shown.  The 
setbacks should be reviewed for applicable 
requirements under the proposed zoning with a 
collector street. 
Water/sewer utilities show location and size.  A 
new 2” water meter is proposed serve the 
development.   A backflow preventor is indicated 
to be installed at or near the water meter. 
The City water main ends by the water service at 
the western side of the property.  In the 2-18-2025 
pre-application meeting, the Fire Chief 
determined that a water main extension for fire 
protection is not required. 

f. The location and dimensions of 
entrances and exits to the site for 
vehicular, pedestrian, and bicycle 
access; 

Included.  The applicant appears to be requesting 
variance from the driveway width standards. The 
proposed 3rd Street driveway is 40 feet wide.  
City code stipulates lane width of 10-12’ for one-
way access and 9’-11’ for two-way access (JDDC 
§ 5-3.1.020.K). 
Access permitting will be required.  Driveway 
construction satisfying JDDC § 5-3.1.020.K will 
be required. 
A pedestrian access gate is indicated on the 
southwest corner of the RV park which lets out 
onto the remainder of the property. 
There are two existing driveways indicated on the 
plans, but only the western driveway is called out 
for removal.  The eastern driveway should also be 
removed. 

g. The location and dimensions of 
all parking and vehicle circulation 
areas (show striping for parking 
stalls and wheel stops); 

Included.  

h. Pedestrian and bicycle circulation 
areas, including sidewalks, 
internal pathways, pathway 
connections to adjacent 
properties, and any bicycle lanes 

We recommend requiring street improvements as 
described in comment B.2.e above. 
There is a proposed crosswalk for connectivity to 
the existing trail on the north side of 3rd Street. 

68



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 14 

 

or trails; Enhancement and more formal adoption of this 
path into a wider John Day River path system is 
identified in the 2009 Local Street Network Plan 
(LSNP) (Figure 4-2 and 4-3, p44-45 and Project 
22, p53). An easement for public access of the 
trail is recommended.  Legal review is 
recommended. 
We recommend seeking comments from ODOT 
due to the proximity to Highway 26. 

i. Loading and service areas for 
waste disposal, loading and 
delivery; 

Included. 

j. Outdoor recreation spaces, 
common areas, plazas, outdoor 
seating, street furniture, and 
similar improvements; 

Included.  

k. Location, type, and height of 
outdoor lighting; 

Included. 

l. Location of mail boxes, if known; Application narrative: “None needed. Mail will go 
to existing main fairgrounds office.” 
No concerns at this time. 

m. Name and address of project 
designer, if applicable; 

Included. 

n. Locations of bus stops and other 
public or private transportation 
facilities; 

N/A. 

o. Locations, sizes, and types of 
signs; 

Application narrative: “None proposed. In future 
if one is needed owner will apply for sign 
permit.” 
Crosswalk signage is recommended. 
Wayfinding and/or entrance signage is 
recommended. 

3. Architectural drawings. Architectural drawings showing one or all of the following shall 
be required for new commercial, commercial/residential, industrial and multifamily 
buildings, and major remodels of the same:  

a. Building elevations (as 
determined by the City Planning 
Official) with building height and 
width dimensions;  

Included (Sheet 02). 

69



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 15 

 

b. Building materials, colors and 
type;  

Application narrative: “Some building materials 
and types on shown on the building elevation, 
others and final colors to be determined owner.” 

c. The name of the architect or 
designer.  

Included. 

4. Preliminary grading plan. A 
preliminary grading plan prepared by 
a registered engineer shall be 
required for development sites one-
half (½) acre or larger. The 
preliminary grading plan shall show 
the location and extent to which 
grading will take place, indicating 
general changes to contour lines, 
slope ratios, slope stabilization 
proposals, and location and height of 
retaining walls, if proposed. Surface 
water detention and treatment plans 
may also be required, in accordance 
with Section 5-3.4.040. 

Included. 
The plans indicate on-site stormwater infiltration.  
Engineered stormwater calculations will be 
required for construction permitting.  We 
recommend requiring a fence around infiltration 
swale ‘A’ for public safety due to the indicated 
water depth of approximately 3 feet.   
The applicant requested citation of the code 
authority for this item.  The code authority is 
JDDC 5-3.2.050.A.1 “The City may require 
installation of walls and/or fences as a 
condition of land use or development 
approval” and is determined to be applicable 
on this project to meet the intent of 5-1.2.020 
“The Development Code is intended to 
implement the City of John Day 
Comprehensive Plan and related plans and 
policies in a manner that protects the health, 
safety, and general welfare of the citizens of 
John Day.” 
Regarding the apparent water depth, the 
applicant’s narrative page 11 states that the 
stormwater design is not complete and the 
water depth is not yet known, and that the 3 
feet shown on the current plans is only 
preliminary.  We acknowledge that final design 
of stormwater facilities may still be underway.  
However, the currently submitted plans which 
are the basis of this review do not show any 
drainage outlet from the infiltration swale.  
Our comment is based on the 2014 ODOT 
Hydraulics Manual, Appendix D, page 14-D-7 
and D-8 which provides the following for 
stormwater facilities: 
“Safety Features 
1. Exclusionary measures may be required to 
prevent entry to facilities that present a hazard 

70



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 16 

 

to children and, to a lesser extent, all persons. 
Fences are recommended for detention areas 
where one or more of the following conditions 
exist: 

• areas where small children are present, 
particularly in residential areas and close 
to schools and playgrounds. 

• areas where rapid water level increases 
would make escape practically 
impossible, 

• side slopes steeper than 1V:3H and have 
water depths greater than 3 feet for more 
than 24 hours or are permanently wet 
and have side slopes steeper than 1V:3H, 
or 

2. Guardrail may be needed if the extended dry 
detention pond is placed next to a highway.” 
We find that the proposed campground is an 
area where small children will be present at all 
hours of day and night and therefore meets 
justification for exclusionary measures.  The 
RV park represents a higher risk to public 
safety than the other locations the applicant 
references in page 11 of the narrative such as 
the fire hall, bank, and retail stores. 
The applicant indicated operational concerns 
about a fence inhibiting snow plowing.  We 
welcome a revised plan with a shallower depth 
to mitigate the safety hazard and allow for 
snow plowing operations.  However the 
question would still remain of how deep is deep 
enough to constitute a drowning hazard in an 
area where small children are present, which is 
why we recommend this item for Commission 
deliberation. 

5. Landscape plan. Where a landscape plan is required, it shall show the following: 
 

a. The location and height of 
existing and proposed fences, 
buffering or screening materials;  

Included. 

b. The location of existing and 
proposed terraces, retaining walls, 

N/A. 

71



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 17 

 

decks, patios, shelters, and play 
areas;  

c. The location, size, and species of 
the existing and proposed plant 
materials (at time of planting);  

Application narrative: “Proposed landscape trees 
are shown on plan sheet 02. Each dividing area 
between RVs will have a minimum of 2 trees when 
site is fully developed and other trees fit in 
around the permitter, inside the fence. The trees 
will be a mixture of spring time flowering trees 
(i.e redbud, dogwood), trees with bright fall time 
foliage (i.e. maples, oaks), will follow 
recommendations of local nursery for varieties 
that are hardly enough for the local climate, 
mature providing shade, and low maintenance. At 
planting the trees will be 4’-6’ in height.” 

d. Existing and proposed building 
and pavement outlines;  

Included. 

e. Specifications for soil at time of 
planting, irrigation if plantings 
are not drought tolerant (may be 
automatic or other approved 
method of irrigation) and 
anticipated planting schedule;  

Application narrative: “Will follow 
recommendations of local nursery on planting 
time and water needs.” 

f. Other information as deemed 
appropriate by the City Planning 
Official. An arborist’s report may 
be required for sites with mature 
trees that are protected under 
Chapter 5-3.2. Landscape, Street 
Trees, Fences and Walls of this 
Code.  

N/A. 

6. Deed restrictions. Copies of all 
existing and proposed restrictions or 
covenants, including those for access 
control.  

None known at this time.  Applicant states in 
narrative that there are no existing or proposed 
restrictions or covenants. 

7. Narrative. Letter or narrative report 
documenting compliance with the 
applicable approval criteria contained 
in Section 5-4.2.060 Approval 
Criteria.  

A narrative was included, but does not address the 
requirements of JDDC § 5-4.2.060. 

8. Traffic Impact Analysis, when 
required, shall be prepared in 
accordance with the road authority’s 

See comment A.2 above. 

72



City of John Day   
11/5/2025  PAPA 25-01 Grant County Fairgrounds RV Park 

The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc.   Page 18 

 

requirements. See Section 5-4.1.090, 
and Section 5-3.4.010 for relevant 
standards. 

 
 
Additional Comments 
 
To facilitate project development, we recommend informing the applicant of the following 
permitting/construction topics: 

1. The project will require a DEQ 1200-C erosion control permit for ground disturbance 
over 1 acre. 

2. Design plans for the proposed site work, including access, parking, drainage, and utilities, 
including engineered stormwater calculations, shall be submitted for review and approval 
by the City Engineer prior to the start of construction activity.  The City’s adopted 
System Development Charges, connection fees, and permitting fees will apply. 

 

END MEMORANDUM 

73



 

 
CITY OF JOHN DAY 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES November 12, 2025 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: PLANNING COMMISSIONERS ABSENT
Jim Spell, Planning Commission 
Linda Pifer, Planning Commission 
Ed Newby, Planning Commission 
Valerie Maynard, Planning Commission 
Chris Maynard, Planning Commission 
Neale Ledgerwood, Planning Commission 

 
 
 
 
 

 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Melissa Bethel, City Manager 

 
 

Henry Hearley, Contract Planner 
 
Agenda Item No. 1—Call Meeting to Order 
The Planning Commission meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm. 
 
Agenda Item No. 2—Pledge of Allegiance  
The Planning Commission stood for the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Agenda Item No. 3—Roll Call and Attendance 
The John Day Planning Commission did a roll call. 
 
Agenda Item No. 4—Amend or Accept Regular Agenda 
Commissioner made a motion to accept the agenda as published. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Newby and passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item No. 5—Elect Chair and Vice Chair 
Commissioner Spell was nominated Chair. 
Commissioner Ledgerwood was nominated Vice Chair. 
 
Agenda Item No. 6—Public Comments 
No Public Comments were made. 
 
Agenda Item No. 7—Consent Agenda 

a. Minutes of October 22, 2025 
 
Bethel stated the recording is always available and serves as the official record. She noted that the 
minutes had been revised with some items moved for clarity. 
Winegar stated in the revised minutes she still did not see references to the 6-foot tall fence, off-street 
parking or bicycle parking. Bethel stated that all of these items will be included as part of the final 
motion tonight. 
 
Commissioner Pifer made a motion to approve the revised agenda. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner V. Maynard and passed unanimously. 

EXHIBIT C



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Public Hearing:  
The Public Hearing has been closed. 
 
Agenda Item No. 8—PAPA 25-01 
The Planning Commission is reconvening for deliberations and to consider additional evidence submitted 
by the applicant. At the October 22nd meeting, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and 
received new oral testimony. Planning Commission passed a motion to close the public hearing but keep 
the record open to allow for additional written evidence to be submitted. At the October 22nd meeting, 
the Planning Commission did take formal action on the applicants proposed zone change. The Planning 
Commission found that the proposed zone change was in the public interest and recommended to the 
City Council the zone change be approved. 
 
The first issue discussed was the ROW discrepancy and the question of responsibility. Hearley stated 
that the City continues to hold the position that the ROW is the applicants’ responsibility. During review 
of the additional applicant testimony, staff identified new items requiring the Planning Commissions 
discretion including underground utilities, fencing around Swale “A”, the landscape plan and designation 
of a reviewer. Any decisions made will be forwarded to the City Council for final approval.  
 
Hearley recommends the Planning Commission accept the landscape plan that was submitted. 
Regarding the fencing around Swale “A” the Planning Commission may choose to remove the fencing 
requirement or adopt a conditional standard. The applicant is seeking an exception to the underground 
utility requirement, citing site conditions. Staff suggested considering a closer power source. Staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission consider the City Engineer as the duly appointed designee of 
the Public Works Director. Staff agreed that the future improvement guarantee is acceptable based on 
the applicant’s testimony. The Planning Commission should consider whether to grant this. Hearley 
discussed the revised conditions of approval.  
 
Commissioner Pifer moved to make the exception to allow overhead utilities to the property and then 
underground from there. The motion was seconded by Commissioner V. Maynard and passed 
unanimously. 
 
Commissioner C. Maynard made a motion to require the applicant to engineer the swales to be 3 feet 
or less in size so a fence will not be needed. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Ledgerwood 
and passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner V. Maynard made a motion to approve the applicants landscape plan. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Spell and passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Spell made a motion to designate the City Engineer as the official appointed designee of 
the Public Works Director. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Pifer and passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner C. Maynard made a motion to accept revised condition of approval #4. The motion was 
seconded by V. Maynard and passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner V. Maynard recommend approval onto the City Council for PAPA 25-1 for Site Design 
Review with the revised conditions as contained in the revised staff report and as Planning 
Commission’s recommendations on Items 1-8 as discussed on October 22nd and November 12th. The 
motion was Commissioner Spell and passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item No. 9—Planning Commission Comments 
No additional comments were made. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Adjourn:  
There being no further business before the Planning Commission the meeting was adjourned. 
 
__________ 
Melissa Bethel, CM 



EXHIBIT D







December 2nd, 2025 

FROM: Grant County Fairgrounds 

ATTN: City Council and Staff 

RE: Submittal of additional information for Zone Change and Site Design Review – Grant 
County Fairgrounds Expansion PAPA 25-01 

 
Revised Condition of Approval #1: Prior to issuance of a building permit, connecting to City 
water or sewer service, or creating a new access to 3rd Street, whichever occurs first, Applicant 
must take action(s) satisfactory to City to establish or correct the delineation of the 3rd Street 
right-of-way through the subject property such that it is 62 feet in width and none of applicant’s 
improvements (other than permitted utility connections) are located within the right-of-way. 
Action may include dedicating right-of-way and/or filing petitions for vacation of right-of-way 
and/or street legalization process first brought up by the applicant’s surveyor. A 62’ ROW 
corresponds with Option D for a Collector Street as adopted in Table 5-3.4.101F, Minimum 
Street, Sidewalk and Bikeway Standards. Condition of Approval #1 is tied to Chapter 5-
3.4.101(A)(1) & (3), Adequate Public Facilities and Street Improvements. 
 
At the second hearing this revised condition was very briefly noted but, little to no discussion was 
had on it.  The Grant County Fair Grounds position was not explained; we hope this additional 
information will better explain our proposed row. Attached is a draft map and description of the 
proposed 3rd Street ROW dedication. The 11-5-25 Staff report sited that the Local Street Network 
Plan for John Day (LSNPJD) is asking for sidewalks (plural) along 3rd Street.  The section that 
identified for this is Section 3 – Opportunities and Constrains Report.   

 
This is the only area in the report we found that calls for sidewalk(s).  All other references to this 
project call for a single sidewalk.   In table 4-1 Local Street Network Plan Projects, on page 41 of 
the LSNPJD, a single sidewalk on the south and west sides are called for. 
 

 
 



The Bicycle/Pedestrian Projects Section of the LSNPJD also calls for a single sidewalk on the 
south and west sides of the roadway.  It also states that the ROW for a sidewalk on the south side 
of the street should be obtained.   
 

 
The Grant County Fair Grounds is proposing a 40 ft ROW connecting to the existing 3rd Street 40 
ft ROW to the West, then the ROW width would increase going to the East to incorporate the 
existing fill slopes.  On the west end where this 40 ft ROW width is proposed is in an area that is 
currently developed and wider dedication in this area will create encroachment issues with the 
existing development. The existing road footprint is 34 feet of total pavement and 2-3 feet of gravel 
shoulder on each side.  Per Option B of the City’s Collector Street sections - the improvements 
needed could be constructed with the current road prism.    
 

 
 
The 11-2-25 Staff report sited needing ROW for Option D – a street that includes a 50 feet width 
of pavement (2-12ft travel lanes, 2-5ft bike lanes, and 8-ft of on street parking on both sides) plus 
the curb and sidewalks. 
 
This seems very excessive for an area that will likely not have any development on the north side 
of the road due to the location of the John Day River and flood plain.  The RV park will be self-
contained and does not require on-street parking.  Currently the one major event that potentially 
requires overflow parking is the Fair, and the Fair Grounds provides this with temporary parking 
on their property south of 3rd Street. 
 
Has the City considered the feasibility of constructing a road section to match Option D? 
 

 The extremely large amount of fill material required to widen the road 20-feet? 
 The impact on the flood plain for this additional fill? 
 The pavement width would increase by 16-feet, requiring 30% more pavement for the 

City to maintain vs benefit? 
 The LSNPJD page 33 list physical constraints on the 3rd Street ramp that connects to US 

26, we assume this pertains to the width and that existing guardrail that limits 
improvements.  Option D would be the most difficult to construct in this area. 



 Maintenance of the additional ROW and pavement section – additional snow plowing, 
weed control, trash, stormwater, etc. 

 
Option B seems to be the most feasible and likely of any future improvements on this section of 
3rd  Street and any improvements to the West connecting to the sidewalk on Bridge Street.  It meets 
the projects identified in the LSNPJD.   
   
Revised Condition of Approval #12: The portion of existing sewer line that is currently 
on the subject property and does not lie in the ROW, shall be placed in an easement to 
the City. Easement width shall be 20’. Easements shall be duly recorded, before 
connection to city water or city sewer service occurs. 
 
The same map attached, showing the proposed 3rd Street ROW dedication, shows the proposed 
easement for the existing sanitary sewer line.  The minimum width is 20-ft, and in the area that 
would create a small sliver area between the ROW and the easement, the new easement will extent 
to the ROW making it 20-ft plus and allow the City direct access from the ROW to the 
easement/existing sanitary sewer line. 


	December 9, 2025 CC AGENDA
	AP through 11-12
	AP through 11-24
	AP through 12 -1
	November 18, 2025 Council Meeting Minutes
	Fairgrounds ZC SDR Staff Report PAPA 25-01 for CC 12.3.25
	To: John Day City Council
	Location: Tax Lot 01300 on Map 13S-31E-23
	Published Notice: October 1 & October 8, 2025
	General Goals and Principles (pp. iii)
	Economic Development Goals and Policies (pp. 47–49)
	Public Facility and Parks Policies (pp. 39–40)

	COMBINED EXS TO CC REPORT
	EX A TO CC REPORT
	PAPA 25-01 PC STAFF REPORT RV PARK 10.15.25
	ATTACH A
	GCFG code_amendment_application 1-14-25
	GCFG RV Park Project Flood Dev Application_c
	GCFG RV Park Project Narrative
	GCFG Narrative1.pdf
	GCFG RV Park Rules.pdf

	GCFG RV Park Project Plan Shts
	GCFG RV Park Project Tax Map 13s31e23
	GCFG RV Park Property Deed_c

	ATTACH B
	ATTACH C
	DLCD NOTICE
	fd13edee-0223-4ec9-beb4-0a3af4c118eb

	ATTACH D
	ATTACH E
	ATTACH F
	CURRENT ZONING TRIP GENERATION
	Proposed ZONING TRIP GENERATION
	COMPARISON OF TRIP GENERATION POTENTIAL
	TRANSPORTATION PLANNING RULE FINDINGS


	EX B TO CC REPORT
	Fairgrounds ZC SDR Staff Report PAPA 25-01 for PC REVISED FOR 11.12.25 11.6.25
	To: John Day Planning Commission
	Location: Tax Lot 01300 on Map 13S-31E-23
	Published Notice: October 1 & October 8, 2025

	Attachment A to Revised SR for 11.12.25
	page 1
	page 2
	page 3
	page 4
	page 5
	page 6
	page 7

	Attach B

	EX C TO CC REPORT
	EX D TO CC REPORT
	PAPA 25-01 12-2-25 Attachment 3RD ST COUNTY PROPOSED DESCRIPTION
	PAPA 25-01 12-2-25 Attachment 3RD ST COUNTY PROPOSED MAP
	PAPA 25-01 12-2-25 Response to PC Revised Conditions of Approval





